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(NYSE: KW)
Founded in 1977, Kennedy Wilson is a vertically integrated global real estate investment and
services company headquartered in Beverly Hills, CA, with 24 offices in the U.S., U.K.,
Ireland, Spain and Japan. The company, on its own or with partners, invests opportunistically
in a variety of real estate related investments, including commercial, multifamily, loan
purchases and originations, residential, and hotels. Kennedy Wilson offers a comprehensive
array of real estate services including investment management, property services, auction,
conventional sales, brokerage and research.
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FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

2013 WAS A HISTORIC YEAR FOR OUR COMPANY AND WITH THE
COMPLETION OF AN EXTREMELY ACTIVE FIRST QUARTER OF 2014,
WE FIND OURSELVES IN A UNIQUE POSITION TO BEGIN THE NEXT
CHAPTER OF OUR STORY. IN FEBRUARY 2014, WE SUCCESSFULLY
COMPLETED THE $1.7 BILLION IPO OF KENNEDY WILSON EUROPE REAL
ESTATE PLC (LSE: KWE), AND I WELCOME THIS ANNUAL OPPORTUNITY
TO PAUSE AND REFLECT.

Kennedy Wilson Europe—The Local Advantage

fortunate in mid-2011 to acquire Bank of Ireland’s

In late 2010, I traveled to Ireland to see firsthand

real estate investment management platform,

a market that we had closely studied and were

with 15 employees who were managing $3 billion

interested in exploring further. We met with a

of real estate across major cities in Europe for

number of Irish companies, many of whom had

high net worth clients of the bank. Mary Ricks,

been thoroughly scarred by the global financial

my partner for over 24 years, relocated to

crisis. The Irish real estate outlook at the time

London to be the leader of our European effort.

was bleak as very few of the people that we

This marked the beginning of Kennedy Wilson

met with shared our sentiment about the

Europe. Today we have offices in Dublin, London,

opportunity in front of us. As we have learned in

and Madrid, and have grown the team to over

similar situations, it sometimes takes an outside

50 Irish, English and Spanish nationals.

perspective looking in to see the opportunity in

For those of you familiar with our approach,

a time of distress. We had done our homework

you are aware that our strategy with Kennedy

on Ireland and did not waiver in our conviction.

Wilson Europe is not a new one. We begin by

Our team was confident that liquidity would

creating a local presence in a market before

eventually return to the Irish market, which

investing our capital. The first part of creating

would be a catalyst igniting a recovery. In order

that presence is hiring local people with local

to execute our vision, we would need a team of

expertise and establishing a local operating

local like-minded professionals to join us in this

platform. We then leverage our local knowledge

effort. We have realized over the years that to

with our extensive global network of relationships

be successful, particularly in a foreign market,

to acquire high quality real estate assets in select

it is imperative to have your own people on the

markets around the world. This tested approach

ground running the business. We were extremely

has been fundamental to the 
s uccessful

implementation of our global strategy and we

A Brief Moment of Reflection

ACQUISITIONS

have executed this over numerous decades

In 2008, in the depths of the great recession,

From 2010 to 2013, our company completed

and numerous real estate cycles, including in the

our management team was of the opinion that a

U.S., Japan, the United Kingdom, Ireland and

unique real estate investment opportunity of a life

Spain. In essence, we build local businesses.

time was upon us. Since going public in 2009:

KWE’s initial public offering successfully

• We have raised over $7 billion of global capital

raised $1.7 billion, making KWE the second

including $1.7 billion of equity and debt in the

largest real estate IPO in the history of the

capital markets for KW;

London Stock Exchange and a milestone

• We have deployed that capital with partners

moment for Kennedy Wilson (NYSE: KW). As

in over $11.6 billion of acquisitions, expanding

the investment manager and largest initial

our core markets within the U.S. and entering

shareholder of KWE, KW is fully committed and

new markets in Ireland, the United Kingdom

invested in making KWE a success. Mary Ricks

and Spain;

and her team have acquired over $6 billion of

• Our portfolio now consists of 24 million rentable

assets in Europe since 2011 and are uniquely

square feet, including 17,355 multifamily units,

positioned to build on that momentum with

85 commercial properties, $1.1 billion of Unpaid

KWE. In fact, they have already closed on over

Principal Balance on loans, and over 3,400

$370 million of acquisitions in KWE in the first

acres of land mostly for development over time;

few months of operations and additional invest-

•O
 ur financings and refinancings total $3.9 bil-

ments are being finalized. With projected lever-

lion with a weighted-average interest rate of

age of 50%, KWE will have close to $3.5 billion

3.8% (since December 31, 2010);

of assets once fully invested.

$10.8 billion of acquisitions.

10.8B

$

In addition, KW has experienced tremendous growth in certain key areas, which I have
summarized below:
Cumulative
Growth Since
2009

Compound
Annual Growth
Since 2009

(Dollars in millions)

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2009

Gross Investment Account

$ 1,236.0

$  211.6

484%

55%

Total Assets

$ 1,798.8

$  336.3

435%

52%

Total Book Equity

$   818.9

$  179.3

357%

46%

Market Capitalization (KW)

$ 2,084.7

$  467.9

346%

45%

KW Stock Price (per share)

$   22.25

$   8.95

159%

27%

Adjusted EBITDA

$   185.1

$   37.1

400%

50%

Assets Under Management

$14,800.0

$5,600.0

164%

28%
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26 years ago we started with one office and
11 employees. Today, I am proud to say that we
have more than 400 employees in 24 offices
globally, and we manage and work with over
company with a capital base just north of

billion, with an average rate of 3.4% and aver-

$50,000, and including our most recent equity

age maturity of 6.9 years.

14.8B

Our investment management business grew
rapidly with our investment activity and our

I believe that one of the key strengths of

property services and research businesses

Kennedy Wilson has been our team’s ability to

continued their strong organic growth, posting

generate deal flow and move rapidly on an

record revenue in 2013. In addition, we have

opportunity once they have obtained conviction

grown the property services segment through

in a particular market or segment. As I’ve said

our December 2013 acquisition of a minority

before, the ability to identify and seize an invest-

stake in a real estate and asset management

ment quickly has been a major competitive

services platform in Spain from Banco Popular

advantage for KW and without it, we would not

that manages €23.0 billion in assets.

totaled $14.8 billion.

$

est in the history of our company;
• Total refinancings and financings totaled $1.37

ers’ equity of approximately $1 billion!

At the end of 2013, our assets under management

$2.8 billion of new acquisitions;
• Fee revenue totaled over $68 million, the high

2,000 operating associates. We started the

raise in January 2014, KW now has sharehold-

AUM

• $ 386 million of our equity was invested in

have some of our most prized assets. Also, our

Similar to our experience in Japan, expand-

management team has been extremely prudent

ing our relationships into Europe has created new

in maintaining an adequately capitalized balance

opportunities at home. In 2013, we acquired our

sheet over the years. As we currently sit with

second U.S. portfolio from a European financial

$1.6 billion of liquidity in KW and KWE, I can

institution. We anticipate more of these oppor-

confidently say that Kennedy Wilson is well

tunities to arise in the years to come as we con-

positioned to continually reach our ultimate goal:

tinue to expand our global footprint. In a year of

taking advantage of global opportunities to

record distributions to our partners, we were

acquire attractive real estate assets that will

able to grow our AUM by over $2.0 billion to

generate growing cash flows and capital gains.

$14.8 billion. Meyers Research, a company that
we purchased in 2011, launched ZondaTM, a

2013
2013 marked an exceptional year in our company’s history. With strategic expansion in our
core markets, we had a record year. Some of
our key highlights include:
 djusted EBITDA grew by 85% to $185 million;
•A
• Investments distributed $1.6 billion of cash to
ourselves and our partners;
• Same store rents and net operating income
increased 5% and 7% across approximately

mobile application designed to provide market
insight for the homebuilding industry by combining interactive tools, real-time data and thoughtful analysis. We expect this tool to significantly
improve how homebuilders and their financiers
evaluate acquisitions. I am extremely proud of
all of our accomplishments this past year and
remain very optimistic about the direction that
our company is headed in.

12,000 multifamily units and 13% and 17%

2014 and Beyond

across 2.9 million square feet of commercial

As we close the book on 2013, a landmark year

properties;

for us, we are well underway to executing our
business plan for 2014 and beyond. With the
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launch of KWE and two KW capital raises, we

Thankful

have raised over $2.2 billion of discretionary

As local business operators, we know our

capital in the first quarter of 2014 alone. With

responsibility to our communities extends

over $1.6 billion of total liquidity today, we are in

beyond our investment. Over the years, we

the best position in the company’s history to

have supported elementary schools, high

take advantage of opportunities that will arise in

schools, universities, foundations and numer-

the coming years. The Kennedy Wilson acquisi-

ous other philanthropic organizations in many of

tions team globally is working around the clock,

the markets around the world where we are

literally, finding unique opportunities within our

present. For example, currently in Ireland,

existing portfolio and new investments that will

Kennedy Wilson is involved in developing a

provide above average risk-adjusted returns.

Cultural Quarter in Parnell Square—the first and

Our investment and asset management teams

finest of Dublin’s Georgian Squares. The Cultural

are highly focused on maintaining the trend of

Quarter is located at a significant strategic

improving operating results at our properties

location on Dublin’s Civic Spine, a route that

and increasing the distributions from our invest-

connects the key central city historic spaces,

ments. We are long term, patient investors. In

which allows it to act as a catalyst for economic

many ways, we truly operate in the information

regeneration by drawing foot traffic and creat-

business with real estate as our raw material.

ing new business and cultural opportunities.

Thus, we insist on constant communication

The development will include a new city library,

across our various business lines, which has not

design center, and rehearsal and mentoring

only created a great work atmosphere and cul-

spaces for young musicians as well as a new

ture but also produced significant opportunities

public plaza. I have always remained thankful of

for us over the years and will continue to do so in

the opportunities these communities have

the years to come. Finally, I want to highlight the

presented, and our organization is committed

importance of our global network of relation-

to doing our part to give back. I am also thank-

ships. Consisting of institutions and individuals

ful for everyone involved in helping us achieve

across the globe, this group has been vital to our

our successes over the years, including our

success and will allow us to create sustainable

directors, shareholders, partners, employees,

growth in the years to come.

operating associates, financial partners, and

We are aware of the volatility that exists in the
world today and remain focused on managing

the citizens and leaders in the communities in
which we do business.

our assets in order to maximize long-term risk
adjusted returns to our investors. We are mindful

All the very best,

of the effects that changes in inflation, interest
rates, and the global capital markets can have
on our business. With the possibility of rising
interest rates, we maintain a liquid and conservative balance sheet with long term financing of
our assets. Over 88% of the debt in our company is hedged against rising interest rates or

William McMorrow

has long term maturities.

April 30, 2014

▲

5200 AND 5161 LANKERSHIM

COMMERCIAL
Kennedy Wilson acquired 5200 Lankershim in
September 2012 for $48 million. Located in
North Hollywood, CA, the property is 99%
leased and consists of an eight-story office tower
and a stand-alone single-story annex building
together comprising 174,712 RSF in addition to
a parking structure with a 3.6/1,000 ratio.
In September 2013, Kennedy Wilson acquired
5161 Lankershim, located directly kitty-corner
from 5200 Lankershim, for $45 million. The
property comprises 188,366 RSF and is currently 44% leased as it continues to reabsorb
the vacant space left by the previous owner.
The property boasts unparalleled outdoor
space, large and efficient floor plates and a
market leading parking ratio, all of which make
it among the premier creative office settings in
the greater Tri Cities region. Kennedy Wilson is
currently implementing improvements such as
remodeling of the interior main lobby, common
areas and outdoor courtyard, complete renovation of all restrooms, enhancement to the main
entry and upgrades to the central plant.
Both properties are located at the prominent
corner of Lankershim Boulevard and Magnolia
Boulevard, central arterials in the region. The
assets are highly complementary to each other,
as one caters to a larger tenant while the other
accommodates medium to small tenants. With
North Hollywood’s strong market fundamentals,
a diverse tenant base, significant barriers to
entry, sustainable tenant demand and escalating
construction costs, Kennedy Wilson anticipates
significant upward pressure on rental rates for
both buildings as the office market continues its
steady recovery. The company will also benefit
from economy of scale as various expenses
and operating costs can be allocated across
both assets.

▲

THE ROCK

EUROPE
In December 2012, Kennedy Wilson and a partner acquired the mortgage on The Rock for £75 million from a leading UK financial institution.
The mortgage was purchased at a significant discount as part of a larger loan pool purchase. This property is a premier retail, residential, and
entertainment center in Bury, Greater Manchester comprised of a 580,000 sq. ft. shopping mall and 233 residential units (partially completed). In September 2013, Kennedy Wilson converted the mortgage into 100% equity ownership and implemented a targeted marketing
campaign to attract key tenants and boost footfall. The property boasts a strong tenant roster including Marks and Spencer, Topshop, River
Island, H&M, and Primark and Debenhams and has become one of the country’s most impressive shopping centers. Since Kennedy Wilson has
been involved with the property, vacancies have dropped from 10% to 3%. In December 2013, Kennedy Wilson obtained planning permission

▲

to develop a 4-unit restaurant scheme. Additionally, completion of the 233 residential units above the shopping center is underway.

SANDPIPER

MULTIFAMILY
The company acquired Sandpiper Apartments, a 366-unit multifamily community in Holladay, a suburb of Salt Lake City, Utah in late 2012.
Holladay is considered one of the most affluent communities in the Salt Lake County MSA, and the property is in close proximity to major
freeways, the Downtown Central Business District, Salt Lake City International Airport and Park City as well as some of the best schools and
largest employers in the area. Completed in 1999, the property is located in a prestigious residential neighborhood and consists of 46 buildings
on 36 acres. In 2013, the company completed more than $5 million of renovations on the asset, including a new leasing facility, interior unit
upgrades, a new fitness center and landscaping enhancements as well as 43 unit renovations.
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WEYERHAUSER

MEYERS RESEARCH
In the third quarter of 2013, Meyers Research, a Kennedy Wilson company, conducted due diligence for TRI Pointe Homes on the revenue
potential for a portfolio of residential real estate assets owned by Weyerhauser (WRECO). The engagement included an analysis of
assets managed by five separately branded homebuilders (Pardee, Winchester, Trendmaker, Maracay, and Quadrant) located throughout
the United States.
In its analysis, Meyers Research provided project level revenue, absorption, and inflation assumptions on a number of high profile
developments. In November of 2013, Tri Pointe Homes Inc. announced the combination with WRECO’s homebuilding division valued at
$2.7 billion using a deal structure known as a Reverse Morris Trust. The transaction is expected to close early in the third quarter of 2014.
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▲

▲
KOHANAIKI

RESIDENTIAL
Kohanaiki is a 450-acre private resort community including 1.5 miles of beachfront property on the
Kona Coast of the Big Island of Hawaii. This area includes one of North Kona’s most popular surfing,
diving and camping areas. Kohanaiki was originally acquired by Kennedy Wilson in 1997. In 2004,
the company gained entitlements and then sold its interest in the property a few years later. The new
owners then invested approximately $300 million for zoning, engineering, entitlement and
construction.
In 2011, Kennedy Wilson reentered the partnership at a significantly reduced basis. On April 1,
2013, Kohanaiki launched sales of 75 front row ocean and golf view lots. Up to 450 residences are
planned for the community, including 75 custom home sites ranging from one-half to more than an
acre in size with generous setbacks to maximize ocean views regardless of lot position. Amenities of
the development include an 18-hole Rees Jones-designed private championship golf course as well
as a beach club, clubhouse and restaurant.
Additionally, in collaboration with the lineal descendants of the area, community groups and the
County of Hawai‘i, Kennedy Wilson worked to create Kohanaiki Beach Park, which was dedicated
and blessed in a public opening ceremony in June 2013. The park includes bathrooms and outdoor
showers, designated camping areas, a halau for cultural practices, parking and improved roadways
to and along the shoreline and within the park.

▲

LUSORT AT VILAMOURA ALGARVE PORTUGAL

AUCTION
Kennedy Wilson was hired to auction 42 luxury residences at the Lusort development located in Vilamoura, Algarve, Portugal. This year-round
resort located in Southern Europe is a fully established flagship tourist destination with a prestigious image and brand, offering exceptional
climate, five world class golf courses, three km of renowned coastline, an 825-berth marina and outstanding infrastructure such as public
transportation, communications and services. Located just 20 km over excellent motorways from Faro International Airport, the main point of
entry to the Algarve, the property benefits from unparalleled connections to the main European capitals such as Berlin, London, Paris and
Rome. The total value of auctioned homes was $11 million.

▲

SUNSET + VINE

BROKERAGE
Sunset + Vine is a mixed-use property located at 1555 Vine St. in the Hollywood area of Los Angeles, CA. The property was built in 2004 and
is currently anchored by retailer Bed, Bath, and Beyond. In 2011, one of the tenants filed for bankruptcy and in 2012, closed its 22,500 sq. ft.
store. In 2013, Kennedy Wilson was engaged to retenant the vacant space.
In less than 120 days, the company generated multiple offers from national credit tenants including sporting goods, markets, drugstores
and home accessories retailers. Walgreens took the space, opening the first “flagship” concept in Los Angeles, which includes high-end
skincare/cosmetics, fresh sushi, a coffee/juice/smoothie bar, prepared foods and grocery. The rental rate achieved by Kennedy Wilson set a
new standard for large box space in mixed-use projects in the area.
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▲

THE BERGER PORTFOLIO

PROPERTY SERVICES
In January 2013, Kennedy Wilson was awarded
management of the Berger portfolio, which
consists of four properties in Chicago, Illinois.
In its first year of the assignment, the company
increased the portfolio’s NOI by 11%.
The Fine Arts Building, completed circa 1885,
is a ten-story, 190,000 sq. ft. historical landmark
located on Michigan Avenue. Kennedy Wilson
negotiated a lease renewal and expansion with
the building’s largest tenant, Chicago Youth
Symphony Orchestra, and increased rental
income by 5.5% and tenant services income by
83.8%. Kennedy Wilson also negotiated a contract with RCN to bring the technology of the
building to current cutting-edge standards.
The Flat Iron Building is a 100-year-old,
three-story, 88,000 sq. ft. building that is home
to over 100 artists in Wicker Park. Kennedy
Wilson increased its occupancy from 79.5% to
99.6% and overall NOI by 5.7%.
40 East Oak and 1100 North Dearborn are
high-rise multifamily properties in the Gold
Coast area of Chicago. 40 East Oak is a
20-story Renaissance building consisting of
209 units and three retail stores while 1100
North Dearborn is an Art Deco 20-story building consisting of 247 units and six retail shops.
Kennedy Wilson strategically increased rents
at both properties to produce a combined
$373,294 in additional rental income. The
company also automated operating systems
to provide better service to the residents and
increase staff productivity while reducing outside broker rental commissions by 42% and
operating expenses by 7.6%.
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BUSINESS
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

COMPANY OVERVIEW
Kennedy Wilson is a vertically integrated global real estate investment and

On October 14, 2013, we announced the launch of Zonda™ a mobile appli-

services company with over $14.8 billion in assets under management.

(1)

cation designed to provide market insight for the homebuilding industry by

Founded in 1977, we have owned and operated real estate related invest-

combining interactive tools, real-time data on approximately 250 metrics

ments for over 35 years on behalf of our shareholders and our clients.

impacting housing and thoughtful analysis driven by Meyers Research.

We have approximately 400 employees in 24 offices throughout the United
States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain and Japan and manage and work

In January 2014, we issued and sold 9.2 million shares of common stock,
resulting in gross proceeds of $197.3 million.

with over 2,000 operating associates. (1) We focus on adding value for

On January 21, 2014, we completed the purchase of notes with an unpaid

our shareholders through opportunistic investing and strategic asset

principal balance of approximately $310.0 million secured by the Shelbourne

management. Also, our services business creates additional value through

Hotel in Dublin, Ireland. We acquired the notes for $152.0 million. The pur-

fee generation.

chase price consisted of $70.0 million of equity from the Company and

The following is our business model:

$82.0 million in bank financing.

• Identify countries and markets with an attractive investment landscape

On February 28, 2014, we subscribed for a total of £122.0 million

• E stablish operating platforms and service businesses in our target

(approximately $203.0 million) of ordinary shares in the initial public offering

markets
• Develop local intelligence and create long-lasting relationships; primarily
with financial institutions
• L everage relationships and local knowledge to drive proprietary
investment opportunities with a focus on off-market transactions

of Kennedy Wilson Europe Real Estate Plc (“KWE,” LSE:KWE). Our investment consists of £87.0 million (approximately $145.0 million) of cash subscription and the contribution of £35.0 million (approximately $58.0 million)
of assets acquired by Kennedy Wilson in the first quarter of 2014. KWE
announced the closing of its initial public offering on February 28, 2014,

• Acquire high quality assets, either on our own or with strategic part-

raising approximately £1 billion (approximately $1.7 billion) in gross proceeds

ners, utilizing cash from our balance sheet and typically financing them

(including the exercise of the £91 million (approximately $151 million) over-

on a long-term basis

allotment option). Immediately following the closing, Kennedy Wilson’s

• Reposition assets and enhance cash flows post-acquisition

investment represented approximately 12.2% of KWE’s total share capital,

• Continuously evaluate and selectively harvest asset and entity value

making Kennedy Wilson the largest shareholder of KWE. One of our wholly-

through strategic realizations utilizing both the public and private

owned subsidiaries is acting as KWE’s external manager, in which capacity

markets

we will be entitled to receive certain management and performance fees. In

• Utilize our services businesses to meet client needs, strengthen relationships with financial institutions, and position the Company as a
valuable resource and partner to these institutions for any future real
estate opportunities

addition, KWE will be provided priority access to all investment opportunities
sourced by us in Europe.
On February 26, 2014, our board of directors approved a $0.09 per share
quarterly dividend, a 29% increase from the previous quarter, to common

Our strategy has resulted in a strong track record of creating both asset

shareholders of record as of March 31, 2014 with a payment date of April 8,

and entity value for the benefit of our shareholders and partners over various

2014. The quarterly payment equates to an annual dividend of $0.36 per

real estate cycles.

common share.

Since our initial public offering on November 13, 2009 through
December 31, 2013, the annualized total rate of return (including dividends)

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

of our common stock (NYSE: KW) was 23.0%, compared to the return of the

Our operations are defined by two core business units: KW Investments and

S&P 500 index of 16.0%. Past stock price performance is not necessarily

KW Services. KW Investments invests our capital in real estate-related

indicative of future stock price performance.

assets. KW Services provides a full array of real estate-related services to
owners and lenders, with a strong focus on financial institution based clients.
The two segments have a symbiotic relationship and work closely together.
KW Services provides insight and creates investment opportunities for KW
Investments while KW Investments provides clients the ability to utilize the
capabilities of KW Services.

(1) Please refer to “Forward-Looking Statements and Certain Definitions” for definition.

P A G E

1

BUSINESS

(continued)

KW Investments

Residential, Hotel and Other—In certain cases, we may pursue residential

We invest our capital in real estate assets and loans secured by real estate

for sale housing acquisition opportunities, including land for entitlements,

either on our own or with strategic partners through joint ventures, separate

finished lots, urban infill condominium sites and partially finished and fin-

accounts, and funds. We are typically the general partner in these joint ven-

ished condominium projects. This group also includes our investment in

tures with a promoted interest in the profits of our investments beyond our

hotels and our investments in marketable securities.

ownership percentage. The Company has an average ownership interest

While our core investments have been in the specific markets and loca-

across all investments of approximately 40%. Our equity partners include

tions listed above, we will evaluate opportunities to earn above market

financial institutions, foundations, endowments, high net worth individuals

returns across many other segments and geographic locations.

and other institutional investors.
The following are product types we invest in through the KW
Investments segment:
Commercial—We source, acquire, and finance various types of commercial
real estate which includes office, industrial, retail, and mixed-use assets.
After acquisition, the properties are repositioned to enhance market value.
Assets are either sold as part of property-specific investment strategies
designed to deliver above-market returns to our clients and shareholders or
held if producing above average returns. We own interests in 85 commercial
properties, totaling over 10 million square feet, located throughout the United
States, United Kingdom, Ireland, and Japan.

INVESTMENT ACCOUNT
In 2013, together with our equity partners, we made investments in $2.8
billion of real estate and loans secured by real estate. These acquisitions
were comprised of the following: 46% loans secured by real estate, 32%
commercial, 18% multifamily, and 4% other.
At December 31, 2013, we and our equity partners held a real estate and
real estate related investment portfolio with assets of approximately $6.2
billion, at cost, with approximately 56% leverage. The Company has an average ownership interest across all investments of approximately 40%. The
following table describes the breakdown of our equity in the portfolio, which
includes the following financial statement captions below, and is derived

Multifamily—We pursue multifamily acquisition opportunities where we

from our audited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013:

believe we can unlock value through a myriad of strategies, including institu-

(dollars in millions)

tional management, asset rehabilitation, repositioning and creative recapitalization. We focus primarily on apartments in supply-constrained, infill
markets. We hold investments in 17,355 multifamily apartment units, of
which 2,327 units are owned by our consolidated subsidiaries and 15,028
units are owned through joint ventures.
Loan Originations/Discounted Loan Purchases—We acquire and/or originate
loans secured by real estate. Our acquisitions and originations include individual notes on all real estate property types as well as portfolios of loans
purchased from financial institutions, corporations and government agencies. We deliver value through loan resolutions, discounted payoffs, and
sales. We also foreclose on certain loans to acquire the underlying real
estate collateral. Our discounted loan pool portfolio as of December 31,
2013 had an initial unpaid principal balance (“UPB”) of $4.7 billion at origination. As of December 31, 2013, the UPB was $1.0 billion due to collections of over $3 billion on the portfolio. Also, as of December 31, 2013, our
loan originations portfolio has an unpaid principal balance of $57.2 million
with a weighted average interest rate of 10.1%.
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Investment in joint ventures (1)
Real estate, net of depreciation
Mortgage debt
Notes receivable
Loan pool participations
Other(2)
Total net investment account
Add back:
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Kennedy Wilson’s share of accumulated depreciation and
amortization included in investment in joint ventures
Total gross investment account

$724.5
668.8
(407.7)
56.8
34.7
23.2
1,100.3
29.7
106.0
$1,236.0

(1) 
E xcludes $26.9 million related to our investment in a real estate and asset
management servicing platform in Spain.
(2) Includes acquired in-place lease value, net of amortization and marketable
securities both of which are included in other assets.

The following table breaks down our net investment account information derived from our audited consolidated balance sheet by investment type and
geographic location as of December 31, 2013:

Commercial

Multifamily

Loans
Secured by
Real Estate

Western U.S.
Other U.S.
Japan
United Kingdom
Ireland

$212.8
3.4
4.1
104.5
97.3

$221.9
0.2
68.8
—
48.2

$112.5
—
—
27.3
8.3

$182.8
7.8
0.4
—
—

$730.0
11.4
73.3
131.8
153.8

Total

$422.1

$339.1

$148.1

$191.0

$1,100.3

(dollars in millions)

Residential,
Hotel,
and Other

Total

KW Services

Property Services—Our property services division manages commercial real

KW Services offers a comprehensive line of real estate services for the full

estate for third-party clients, fund investors, and investments held by

lifecycle of real estate ownership to clients that include financial institutions,

Kennedy Wilson. In addition to earning property management fees, consult-

institutional investors, insurance companies, developers, builders and gov-

ing fees, leasing commissions, construction management fees, disposition

ernment agencies. KW Services has five main lines of business: investment

fees, and accounting fees, the property services division gives Kennedy

management, property services, research, brokerage, and auction and con-

Wilson insight into local markets and potential acquisitions. Leveraging over

ventional sales. These five business lines generate revenue for us through

35 years of real estate experience, we approach property management from

fees and commissions.

the perspective of an owner and are active in identifying and implementing

We manage over 68 million square feet of properties for institutional clients and individual investors in the United States, Europe, and Asia, which
includes assets we have ownership interests in and third party owned assets.
With 24 offices throughout the United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland,
Spain and Japan, we have the capabilities and resources to provide property
services to real estate owners as well as the experience, as a real estate
investor, to understand client concerns. The managers of KW Services have
an extensive track record in their respective lines of business and in the real
estate community as a whole. Their knowledge and relationships are an
excellent driver of businesses through the services business as well as on
the investment front.
Additionally, KW Services plays a critical role in supporting our investment
strategy by providing local market intelligence and real-time data for

value creation strategies. The division has a proven track record of success
in managing stabilized as well as value-add investments.
Research—Meyers Research LLC or Meyers, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Kennedy Wilson, is a premier consulting practice and provider of data for
residential real estate development and new home construction. Meyers’
offers a national perspective as well as local expertise to homebuilders, multifamily developers, lenders and financial institutions. These relationships
have led to investment opportunities with homebuilders in the Western US
region. Zonda™, a Meyers innovation launched in October 2013, is the
housing industry’s most comprehensive solution for smart business analysis,
real-time market data reporting, economic and housing data in one place
and on-the-go.

evaluating investments, generating proprietary transaction flow and

Brokerage —Our brokerage division represents tenants and landlords on

creating value through efficient implementation of asset management or

every aspect of site selection, negotiation and occupancy. The division also

repositioning strategies.

specializes in innovative marketing programs tailored to client objectives for

Investment Management—Our investment management division, provides
acquisition, asset management and disposition services to our equity partners as well as to third parties. Our fund management division has invested

all types of investment grade and income producing real estate. The division’s property marketing programs combine proven techniques with its
detailed market knowledge to create optimum results.

in real estate deals totaling $3 billion since its inception in 2000. Today,
through six closed end funds (two traditional funds, two club funds and two
double bottom line funds), we serve as general partner and manager of $2
billion in real estate, 10.6 million square feet of office and retail space, and
over 7,200 apartment units.
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(continued)

Auction and Conventional Sales—The auction and conventional sales division

• We understand that real estate is cyclical. Our management team

provides innovative marketing and sales strategies for all types of commercial

employs a multi-cyclical approach that has resulted in our AUM being

and residential real estate, including single family homes, mixed-use

globally diversified across many sectors of real estate while maintaining

developments, estate homes, multifamily dwellings, new home projects, and

a healthy liquidity position and adequate access to capital.

conversions. Generally the division’s auction sales business is countercyclical
to the traditional sales real estate market and has been a bellwether for us on

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

forecasting market conditions.

United States
The U.S. recovery gained further momentum in 2013 as equity and real

VALUE CREATION

estate prices continued their upward trend. The S&P 500 posted its highest

Kennedy Wilson’s differentiated and unique approach to investing is the

annual gain since 1997 and home prices (as measured by the S&P/Case-

cornerstone of how we create value for our shareholders. Our investment

Shiller 20 city home price index) posted their largest annual gains since

philosophy is based on three core fundamentals:

2005. The Federal Reserve’s decision in January 2014 to begin tapering

• Leverage our global footprint and complementary investments and services businesses to identify attractive investment markets across the
world.

its bond purchasing program is another strong indicator of the economy’s
overall strength and sustainability.
Commercial real estate fundamentals have strengthened since the eco-

• S electively invest in opportunities across many real estate product
types with a goal of maximizing cash flow and return on capital.

nomic downturn and have now stabilized across most property types.
Corporate profit margins remained well above their long term averages, and

• Actively manage assets and finance them conservatively to generate
stable, predictable, and growing cash flows for shareholders and
clients.

business confidence grew amid upbeat economic news.
Looking ahead, the U.S. economy could see rising GDP growth, driven by
further improvements in employment and rising household wealth. We

Kennedy Wilson is able to create value for its shareholders in the
following ways:

believe that continued growth in the US economy will sustain the labor market recovery and drive improvements in fundamentals for all real estate

• We are able to identify and acquire attractive real estate assets across
many markets, in part due to the significant proprietary deal flow driven

types, including the prospects of higher occupancies, rent growth, property
values, and increases in capital availability.

from an established global network of industry relationships, particularly with financial institutions. This can create value by allowing us to

Europe

maintain and develop a large pipeline of attractive opportunities.

The real estate market in Europe has begun to show signs of improving con-

• Our operating expertise allows us to focus on opportunistic investments

fidence and market sentiment. Many European countries appear to be at or

where we can increase the value of assets and cash flows, such as dis-

have moved past their cyclical “trough.” Against this backdrop of improving

tressed real estate owners or lenders seeking liquidity, under-managed

market sentiment and positive signals from leading indicators, commercial

or under-leased assets, and repositioning opportunities.

real estate investment activity has continued to increase, driven by strong

• Many times these investments are acquired at a discount to replace-

cross-regional capital flows into the direct investment market and improved

ment cost or recent comparative sales, thereby offering opportunities

availability of debt. We believe that continued improvement in the underlying

to achieve above average total returns. In many cases this may lead to

economic fundamentals of Europe will result in a favorable investment out-

significant additional returns, such as promoted interest, based on the

look for European commercial real estate.

performance of the assets.

United Kingdom

• K W Services plays a critical role in supporting our investment strategy by providing local market intelligence and real-time data for
evaluating investments, generating proprietary transaction flow and
creating value through efficient implementation of asset management
or repositioning strategies.

Since mid-2003, the UK recovery has become more established as investor
sentiment has strengthened. London continues to be an attractive real
estate market due to foreign capital investment and a strong global presence. Much of the foreign capital has targeted the London location, causing
a polarization (in terms of pricing and levels of activity) between London and
the rest of the country. Though vacancy rates may have dropped, the UK’s
economic recovery remains fragile, though forecasts of GDP growth for
2014 are encouraging.
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Ireland

real estate investment partnerships, real estate investment trusts, private

Ireland’s economic turnaround is gathering pace. Unemployment has fallen

equity firms and other investment companies and regional investors and

to its lowest level since 2009, and the government has forecasted 2% GDP

developers. We believe that our relationships with the sellers and our ability

growth for 2014. The residential market is also recovering, with double digit

to close an investment transaction in a short time period at competitive pric-

gains for certain well-located properties in 2013. The National Asset

ing provide us a competitive advantage. The real estate services business is

Management Agency’s (“NAMA”) is in the early stages of unwinding its

both highly fragmented and competitive. We compete with real estate bro-

approximately €70.0 billion portfolio of real estate related assets, which will

kerage and auction companies on the basis of our relationship with property

be a source of investment opportunity. In addition to the NAMA portfolio,

owners, quality of service, and commissions charged. We compete with

domestic Irish banks are expected to deleverage their portfolios of assets

property management and leasing firms also on the basis of our relationship

that were not transferred to NAMA. Although the Irish economy remains

with clients, the range and quality of services provided, and fees and

susceptible to macroeconomic developments, we believe 2014 will be an

commissions charged.

even busier year for the Irish property market, fueled to a large extent by
improving domestic economic indicators and by some improvement in the

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

availability of debt funding.

We have a unique platform from which to execute our investment and ser-

Spain
The Spanish recovery lags that of the UK and Ireland. Real GDP growth
remains negative, and there are only limited signs that occupier demand is
improving. However, commercial real estate transaction volumes rose sharply
in the second half of 2013, signaling an increase in investor risk appetite.
Also, the Spanish government established the Sociedad de Gestion de
Activos de la Reestructuracion Bancaria (“SAREB”) in November 2012 which
assumed €50 billion worth of assets to aid the restructuring of the Spanish
financial sector. SAREB began its divestment program in the second quarter
of 2013 and should provide a source of future investment opportunities
going forward.
Japan
The Japanese real estate market has experienced an upswing since the

vices strategy. The combination of a service business and an investment
platform provides several competitive advantages over other real estate buyers operating stand-alone or investment-focused firms and may allow us to
generate superior risk-adjusted returns. Our investment strategy focuses on
investments that offer significant appreciation potential through intensive
property management, leasing, repositioning, redevelopment and the opportunistic use of capital. We differentiate ourselves from other firms in the
industry with our full service, investment oriented structure. Whereas most
other firms use an investment platform to obtain additional service business
revenue, we use our service platform to enhance the investment process and
ensure the alignment of interests with our investors.
Our competitive advantages include:
• Transaction Experience: Our Executive Committee has more than
125 years of combined real estate experience and has been working

beginning of 2013. Japan’s current demographic trends include an influx of

and investing together on average for over 15 years. Members of the

migration to major cities, creating strong demand for housing. With diminish-

Executive Committee have collectively acquired, developed and

ing supply of new inventory due to stricter building regulations imposed in

managed in excess of $20 billion of real estate investments in the

2007, rents for quality assets are expected to remain strong while vacancy

United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain and Japan through-

rates remain stable. Recent monetary stimulus has focused on returning the

out various economic cycles, both at our Company and throughout

economy to an inflationary state, which has weakened the Yen against the

their careers.

US Dollar and nearly all other major currencies and created a tailwind for

• Extensive Relationship and Sourcing Network: We leverage our services

asset prices and the overall real estate market. We believe that Japan’s

business in order to source off-market deals. In addition, the Executive

recovering market fundamentals and attractive exchange rate will draw inter-

Committee and our acquisition team have transacted deals in nearly

national attention to the country’s real estate market.

every major metropolitan market on the West Coast of the United States,
as well as in the United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain and Japan. Their local

COMPETITION

presence and reputation in these markets have enabled them to

We compete with a range of global, national and local real estate firms,

cultivate key relationships with major holders of property inventory, in

individual investors and other corporations. Because of our unique mix of

particular financial institutions, throughout the real estate community.

investments and services businesses, we compete with brokerage and property management companies as well as companies that invest in real estate
and loans secured by real estate. Our investment business competes with
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(continued)

• Structuring Expertise and Speed of Execution: Prior acquisitions com-

EMPLOYEES

pleted by us have taken a variety of forms including direct property

As of December 31, 2013, we have approximately 400 employees in 24

investments, joint ventures, exchanges involving stock or operating

offices throughout the United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain and

partnership units, participating loans and investments in performing and

Japan and manage and oversee over 2,000 operating associates. We believe

non-performing mortgages at various capital stack positions with the

that we have been able to attract and maintain high quality employees. There

objective of long-term ownership. We believe we have developed a repu-

are no employees subject to collective bargaining agreements. In addition,

tation of being able to quickly execute, as well as originate and creatively

we believe we have a good relationship with our employees.

structure acquisitions, dispositions and financing transactions.
• Vertically Integrated Platform for Operational Enhancement: We have

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

approximately 400 employees in both KW Investments and

Information about us is available on our website (http://www.kennedywilson.com)

KW Services, with 24 regional offices throughout the United States, the

(this website address is not intended to function as a hyperlink, and the

United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain and Japan and manage and oversee

information contained in, or accessible from, our website is not intended to

over 2,000 operating associates. We have a hands-on approach to

be a part of this filing). We make available on our website, free of charge,

real estate investing and possess the local expertise in property man-

copies of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q,

agement, leasing, construction management, development and invest-

Current Reports on Form 8-K, Proxy Statements on Schedule 14A and

ment sales, which we believe enable us to invest successfully in

amendments to those reports and other statements filed or furnished pursu-

selected submarkets.

ant to Section 13(a), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as

• Risk Protection and Investment Discipline: We underwrite our investments based upon a thorough examination of property economics and
a critical understanding of market dynamics and risk management
strategies. We conduct an in-depth sensitivity analysis on each of our
acquisitions. This analysis applies various economic scenarios that
include changes to rental rates, absorption periods, operating
expenses, interest rates, exit values and holding periods. We use this
analysis to develop our disciplined acquisition strategies.
TRANSACTION-BASED RESULTS
A significant portion of our cash flow is tied to transaction activity and joint
venture investments, both of which can affect an investor’s ability to compare our financial condition and results of operations on a quarter-by-quarter
basis or easily evaluate the breadth of our operation. Historically, this variability has caused our revenue, operating income, net income and cash flows
to be tied to transaction activity, which is not necessarily concentrated in any
one quarter.
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amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after filing or submitting such
material electronically or otherwise furnishing it to the SEC. In addition, we
have previously filed registration statements and other documents with the
SEC. Any document we file may be inspected, without charge, at the SEC’s
public reference room at 100 F Street NE, Washington, D.C. 20549 or at the
SEC’s internet address at http://www.sec.gov (this website address is not
intended to function as a hyperlink, and the information contained in, or
accessible from, the SEC’s website is not intended to be a part of this filing).
Information related to the operation of the SEC’s public reference room may
be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following tables summarize our selected historical consolidated financial information. This information was derived from our audited financial statements for
each of the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009. This information is only a summary. You should read this information together in
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the financial statements and related notes
included elsewhere in this document.
Year Ended December 31,

2013

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2012

2011

2010

2009

$62.6
7.1
(0.06)
0.11
66.2
71.3
22%

$50.5
6.5
(0.03)
—
48.1
58.4
57%

$86.2
(9.7)
(0.57)
—
18.6
37.1
37%

Statements of Operations Data and Dividends:
Revenue
Income from continuing operations
Basic loss per share
Dividends declared per share of common stock
EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA annual increase

$121.2
13.6
(0.21)
0.28
177.6
185.1
85%

$64.1
6.9
(0.07)
0.20
92.1
100.2
41%

As of December 31,

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

$115.9
792.8
30.7
289.4
410.2
413.6
582.8
60%

$ 47.0
487.8
60.0
67.8
300.2
312.9
363.7
72%

$ 57.8
336.3
50.1
77.5
177.3
179.3
211.6
28%

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Mortgage loans and notes payable
Unsecured corporate debt
Kennedy Wilson equity
Total equity
Net investment account
Net investment account annual increase

$178.2
1,798.8
407.7
449.0
768.3
818.9
1,100.3
31%

$ 120.9
1,283.8
236.5
449.6
509.7
518.8
837.6
44%

The Company has been able to increase Adjusted EBITDA and the net investment account through acquisitions and prudent asset management. Due to our
significant acquisition activity, the periods presented above may not be comparable. See Note 4 in our Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
discussion of the business combinations that occurred during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the

Residential, Hotel, and Other

financial statements and related notes and the other financial information

In certain cases, we may pursue for sale housing acquisition opportuni-

appearing elsewhere in this report. This discussion and analysis contains

ties, including land for entitlements, finished lots, urban infill condomin-

forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions.

ium sites and partially finished and finished condominium projects.

See the section titled “Forward-Looking Statements” for more information.

This group also includes our investment in hotels and our investments in

Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-

marketable securities.

looking statements as a result of many factors, including those discussed in
“Risk Factors” in this report.
Unless specifically noted otherwise, as used throughout this Management’s
Discussion and Analysis section, Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. is referred to

KW Services—our services business offers a comprehensive line of real
estate services for the full lifecycle of real estate ownership. Below are the
product types we offer through the KW Services segment:

as “Kennedy Wilson” or “KWH” and Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. and its

Investment Management

subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “The Company,” “we,” “us” or “our,”

We provide acquisition, asset management and disposition services to our

unless the context requires otherwise.

equity partners as well as to third parties.
Property Services

OVERVIEW

This division manages commercial real estate for third-party clients, fund

Kennedy Wilson is a vertically integrated global real estate investment and

investors, and investments held by the Company.

services company. For over 35 years, we have owned and operated real

In addition to earning property management fees, consulting fees, lease

estate related investments on behalf of our shareholders and our clients with

commissions, construction management fees, disposition fees, and

offices in the United States, United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain and Japan.

accounting fees, the Property Services group gives Kennedy Wilson

Our operations are defined by two core business segments, KW Investments
and KW Services, which work closely together to identify attractive investment
markets and opportunities across the world:

insight into local markets and potential acquisitions.
Research
Meyers Research LLC (“Meyers”), a Kennedy Wilson company, is a pre-

KW Investments—we invest in various types of real estate investments

mier consulting practice and the industry’s leading provider of data and

through our investments business, either on our own or with strategic part-

analytics for the residential real estate development and new home con-

ners, where we are typically the general partner, with a promoted interest in

struction industry. Meyers’ proprietary iPad application, Zonda, launched

the profits of the business beyond our ownership percentage. The main

in 2013 and provides market insight for the homebuilding industry with

types of real estate we invest in are listed below:

real-time data on over 250 metrics impacting the housing market on a
national and local level.

Commercial
We source, acquire, and finance various types of commercial real estate

Auction and Conventional Sales

that includes office, industrial, retail, and mixed-use assets.

The Auction and Conventional Sales group provides innovative marketing

Multifamily

and sales strategies for all types of commercial and residential real

We focus primarily on apartments in supply-constrained, infill markets.

estate, including single family homes, mixed-use developments, estate

We pursue multifamily acquisition opportunities where we can unlock

homes, multifamily dwellings, new home projects, conversions and

value through a myriad of strategies, including institutional management,

scattered properties.

asset rehabilitation, repositioning and creative recapitalization.

Brokerage

Loan Originations/Discounted Loan Purchases

The Brokerage group specializes in innovative marketing programs tai-

We originate and/or acquire loans secured by real estate. Our originations

lored to client objectives for all types of investment grade and income

and acquisitions include individual notes on all real estate property types

producing real estate.

as well as portfolios of loans purchased from financial institutions,
corporations and government agencies.
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FINANCIAL MEASURES AND DESCRIPTIONS

General and Administrative—General and administrative expenses repre-

Our key financial measures and indicators are discussed below. Please refer

sent administrative costs necessary to run our business and include things

to the critical accounting policies in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

such as occupancy and equipment expenses, professional fees, public

Statements for additional detail regarding the GAAP recognition policies

company costs, travel and related expenses, and communications and

associated with the captions described below.

information services.

Revenues

Depreciation and Amortization—Depreciation and amortization is comprised

Management and Leasing Fees—Management and leasing fees are primar-

of depreciation expense which is recognized ratably over the useful life of an

ily comprised of base asset management fees and performance based fees

asset and amortization expense which primarily consist of the amortization of

generated by our investment management division, property management

assets allocated to the value of in-place leases upon acquisition of a consoli-

fees generated by our property services division, leasing fees generated by

dated real estate asset or the amortization of loan fees.

our brokerage and auction divisions, and consulting fees generated
by Meyers.

Equity in Joint Venture Income—Equity in joint venture income consists of
the Company’s share of income or loss earned on investments in which the

Commissions—Commission revenue consists of acquisition fees generated

Company can exercise significant influence but does not have control. As of

by our investment management division and sales commissions generated

December 31, 2013, approximately 66% of the Company’s investment

by our brokerage division.

account is invested through joint ventures investments. See the investment in

Related Party—Related party revenue are management and leasing fees as
well as commissions earned from our equity partners and relate to assets in
which we have an ownership interest.
Rental and Other Income—Rental and other income is comprised of rental
income earned by our consolidated real estate investments.

joint venture footnote of the attached notes to the consolidated financial
statements for summarized financial data, including balance sheet and
income statement information of the underlying joint ventures.
Interest Income from Loan Pool Participations and Notes Receivable —
Interest income from loan pool participations is comprised of interest
income earned on the Company’s loan originations and investments in loans

Sale of Real Estate—Sales of real estate consists of gross sales proceeds

and discounted loan purchases. Additionally, interest income from loan pool

received on the sale of consolidated real estate that is not defined as a busi-

participations and notes receivable are recognized on a level yield basis,

ness by generally accepted accounting principles. This typically includes the

where a level yield model is utilized to determine a yield rate which, based

sale of condominium units.

upon projected future cash flows, accretes interest income over the

Expenses

estimated holding period.

Commission and Marketing Expenses —Commission and marketing

Acquisition-Related Gains—Acquisition-related gains consist of gains recog-

expenses includes fees paid to third party sales and leasing agents as well

nized by the Company upon a GAAP required fair value measurement due to

as business development costs necessary to generate revenues.

a business combination. These gains are typically recognized when the

Rental Operating Expenses—Rental and operating expenses consists of
operating expenses of our consolidated real estate investments, including
items such as property taxes, insurance, maintenance and repairs, utilities,
supplies, salaries and management fees.
Compensation and Related Expenses—Compensation and related expenses
include: (a) employee compensation, comprising of salary, bonus, employer
payroll taxes and benefits paid on behalf of employees and (b) share-based
compensation associated with the grants of share-based awards.

Company converts a loan into consolidated real estate owned and the fair
value of the underlying real estate exceeds the basis in the previously held
loan. These gains also arise when there is a change of control of an investment. The gain amount is based upon the fair value of the Company’s equity
in the investment in excess of the carrying amount of the equity directly
preceding the change of control.
Acquisition-Related Expenses—Acquisition-related expenses consists of the
costs incurred to acquire assets, such as stamp duty taxes on foreign transactions, as well as the write off of any costs associated with acquisitions
which did not materialize.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Interest Expense–Corporate Debt—Interest expense–corporate debt repre-

Adjusted EBITDA (2) —Represents EBITDA, as defined above, adjusted to

sents interest costs associated with our senior notes payable, junior subordi-

exclude acquisition and merger-related expenses and stock-based compen-

nated debentures and line of credit facility. This debt is unsecured and

sation expense. Our management uses Adjusted EBITDA to analyze our busi-

we typically use the funds generated from corporate borrowings to fund

ness because it adjusts EBITDA for items we believe do not have an accurate

new investments.

reflection of the nature of our business going forward. Additionally, we believe

Interest Expense–Mortgage Debt—Interest expense–mortgage debt represents interest costs associated with mortgages on our consolidated
real estate. These mortgages are typically secured by the underlying real
estate collateral.

Adjusted EBITDA is useful to investors to assist them in getting a more accurate picture of our results from operations. Such items may vary for different
companies for reasons unrelated to overall operating performance.
(1)

EBITDA, as defined above, is not a recognized term under GAAP and

does not purport to be an alternative to net earnings as a measure of oper-

Realized Foreign Currency Exchange Income or Loss—Realized foreign

ating performance or to cash flows from operating activities as a measure

currency exchange income or loss relates to the settlement of foreign

of liquidity. Additionally, EBITDA is not intended to be a measure of free

transactions during the year and arise due to changes in currency

cash flow available for management’s discretionary use, as it does not con-

exchange rates.

sider certain cash requirements such as interest payments, tax payments

Income Taxes—The Company’s services business operates globally as corporate entities subject to federal, state, and local income taxes and the
investment business operates through various partnership structures to participate in multifamily, office and residential property acquisitions as well as
originate loans and purchases loan pools. The Company’s distributive share
of income from its partnership investments will be subject to federal, state,
and local taxes at the entity level and the related tax provision attributable to
the Company’s share of the income tax is reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

and debt service requirements. Our presentation of EBITDA has limitations
as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a
substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. EBITDA is not
calculated under GAAP and should not be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for net income, cash flows or other financial data prepared in
accordance with GAAP or as a measure of our overall profitability or liquidity. Such items may vary for different companies for reasons unrelated to
overall operating performance.
Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA, as defined above, adjusted to
exclude corporate merger and acquisition-related expenses and share-based

Noncontrolling Interests—Noncontrolling interests represents income or loss

compensation expense for the Company. Such items may vary for different

attributable to equity partners for their ownership in investments which the

companies for reasons unrelated to overall operating performance. However,

Company controls. Income or loss is attributed to noncontrolling interest

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not recognized measurements under

partners based on their respective ownership interest in an investment.

GAAP and when analyzing our operating performance, readers should use
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in addition to, and not as an alternative for, net

NON-GAAP MEASURES

income as determined in accordance with GAAP. Because not all companies

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

use identical calculations, our presentation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

EBITDA (1) —EBITDA represents net income before noncontrolling interest
income, interest expense, our share of interest expense included in income
from investments in joint ventures and loan pool participations, depreciation
and amortization, our share of depreciation and amortization included in
income from investments in joint ventures, loss on early extinguishment of
corporate debt and income taxes. We do not adjust EBITDA for gains or
losses on the extinguishment of mortgage debt as we are in the business of
purchasing discounted notes secured by real estate and, in connection with
these note purchases, we may resolve these loans through discounted payoffs with the borrowers. Our management believes EBITDA is useful in evaluating our operating performance compared to that of other companies in our
industry because the calculation of EBITDA generally eliminates the effects
of financing and income taxes and the accounting effects of capital spending
and acquisitions.
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may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.
Furthermore, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not intended to be a measure of free cash flow for our management’s discretionary use, as it does not
consider certain cash requirements such as tax and debt service payments.
The amounts shown for EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA also differ from the
amounts calculated under similarly titled definitions in our debt instruments,
which are further adjusted to reflect certain other cash and non-cash
charges and are used to determine compliance with financial covenants and
our ability to engage in certain activities, such as incurring additional debt
and making certain restricted payments.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following table sets forth items derived from our consolidated statement of operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011:
Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

$18.1
36.0
4.0
10.0
43.0
10.1

$ 15.8
24.5
5.0
8.0
8.5
2.3

$12.6
14.5
5.8
24.2
5.1
0.4

121.2

64.1

62.6

3.6
18.9
7.9
76.7
24.6
17.4

4.6
4.5
2.2
55.8
19.5
4.9

4.0
3.3
0.4
41.1
14.5
2.8

149.1
29.8
13.5

91.5
21.5
9.2

66.1
12.5
8.0

15.4

3.3

17.0

Interest income
Interest income—related party
Acquisition-related gains
Gain on sale of marketable securities
Acquisition-related expenses
Interest expense—corporate debt
Interest expense—property level debt
Realized foreign currency exchange loss

0.3
0.3
56.6
—
(1.6)
(39.9)
(11.8)
(2.8)

0.1
2.8
25.5
4.3
(0.7)
(26.1)
(2.5)
—

0.4
2.0
6.3
—
—
(19.0)
(1.6)
—

Income from continuing operations before benefit from (provision for) income taxes
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes

16.5
(2.9)

6.7
0.2

5.1
2.0

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Gain (loss) from sale of real estate, net of income taxes

13.6
(0.3)
0.6

6.9
—
(0.2)

7.1
—
0.4

Net income
Net (income) attributable to the noncontrolling interests

13.9
(20.3)

6.7
(2.5)

7.5
(1.2)

(6.4)
(8.1)

4.2
(8.1)

6.3
(8.7)

Net loss attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders

$(14.5)

$ (3.9)

$ (2.4)

EBITDA (1)

$177.6

$ 92.1

$66.2

Adjusted EBITDA (2)

$185.1

$100.2

$71.3

(dollars in millions)

Revenue
Management and leasing fees
Management and leasing fees—related party
Commissions
Commissions—related party
Rental and other income
Sale of real estate
Total revenue

Operating Expenses
Commission and marketing expenses
Rental operating expense
Cost of real estate sold
Compensation and related expenses
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Interest income from loan pool participations and notes receivable
Operating income

Non-Operating Income (Expense)

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Preferred stock dividends and accretion of issuance costs

(1) (2) See Non-GAAP Measures section for definition of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)
The following compares results of operations for the years ended December

of $6.6 million in additional asset management fees earned on our U.K. Loan

31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and years ended December 31, 2012 and

Pool due to the expected resolution period being shortened to two years from

December 31, 2011.

the initial budget of three years. In addition, we earned $2.7 million in asset
management fees relating to a new loan pool in the United Kingdom that was

Our Consolidated Financial Results and Comparison of the

entered into in December 2012. Also during 2013, additional base manage-

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
Our revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were
$121.2 million and $64.1 million. Total operating expenses for the same
periods were $149.1 million and $91.5 million, respectively. Net loss attributable to our common shareholders was $14.5 million and $3.9 million in
2013 and 2012, respectively. EBITDA was $177.6 million and $92.1 million
in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Adjusted EBITDA was $185.1 million and
$100.2 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company achieved a

ment fees were earned mainly due to the admission of new investors into one
of our funds and as a result of our increased investment activity in the United
Kingdom and Ireland.
In 2013, our related party commission revenues were $10.0 million compared to approximately $8.0 million in 2012. The increase in commission
revenues are primarily driven by acquisition fees earned on increased
investment activity mainly in the United Kingdom and Ireland.

93% increase in EBITDA and a 85% increase in Adjusted EBITDA for the

Operating Expenses

year ended December 31, 2013 as compared to the same period in 2012.

Investments Segment Operating Expenses—Operating expenses for the year

Revenues

ended December 31, 2013 increased to $84.7 million compared to

Investments Segment Revenues—Rental and other income increased to
$43.0 million in 2013 from $8.5 million in 2012. The $34.5 million
increase is due to $18.1 million in rental income from new acquisitions
and consolidations in 2013 and $16.3 million from properties acquired at the
end of 2012.
During the year ended December 31, 2013, we sold 44 condominium
units generating $10.1 million of proceeds from the sale of real estate.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, we sold five condominium units,
generating $2.3 million of proceeds from the sale of real estate.

$41.3 million for the same period in 2012. The increase is attributable
to the following:
Compensation and related expenses increased by $9.3 million due to an
increase in personnel, particularly due to our growth and expansion in the
United Kingdom and Ireland, to source and execute on acquisition opportunities. Additionally, accrued discretionary compensation increased in connection with the increase in Investments EBITDA. General and administrative
expenses increased by $2.9 million primarily due to increased travel and
rental expense relating to our growing operations in the United Kingdom
and Ireland.
Rental operating expenses increased by $14.4 million and depreciation

Services Segment Revenues
Third Party Services—These are management and leasing fees as well as
commissions earned from third parties and relate to assets in which we do
not have an ownership interest.
Our third party management and leasing services revenues increased to
$18.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2013 as compared to

and amortization increased by $11.2 million due to the acquisitions during
2013 and the end of 2012.
During the year ended December 31, 2013 we sold 44 condominium units
which resulted in $7.9 million of sale-related costs. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, we sold five condominium units which resulted in $2.2

approximately $15.8 million for the same period in 2012. The $2.3 million

million of sale-related costs.

or 15% increase primarily relates to the acquisition in March 2012 of

Services Segment Operating Expenses—Operating expenses (excluding

Meyers, a real estate consultancy firm specializing in capital sourcing and

depreciation and amortization expense) for the year ended December 31,

real estate research for the single-family homebuilding and multifamily

2013 were approximately $40.7 million as compared to $33.1 million for the

apartment industries.

same period in 2012. The increase is attributable to the following:

Our third party commission revenues were at $4.0 million in 2013 as

Compensation and related expenses increased by $6.0 million due to an

compared to approximately $5.0 million in 2012. The decrease is driven by

increase in personnel and in accrued discretionary compensation. As a result

our auction services business which has historically been countercyclical.

of the expansion in our Meyers group, we increased our head count in order

Improvements in the U.S. real estate markets have caused auction service

to service the demand of our customers in the capital sourcing and real

revenues to decrease.

estate research for the single-family homebuilding and multifamily apartment

Related Party Services—Our related party management and leasing services

industries. Additionally, due to the growth in our Services EBITDA there was

generated revenues of $36.0 million in 2013 compared to $24.5 million

an increase in our accrued discretionary compensation.

in 2012. The $11.5 million, or 47%, increase primarily relates to an increase

K E N N E D Y - W I L S O N

H O L D I N G S ,

I N C .

A N D

S U B S I D I A R I E S

General and administrative expenses increased by $2.5 million primarily due to the growth of the Company specifically in the United Kingdom, Ireland,
and Meyers.
Commissions and marketing expenses decreased by $1.0 million due to the decrease in auction sales previously discussed.
Corporate Operating Expenses—Operating expenses (excluding depreciation and amortization expense) for the year ended December 31, 2013 were approximately $21.9 million as compared to $16.7 million for the same period in 2012. Compensation and related expenses increased by $5.5 million primarily due to
the increase in accrued discretionary compensation in connection with the increase in Adjusted EBITDA and the additional resources and costs associated with
growing the Company.
Investments Segment Equity in Joint Venture Income—The following table details summarized financial data for the Company’s portion of equity in joint venture
income by region for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
Years Ended December 31,

2013

(dollars in millions)

2012

U.S.

Europe

Japan

Total

U.S.

Europe

Japan

Total

$98.2
43.7
3.7

$23.8
11.4
1.5

$12.8
—
—

$134.8
55.1
5.2

$60.6
61.9
2.0

$ 1.9
—
2.0

$16.0
—
—

$78.5
61.9
4.0

Total revenue
Rental operating expense
Cost of real estate sold
Compensation and related expense
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization expense

145.6
47.6
33.1
—
—
31.2

36.7
6.2
8.6
—
0.8
11.3

12.8
3.1
—
0.8
0.9
4.2

195.1
56.9
41.7
0.8
1.7
46.7

124.5
22.7
52.8
—
—
16.5

3.9
0.5
—
—
0.8
0.9

16.0
4.1
—
0.9
—
5.2

144.4
27.3
52.8
0.9
0.8
22.6

Total operating expense
Acquisition-related gain
Fair value gain
Acquisition-related expenses
Carried interest on realized investment
Gain on sale of interest in joint venture investments
Gain on refinancing
Interest expense
Other non-operating income (expense)

111.9
—
5.1
(0.3)
—
—
—
(33.0)
2.3

26.9
36.2
—
(13.2)
—
—
—
(7.5)
(2.2)

9.0
—
—
—
—
—
—
(4.5)
(0.4)

147.8
36.2
5.1
(13.5)
—
—
—
(45.0)
(0.3)

92.0
—
9.5
(1.3)
2.4
2.3
1.5
(23.1)
(1.8)

2.2
—
—
(1.1)
—
—
—
(2.3)
(0.6)

10.2
—
—
—
—
—
—
(4.0)
—

104.4
—
9.5
(2.4)
2.4
2.3
1.5
(29.4)
(2.4)

$7.8

$23.1

$(1.1)

$29.8

$22.0

$(2.3)

$1.8

$21.5

Rental and other income
Sale of real estate
Interest income

Equity in joint venture income (loss)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Equity in joint ventures generated income of $29.8 million for the year

Non-Operating Items—Acquisition-related gains were $56.6 million for the

ended December 31, 2013, as compared to income of $21.5 million for the

year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $25.5 million for the same

same period in 2012. The income in 2013 and 2012 was primarily derived

period in 2012. The acquisition-related gains in 2013 are primarily attribut-

from conversions of loans into real estate, property sales and fair value gains

able to a $45.1 million gain on the consolidation of the Ritz-Carlton, Lake

as further discussed below.

Tahoe and a $9.5 million gain from acquiring a controlling interest in a mul-

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company and its equity

tifamily property in Northern California. The gain associated with the Ritz-

partners converted three loans into real estate which resulted in gains of

Carlton, Lake Tahoe is due to the Company and one of its equity partners

$72.5 million, of which $36.2 million was a gain to us and $36.3 million to

amending an existing operating agreement where the Company gained con-

our noncontrolling interest holders. In addition, there were gains of $57.1

trol of the property which was previously accounted for as an equity method

million, of which $13.4 million was a gain to us and $43.2 million of which to

investment. The gain associated with the multifamily property was triggered

our noncontrolling interest holders. Included in equity in joint venture income

when the Company acquired the interests of some of its equity partners

are one-time acquisition costs which are non-recurring. During the year

which increased the Company’s ownership from 15% to 94%. As a result of

ended December 31, 2013, approximately $13.5 million of acquisition costs

obtaining control of both properties and as the fair value was in excess of the

were included in equity in joint venture income.

carrying value of its ownership interests, the acquisition gains above were

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company and its equity

recognized. The acquisition-related gains in 2012 is mainly due to a change

partners sold six multifamily properties (through property sales and sale of

of control and thereby consolidation of KW Property Fund II, LP (“Fund II”), a

equity interest) located in the Western United States for a total of $251.7

limited partnership that had been previously accounted for using the equity

million, which resulted in a total gain of $33.7 million, of which $10.1 million

method. As the fair value was in excess of the carrying value of our equity

was a gain to us and $3.0 million to our noncontrolling interest holders. In

method ownership interest, we recorded an acquisition-related gain in the

addition, we recognized $9.4 million of unrealized fair value gains. During the

amount of $22.8 million.

year ended December 31, 2012, approximately $2.4 million of acquisition
costs were included in equity in joint venture income.
Our share of depreciation generated at the joint venture level was $46.7
million and $22.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Acquisition-related expenses were $1.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to $0.7 million for the same period in 2012.
The increase is due to increased acquisition activity and the write off of costs
associated with potential acquisitions which ultimately did not materialize.

We look at equity in joint venture income plus our share of the joint ventures

Interest expense associated with corporate debt was $39.9 million in

depreciation to get a better sense of earnings before depreciation and amor-

2013 as compared to $26.1 million in 2012. The increase is due to the issu-

tization. The amounts were $76.5 million and $44.1 million for the year

ance of an additional $100.0 million aggregate principal of the 2019 Notes

ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 representing a 73% increase.

and $55.0 million aggregate principal of the 2042 Notes which both occurred

Investments Segment Income from Loan Pool Participations and Notes
Receivable —Income from loan pool participations and notes receivable
generated income of $13.5 million in 2013 as compared to $9.2 million
in 2012.
We have acquired three additional loan pools in the United Kingdom and
one in Ireland since August 2012, which together provided $2.3 million of
additional interest income during the year ended December 31, 2013.
We accreted an additional $0.6 million of interest income on our U.K. Loan
Pool as compared to the same period in 2012 due to the expected resolution
period being shortened to two years from the initial budget of three years.
Additionally, we had a $2.6 million increase in accreted income from loan
pools in the Western United States due to an increase in resolution periods
on one pool in 2012 which led to a decrease in accreted income for the year
ended December 31, 2012. Offsetting these increases in the year ended
December 31, 2013 was a $1.2 million decrease in interest income on our
notes receivable mainly due to a note we held on a multifamily property that
was converted to real estate at the end of 2012.
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in December 2012. The revolving line of credit had a higher average balance
outstanding and committed amount available which both lead to increases in
interest expense as well.
Interest expense associated with the mortgage loans was $11.8 million in
2013 as compared to $2.5 million. The increase is due to the acquisitions
during 2013 and the end of 2012.
There were no gains on marketable securities during the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to $4.3 million during 2012. The gain in the
prior period related to the sale of the Company’s investment in the ordinary
stock of the Bank of Ireland.
Foreign currency translation loss was $2.8 million during the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to no comparable activity in the prior period
due to the recognition of foreign currency loss on the U.K. Loan Pool as the
investment was substantially liquidated at the end of 2013.

Provision for income taxes was $2.9 million in 2013 as compared to a

management division of the Bank of Ireland in the latter half of 2011 which

benefit from income taxes of $0.2 million in 2012 due to higher taxable

provided asset management fees of $3.2 million during the year ended

income in the United States. The Company had $114.4 million and $73.2

December 31, 2012 as compared to approximately $1.4 million for the same

million of federal and state net operating losses as of December 31, 2013.

period in 2011. In addition, in March 2012, we acquired a real estate consul-

We had net income of $20.3 million attributable to a noncontrolling inter-

tancy firm specializing in capital sourcing and real estate research for the

ests in 2013 compared to $2.5 million in 2012. The increase is due to $22.6

single family homebuilding and multifamily apartment industries which

million of the Ritz-Carlton, Lake Tahoe acquisition-related gain described

generated $1.2 million in management fees.

above being allocated to the Company’s noncontrolling equity partner. This

Our third party commission revenues was at $5.0 million in 2012 as com-

was offset by interest and depreciation expense associated with Fund II

pared to approximately $5.8 million in 2011. During 2012, we had a

being allocated to noncontrolling interest holders. During 2012 the net

decrease in auction sales as compared to 2011. Our auction services busi-

income attributable to noncontrolling interest holders was primarily due to a

ness has historically been countercyclical and improvements in general

gain from the sale of a multifamily property.

economic conditions caused auction service revenues to decrease.

Our Consolidated Financial Results and Comparison of the

Related Party Services—These are management and leasing fees as well as

Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

commissions earned from our equity partners and relate to assets in which

Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were $64.1

we have an ownership interest.

million and $62.6 million. Total operating expenses for the same periods

Our related party management and leasing services generated revenues

were $91.5 million and $66.1 million, respectively. Net loss attributable to

of $24.5 million in 2012 compared to approximately $14.5 million in 2011.

our common shareholders was $3.9 million and $2.4 million in 2012 and

The $10.0 million, or 68%, increase primarily relates to our acquisition of the

2011, respectively. EBITDA was $92.1 million and $66.2 million in 2012

U.K.-based loan pool in the latter half of 2011, which provided additional

and 2011, respectively. Adjusted EBITDA was $100.2 million and $71.3 mil-

asset management fees of $8.4 million in 2012. In addition, as a result of

lion in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company achieved a 39% increase

our acquisition activity in the latter half of 2011, and during 2012, we have

in EBITDA and a 41% increase in adjusted EBITDA for the year ended

generated an additional $1.6 million in management and leasing fees.

December 31, 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011.

In 2012, our related party commission revenues were $8.0 million compared to approximately $24.2 million in 2011. Our commission revenues are

Revenues

primarily driven by fees related to the acquisition of the $2.1 billion U.K.-

Investments Segment Revenues—Rental and other income increased to

based loan portfolio. During 2012, we recognized $4.4 million of acquisition

$8.5 million in 2012 from $5.1 million in 2011. The $3.4 million increase is

fees related to certain debt hurdles achieved in the U.K.-based loan portfolio

primarily due to the acquisition of three apartment buildings and one office

as compared to $13.3 million in 2011. During 2011, we received $8.3 million

building in the Western United States during 2012. Additionally, we acquired

of fees related to the $1.5 billion recapitalization of the Bank of Ireland. We

an approximately 200,000 square foot office portfolio in Oakland, California

did not receive such fees in 2012.

in the latter half of 2011 which contributed to the increase in rental and other
income in 2012.

Operating Expenses

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we sold five condominium

Investments Segment Operating Expenses —Operating expenses for the

units generating $2.3 million of proceeds from the sale of real estate. During

year ended December 31, 2012 increased to $41.3 million compared

the year ended December 31, 2011, we sold a land parcel in Kent,

to $21.7 million for the same period in 2011. The increase is attributable to

Washington, generating $0.4 million of proceeds in sale of real estate.

the following:
Compensation and related expenses increased by $10.8 million and gen-

Services Segment Revenues

eral and administrative expenses increased by $3.7 million due to growth in

Third Party Services—These are management and leasing fees as well as

the Company, including an increase in personnel, particularly due to our

commissions earned from third parties and relate to assets in which we do

expansion in the United Kingdom and Ireland, to source and execute on

not have an ownership interest.

acquisition opportunities. We began our operations in the United Kingdom

Our third party management and leasing services increased to $15.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to approxi-

and Ireland in June 2011 and have doubled our headcount there since
December 31, 2011.

mately $12.6 million for the same period in 2011. The $3.2 million or 26%
increase primarily relates to our acquisitions of the real estate investment
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Rental operating expenses increased by $1.2 million and depreciation and

San Jose, California, the acquisition of additional membership interests in a

amortization increased by $2.0 million due to the acquisition of three apart-

joint venture that we account for using the fair value option, the sale of

ment buildings and one office building in the Western United States during

a 286-unit apartment complex in Anaheim, California and unrealized fair

2012. Additionally, we acquired an approximate 200,000 square foot office

value gains.

portfolio in Oakland, California in the latter half of 2011 which contributed to

Our share of depreciation generated at the joint venture level was $22.6

the increase in rental operating expenses and depreciation and amortization

million and $13.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,

in 2012.

respectively. We look at equity in joint venture income plus our share of the

During the year ended December 31, 2012 we sold five condominium

joint ventures depreciation to get a better sense of earnings before deprecia-

units which resulted in $2.2 million of sale-related costs. During the year

tion and amortization. These amounts were $44.1 million and $26.4 million

ended December 31, 2011, a land parcel in Kent, Washington was sold

for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, representing

which resulted in $0.4 million of sale-related costs.

a 67% increase.

Services Segment Operating Expenses —Operating expenses (excluding

Investments Segment Income from Loan Pool Participations and Notes

depreciation and amortization expense) for the year ended December 31,

Receivable—Income from loan pool participations and notes receivable gen-

2012 were approximately $33.1 million as compared to $31.4 million for the

erated income of $9.2 million in 2012 as compared to $8.0 million in 2011.

same period in 2011. The increase is attributable to the following:

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we accreted $8.0 million of

Commissions and marketing expenses increased by $0.6 million as a
result of an increase in third party services used to generate new business.

interest income on our U.K.-based loan pool. Additionally, we accreted or
recognized $6.1 million of interest income from new loan pools or notes

General and administrative expenses increased by $1.2 million primarily

originated or acquired in the Western United States during 2012. These

due to the growth of our company specifically in the United Kingdom and

increases were offset by a $4.5 million decrease in accretion income recog-

Ireland. We began our operations in the United Kingdom and Ireland in June

nized during the same period on a loan pool purchased during 2010 due to

2011 and have doubled our headcount there since December 31, 2011.

an increase in the estimated resolution periods as well as foreclosure on

Corporate Operating Expenses—Operating expenses (excluding depreciation
and amortization expense) for the year ended December 31, 2012 were
approximately $16.7 million as compared to $12.6 million for the same
period in 2011. Compensation and related expenses increased by $3.9 million
primarily due to the growth of our company.

tures generated income of $21.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2012, as compared to income of $12.5 million for the same period in 2011.
The income in 2012 and 2011 was primarily derived from property sales and
fair value gains as further discussed below.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company and its equity
partners sold six multifamily properties (through property sales and sale of
equity interest) located in the Western United States for a total of $251.7 million, which resulted in a total gain of $33.7 million, of which $10.1 million was
a gain to us and $3.0 million to our noncontrolling interest holders. In addition, we recognized $9.4 million of unrealized fair value gains. Included in
equity in joint venture income are one-time acquisition costs which are nonrecurring. During the year ended December 31, 2012, approximately $2.4
million of acquisition costs were included in equity in joint venture income.
During the year ended December 31, 2011, the joint venture income
was primarily attributable to fair value gains recognized in connection with
the foreclosure by one of our joint ventures on a first trust deed position
it held followed by its taking ownership of a class A multifamily project in

H O L D I N G S ,

we have accreted to date a profit of $4.7 million on this loan pool.
During the year ended December 31, 2011, we accreted $1.4 million of
interest income on our U.K.-based loan pool which we acquired in the last
quarter of 2011. Additionally, we accreted or recognized $5.6 million of
interest income from our loan pools in the Western United States.

Investments Segment Equity in Joint Venture Income—Equity in joint ven-
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certain underlying real estate collateral. Even with this decrease in accretion
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Non-Operating Items—Acquisition-related gains were $25.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $6.3 million for the same period
in 2011. The acquisition-related gains in 2012 were primarily attributable to a
change of control and thereby consolidation of KW Property Fund II, LP, a
limited partnership that had been previously accounted for using the equity
method. As the fair value was in excess of the carrying value of our equity
method ownership interest, we recorded an acquisition-related gain in the
amount of $22.8 million. The acquisition-related gain in 2011 was primarily
attributed to a gain recognized in connection with the assumption of debt
of an office portfolio in Oakland, California. Since the fair value of the real
estate acquired was greater than the liability assumed, a gain was recorded.
Interest expense associated with corporate debt was $26.1 million in
2012 as compared to $19.0 million in 2011. The increase is primarily attributable to the $250 million senior notes issued in April 2011 and the additional $100 million issued in December 2012 bearing interest at a rate of
8.75% per annum and the $55 million senior notes issued in December
2012 bearing interest at 7.75% per annum.

S U B S I D I A R I E S

Interest expense on consolidated properties was $2.5 million in 2012 as compared to $1.6 million in 2011. In addition, we incurred additional interest
expense associated with the mortgage loans on the acquisition of three apartment buildings and one office building in the Western United States during 2012.
Benefit from income taxes was $0.2 million in 2012 as compared to $2.0 million in 2011.
We had net income of $2.5 million attributable to a noncontrolling interest in 2012 compared to $1.2 million in 2011. During 2012 the net income attributable
to noncontrolling interest holders was primarily due to a gain from the sale of a multifamily property. During 2011, a majority of the net income attributable to
noncontrolling interest holders related to entities which were consolidated at that time. As a result of a restructuring in December 2011, these entities were no
longer consolidated as of December 31, 2011.
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA
We use certain non-GAAP measures to analyze our business, including EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA. We use these metrics for evaluating the success of
our company and believe that they enhance the understanding of our operating results. A reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA is
presented below:
Year Ended December 31,
(dollars in millions)

Net income (loss)
Add back:
Interest expense—corporate debt
Interest expense—property level debt
Kennedy Wilson’s share of interest expense included in investment in
   joint ventures and loan pool participations
Depreciation and amortization
Kennedy Wilson’s share of depreciation and amortization included in
   investment in joint ventures
Loss on early extinguishment of corporate debt
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes
EBITDA (1)
Add back:
Merger-related compensation expenses
Share-based compensation
Adjusted EBITDA (2)

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

$13.9

$6.7

$ 7.5

$ 6.5

$ (9.7)

39.9
11.8

26.1
2.5

19.0
1.6

7.0
0.7

8.1
5.1

45.0
17.4

29.5
4.9

23.5
2.7

13.8
1.6

10.5
1.1

46.7
—
2.9

22.6
—
(0.2)

13.9
—
(2.0)

10.0
4.8
3.7

7.5
—
(4.0)

177.6

92.1

66.2

48.1

18.6

—
7.5

—
8.1

—
5.1

2.2
8.1

16.1
2.3

$185.1

$100.2

$71.3

$58.4

$37.0

(1) (2) See definitions in Non-GAAP Measures discussion.
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The following summarizes revenue, operating expenses, non-operating
expenses, operating income (loss) and net income (loss) and calculates
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA by our investments, services and corporate

Year Ended December 31,

Investments
Rental and other income and sale of real estate (3)
Operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Interest income from loan pool participations
and notes receivable
Operating income
Other non-operating income (expense) and
discontinued operations
Acquisition-related gain
Interest expense—property level debt
Income before (provision for) benefit from
income taxes
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Add back:
Interest expense—property level debt
 Kennedy Wilson’s share of interest expense
included in investment in joint ventures
and loan pool participation
Depreciation and amortization
 Kennedy Wilson’s share of depreciation and
amortization included in investment in
joint ventures
EBITDA (1) and Adjusted EBITDA (2)

2013

2012

2011

$53.1
84.7
29.8

$10.8
41.3
21.5

$5.5
21.7
12.5

13.5

9.3

8.0

11.7

0.3

4.3

(3.8)
56.6
(11.8)

6.3
25.5
(2.5)

2.4
6.3
(1.6)

52.7

29.6

Operating income
Income before (provision for) benefit from
income taxes
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Add back:
Depreciation and amortization
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA
(1)

(2)

(1) (2) See definitions in Non-GAAP Measures discussion.
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2012

2011

$(22.4)

$(17.0)

$(12.8)

(22.4)
0.3
(39.9)
(2.9)

(17.0)
0.2
(26.1)
0.2

(12.8)
0.3
(19.0)
2.0

Net loss
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Add back:
Interest expense—corporate debt
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes

(64.9)

(42.7)

(29.5)

39.9
0.5
2.9

26.1
0.3
(0.2)

19.0
0.2
(2.0)

EBITDA (1)
Add back:
Share-based compensation

(21.6)

(16.5)

(12.3)

7.5

8.1

5.1

$(14.1)

$(8.4)

$(7.2)

11.4
(1) (2) See definitions in Non-GAAP Measures discussion.

11.8

2.5

1.6

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Our liquidity and capital resources requirements include acquisitions of real

45.0
15.6

29.4
4.4

23.5
2.4

estate and real estate related assets, capital expenditures for consolidated
real estate and joint venture investments and working capital needs. We
finance these operations with internally generated funds, borrowings under
our revolving line of credit and sales of equity and debt securities. Our invest-

46.7

22.6

13.9

ments in real estate are typically financed with equity from our balance sheet

$171.8

$88.5

$52.8

and mortgage loans secured primarily by that real estate. These mortgage
loans are generally nonrecourse in that, in the event of default, recourse will
be limited to the mortgaged property serving as collateral, subject to limited

Year Ended December 31,

Services
Management and leasing fees and commissions
Operating expenses

2013

Operating loss
Interest income
Interest expense—corporate debt
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes

Adjusted EBITDA (2)

(1) (2) See definitions in Non-GAAP Measures discussion.
(3) Consolidated results.

(dollars in millions)

(dollars in millions)

Corporate:
Operating expenses

operating segments years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011:

(dollars in millions)

Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

$68.1
42.0

$53.3
33.3

$57.1
31.5

26.1

20.0

25.6

26.1

20.0

25.6

1.3

0.2

0.1

$27.4

$20.2

$25.7

customary exceptions. In some cases, we guarantee a portion of the loan
related to a consolidated property or a joint venture investment, usually until
some condition, such as completion of construction or leasing or certain net
operating income criteria, has been met. We do not expect these guarantees
to materially affect liquidity or capital resources. Please refer to the “OffBalance Sheet Arrangements” section for further information. Historically, we
have not required significant capital resources to support our brokerage and
property management operations.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents plus capital gener-

Currency Derivative Instruments

ated from property management and leasing, brokerage, sales of real estate

Fluctuations in currency exchange rates may affect our financial position

owned, collections from notes receivable and loan pools, as well as our cur-

and results of operations. We enter into currency forward contracts to man-

rent revolving line of credit, will provide us with sufficient capital requirements

age our exposure to currency fluctuations between our functional currency

to maintain our current portfolio for at least the next twelve months.

(the U.S. dollar) and the functional currency (euros, British pound sterling,

To the extent that we engage in additional strategic investments, including real estate, note portfolios, or acquisitions of other real estate related

and Japanese yen) of certain of our wholly-owned subsidiaries and joint
venture investments.

companies, we may need to obtain third party financing which could include

For 2013 and 2012, we recorded a gain, net of taxes, of $3.1 million and

bank financing or the public sale or private placement of debt or equity

$5.7 million, respectively, in other comprehensive income as the portion of

securities. In addition, in January 2014, the Company completed an offering

the currency forward contract used to hedge the currency exposure of cer-

of 9.2 million shares of its common stock, which raised $190.8 million of

tain of our wholly-owned subsidiaries qualifies as a net investment hedge

net proceeds.

under ASC Topic 815.

Under our current joint venture strategy, we generally contribute property
expertise and a fully funded initial cash contribution, with commitments to
provide additional funding. Capital required for additional improvements and
supporting operations during leasing and stabilization periods is generally
obtained at the time of acquisition via debt financing or third party investors.

Cash Flows
The following table summarizes the cash provided by or used in our operating, investing and financing activities for the years ended December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012:
Year Ended December 31,

Accordingly, we generally do not have significant capital commitments with
unconsolidated entities. However, there may be certain circumstances when
we, usually with the other members of the joint venture entity, may be
required to contribute additional capital for a period of time.
Our need to raise funds from time to time to meet our capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the success and pace of the
implementation of our strategy for strategic and accretive growth. We regularly monitor capital-raising alternatives to be able to take advantage of other
available avenues to support our working capital and investment needs,
including strategic partnerships and other alliances, bank borrowings, and
the sale of equity or debt securities. We expect to meet the repayment obligations of our senior notes and borrowing under our line of credit from cash
generated by our business activities, including the sale of assets and the
refinancing of debt.
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company generated a
book loss of $10.6 million related to operations in the United Kingdom and
Ireland. A foreign tax benefit of $2.1 million is included in the consolidated
tax provision for income taxes related to the portion of income earned
directly by subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and Ireland for the year ended
December 31, 2013. U.S. domestic taxes have not been provided for in the

(dollars in millions)

Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities

2013

2012

$31.3
(348.8)
371.4

$16.7
(399.7)
388.4

Operating—Our cash flows from operating activities are primarily dependent
upon the operating distributions from our joint venture investments and loan
pool participations, revenues from our services business net of operating
expenses, payment of interest expense on the Company’s corporate and
consolidated property debt, and other general and administrative costs. Net
cash provided by operating activities totaled $31.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013 as compared to net cash provided by operating activities
of $16.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.
The increase was mainly due to operating distributions from our joint venture investments and loan pool participations of $67.7 million and the collection of $10.7 million in accounts receivable. The largest collection related to
the promote fees associated with the UK Loan Pool, of which the Company
collected $23.2 million in 2013. These were offset by the payment of $49.7
million in interest expense on our corporate debt, accrued expenses and

consolidated tax provision on amounts earned directly by these subsidiaries

other liabilities and prepayment of expenses.

since it is the Company’s plan to indefinitely invest amounts earned by these

Investing—Our cash flows from investing activities are generally effected by

subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and Ireland operations. If these subsidiar-

cash used to fund investments in our joint ventures and loan pool participa-

ies’ cumulative earnings were repatriated to the United States additional U.S.

tions, property acquisitions and capital expenditures, notes receivable

domestic taxes of $2.5 million would be incurred. Additionally, approximately

secured by real estate, and investments in marketable securities as well as

$38.5 million of our consolidated cash and cash equivalents is held by our

cash received from dispositions, resolutions and other distributions of these

subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and Ireland.

investments. Net cash used in investing activities totaled $348.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2013. We invested $322.7 million of equity in
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)
joint ventures of which $265.5 million was for new investments and $57.2

2.7 million warrants. This was offset by payments of cash dividends of $24.1

million for contributions to existing joint venture investments to pay off exter-

million to our common and preferred shareholders and $5.2 million for the

nal debt, fund our share of a development project, and for working capital

repurchase of Company’s common stock and warrants.

needs. Of the new investments, $216.1 million was for 56 commercial prop-

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $388.4 million for

erties in Ireland and the United Kingdom, one multifamily property in Ireland,

the year ended December 31, 2012. This was primarily due to proceeds of

and a servicing business in Spain. The remaining $49.4 million of new

$106.2 million received from the issuance of 8.6 million shares of common

investments was for four commercial properties, two multifamily properties,

stock primarily to institutional investors, the issuance of $155.0 million of

and three projects all in the Western United States. We invested $168.5 mil-

senior notes which generated $160.3 million in proceeds, $157.7 million

lion in the acquisitions of consolidated real estate relating to three multifamily

of proceeds from mortgage loans to finance consolidated property acquisi-

and four commercial properties in the Western United States as well as one

tions. These were offset by payments of cash dividends of $21.9 million to

commercial property in Ireland. In addition, we invested $96.6 million to fund

our common and preferred shareholders and a $4.9 million distribution

our equity in new and existing notes receivable and loan pool participations.

to noncontrolling interest holders as a result of the sale of a 180-unit

The cash used in the aforementioned investing activities was offset by

apartment building.

$93.9 million in distributions from our loan pools primarily due to loan reso-

Since our common stock became listed on the NYSE in November 2009,

lutions and the receipt of $81.5 million in distributions from our joint ven-

cumulative preferred and common dividends declared were $32.6 million

tures. The $81.5 million of distributions is comprised of refinancing of

and $39.2 million, respectively, and are included as a component of retained

property level debt of $52.9 million, $15.6 million from the sale of underlying

earnings in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and consolidated

properties, and $10.8 million from the settlement of several Japanese yen-

statement of equity.

related hedges. In addition, we received $46.0 million due to the settlement
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL

of notes receivable.
Net cash used in investing activities totaled $399.7 million for the year

COMMITMENTS

ended December 31, 2012. We invested $119.0 million in the acquisitions of

At December 31, 2013, our contractual cash obligations, including debt,

consolidated real estate primarily related to the purchase of the three multi-

lines of credit, and operating leases included the following:

family properties and one commercial property in the Western United States.

Payments Due by Period

We also invested $178.7 million of equity in joint ventures of which $149.5
Total

Less Than
1 Year

1–3
Years

4–5
Years

After 5
Years

Contractual obligations
Borrowings: (1)
Mortgage loans and
  notes payable (2)
Senior notes (3)
Subordinated debt

$402.4
405.0
40.0

$38.7
—
—

$94.9
—
—

$28.0
350.0
—

$240.8
55.0
40.0

and sale of equity interest) located in the Western United States. In addition,

Total borrowings

847.4

38.7

94.9

378.0

335.8

we received $58.1 million in distributions from our loan pools primarily due

Operating leases

10.1

3.3

3.2

1.4

2.2

to loan resolutions. Lastly, we sold our marketable securities which provided

Total contractual
cash obligations

$857.5

$42.0

$98.1

$379.4

$338.0

million was invested in the acquisition of nine income producing multifamily
and residential properties and 11 income producing commercial properties
located primarily in the Western United States and Ireland. In addition, we
invested $257.9 million to fund our equity in loan pool participations and
notes receivables. The cash used in the aforementioned investing activities
was offset by receipt of $38.7 million in distributions from our joint ventures
primarily due to the sale of six multifamily properties (through property sales

$34.1 million.
Financing—Our net cash related to financing activities is generally impacted

financing activities totaled $371.4 million for the year ended December 31,

(1) S ee Notes 10-13 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Figures do
not include scheduled interest payments. Assuming each debt obligation is held until
maturity, we estimate that we will make the following interest payments: Less than
1 year—$55.5 million; 1-3 years—$153.8 million; 4-5 years— $79.5 million; After
5 years— $143.6 million. The interest payments on variable rate debt have been
calculated at the interest rate in effect as of December 31, 2013.

2013. This was primarily due to proceeds of $275.9 million received from

(2) Excludes $5.3 million of unamortized debt premiums on mortgage loan payables.

the issuance of 17.3 million shares of common stock primarily to institutional

(3) Excludes $4.0 million of net unamortized debt premium on senior notes.

by our consolidated corporate and property level borrowings and capital
raising activities net of dividends and distributions paid to common and preferred shareholders and noncontrolling interests. Net cash provided by

investors, $112.5 million of proceeds from mortgage loans to finance
consolidated property acquisitions, and $15.4 million from the exercise of
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Indebtedness and Related Covenants

specified in the indenture. Until April 1, 2014, the issuer may choose to

The following describes our corporate indebtedness and related covenants.

redeem the 2019 Notes in an amount not to exceed in aggregate 35% of the

Junior Subordinated Debentures
In 2007, Kennedy Wilson issued junior subordinated debentures in the
amount of $40.0 million. The debentures were issued to a trust established
by Kennedy Wilson, which contemporaneously issued $40.0 million of trust
preferred securities to Merrill Lynch International. The interest rate on the
debentures is fixed for the first ten years at 9.06% and variable thereafter at
LIBOR plus 3.70%. Interest is payable quarterly, with the principal due in
2037. Kennedy Wilson may redeem the debentures, in whole or in part, on
any interest payment date at par.

original principal amount of the 2019 Notes together with any additional
2019 Notes issued under the indenture with money the issuer or KennedyWilson Holdings, Inc. raises in certain equity offerings. The amount of the
2019 Notes included in the consolidated balance sheets, net of unamortized
discount and premium, was $354.0 million at December 31, 2013.
In December 2012, Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. completed a public offering of
$55.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.750% Senior Notes due 2042
(the “2042 Notes”). The 2042 Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture
dated as of November 28, 2012, by and among Kennedy-Wilson, Inc., as
issuer, Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc., as parent guarantor, certain subsid-

Borrowings Under Line of Credit

iaries of the issuer, as subsidiary guarantors and Wilmington Trust National

In September 2013, Kennedy-Wilson, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of

Association, as trustee, as amended by various subsequent supplemental

Kennedy Wilson, amended its existing unsecured revolving credit facility with

indentures. The issuer’s obligations under the 2042 Notes are fully and

U.S. Bank and East-West Bank which increased the total principal amount

unconditionally guaranteed by Kennedy Wilson and certain subsidiary guar-

available to be borrowed by an additional $40.0 million, for an aggregate

antors. At any time prior to December 1, 2017, the issuer may redeem the

availability of $140.0 million. The loan bears interest at a rate equal to LIBOR

2042 Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of their

plus 2.75% and the maturity date was extended to October 1, 2016. As of

principal amount, plus an applicable “make-whole” premium and accrued

December 31, 2013, the unsecured credit facility was undrawn and $140.0

and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. At any time and from time

million was still available.

to time on or after December 1, 2017, the issuer may redeem the

Senior Notes Payable
In April 2011, Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. issued $200.0 million in aggregate principal amount of its 8.750% Senior Notes due 2019, for approximately
$198.6 million, net of discount. An additional $50.0 million in aggregate
principal amount of its 8.750% Senior Notes due 2019 was issued in April
2011 for approximately $50.8 million, net of premium. In December 2012,
Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. issued an additional $100.0 million aggregate principal

2042 Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of their
principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption
date. Interest on the 2042 Notes accrues at a rate of 7.750% per annum and
is payable quarterly in arrears on March 1, June 1, September 1 and
December 1 of each year. The 2042 Notes will mature on December 1, 2042.
The amount of the 2042 Notes included in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets was $55.0 million at December 31, 2013.

amount of these 8.750% senior notes for approximately $105.3 million, net

Debt Covenants

of premium and pre-issuance accrued interest. Collectively, these notes are

The junior subordinated debentures, the unsecured credit facility with U.S.

referred to as “the 2019 Notes.” The terms of the 2019 Notes are governed

Bank, East-West Bank and the Bank of Ireland and the indenture governing

by an indenture, dated as of April 5, 2011, by and among the issuer,

the 2019 Notes and 2042 Notes contain numerous restrictive covenants

Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc, as parent guarantor; certain subsidiaries of

that, among other things, limit Kennedy Wilson’s and certain of its subsidiar-

the issuer, as subsidiary guarantors; and Wilmington Trust National

ies’ ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends or make distribu-

Association (as successor to Wilmington Trust FSB), as amended by various

tions to stockholders, repurchase capital stock or debt, make investments,

subsequent supplemental indentures. The 2019 Notes bear interest at

sell assets or subsidiary stock, create or permit liens on assets, engage in

8.750% per annum. Interest is payable on April 1 and October 1 of each

transactions with affiliates, enter into sale/leaseback transactions, issue

year, until the maturity date of April 1, 2019. The issuer’s obligations under

subsidiary equity and enter into consolidations or mergers. The unsecured

the 2019 Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Kennedy-Wilson

credit facility and junior subordinated debentures also require Kennedy

Holdings, Inc. and certain subsidiary guarantors. At any time prior to April 1,

Wilson to maintain a minimum tangible net worth and a specified amount of

2015, the issuer may redeem the 2019 Notes, in whole or in part, at a price

cash and cash equivalents.

equal to 100% of the principal amount, plus an applicable “make-whole”

The junior subordinated debentures require Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. to main-

premium and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. At

tain (i) a fixed charge coverage ratio (as defined in the indenture governing

any time and from time to time on or after April 1, 2015, the issuer may

the junior subordinated debentures) of not less than 1.75 to 1.00, measured

redeem the 2019 Notes, in whole or in part, at the redemption prices

on a four-quarter rolling basis; (ii) a ratio of total debt to net worth
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(as defined in the indenture) of not greater than 3.00 to 1.00 at any time;

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

(iii) a tangible net worth (as defined in the indenture) not less than the sum

Guarantees—We have provided guarantees associated with loans secured

of (x) $15.0 million, plus (y) 60% of any net income (but only if a positive

by assets held in various joint venture partnerships. The maximum potential

number) for each completed fiscal quarter beginning with the fiscal quarter

amount of future payments (undiscounted) we could be required to make

ended March 31, 2007 until such time as our net worth equals or exceeds

under the guarantees was approximately $51.1 million at December 31,

$75.0 million and then 50% of any net income for each completed fiscal

2013. The guarantees expire by the year end of 2017 and our performance

quarter thereafter, plus (z) 50% of all proceeds of equity interests issued by

under the guarantees would be required to the extent there is a shortfall in

us or our subsidiaries after the date the debentures were issued; and (iv) a

liquidation between the principal amount of the loan and the net sales pro-

net worth (as defined in the indenture) not less than the sum of (x) $40.0

ceeds of the property. If we were to become obligated to perform on these

million, plus (y) 60% of any net income (but only if a positive number) for

guarantees, it could have an adverse affect on our financial condition.

each completed fiscal quarter beginning with the fiscal quarter ended

As of December 31, 2013, we have a unfulfilled capital commitments

March 31, 2007 until such time as our net worth equals or exceeds $75.0

totaling $8.0 million to our joint ventures. As we identify investment opportu-

million and then 50% of any net income for each completed fiscal quarter

nities in the future, we may be called upon to contribute additional capital to

thereafter, plus (z) 50% of all proceeds of equity interests issued by us or

joint ventures in satisfaction of our capital commitment obligations.

our subsidiaries after the date the debentures were issued. As of December
31, 2013, Kennedy Wilson’s fixed charge coverage ratio was 3.19 to 1.00,
its ratio of total debt to net worth was 1.12 to 1.00 and its tangible net worth
and net worth were $744.4 million and $768.3 million, respectively, and
Kennedy Wilson was in compliance with these covenants.
The revolving loan agreement that governs the unsecured credit facility
requires Kennedy Wilson to maintain (i) a minimum rent adjusted fixed
charge coverage ratio (as defined in the revolving loan agreement) of not less
than 1.50 to 1.00, measured on a four-quarter rolling average basis; (ii)
maximum balance sheet leverage (as defined in the revolving loan agreement) of not greater than 1.50 to 1.00, measured at the end of each calendar quarter; (iii) an effective tangible net worth (as defined in the revolving
loan agreement) equal to or greater than $250.0 million, measured at the
end of each calendar quarter; and (iv) unrestricted cash, cash equivalents
and publicly traded marketable securities in the aggregate amount of at least
$40.0 million.
As of December 31, 2013, Kennedy Wilson’s rent adjusted fixed charge
coverage ratio was 2.52 to 1.00, its balance sheet leverage ratio was 0.61 to
1.00, and its effective tangible net worth and its unrestricted cash, cash
equivalents and publicly traded marketable securities were $730.3 million
and $178.2 million, respectively, and Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. was in compliance
with these covenants.
The indentures governing the 2019 Notes and 2042 Notes limit KennedyWilson, Inc.’s ability to incur additional indebtedness if, on the date of such
incurrence and after giving effect to the new indebtedness, Kennedy-Wilson,
Inc.’s maximum balance sheet leverage ratio (as defined in the indenture) is
greater than 1.50 to 1.00. This ratio is measured at the time of incurrence of
additional indebtedness. As of December 31, 2013, the balance sheet
leverage ratio was 0.58 to 1.00.
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Non-Recourse Carve Out Guarantees—Most of our real estate properties
within our equity partnerships are encumbered by traditional non-recourse
debt obligations. In connection with most of these loans, however, we
entered into certain “non-recourse carve out” guarantees, which provide for
the loans to become partially or fully recourse against us if certain triggering
events occur. Although these events are different for each guarantee, some
of the common events include:
• the special purpose property-owning subsidiary’s filing a voluntary
petition for bankruptcy;
• the special purpose property-owning subsidiary’s failure to maintain its
status as a special purpose entity; and
• subject to certain conditions, the special purpose property-owning
subsidiary’s failure to obtain lender’s written consent prior to any
subordinate financing or other voluntary lien encumbering the
associated property.
In the event that any of these triggering events occur and the loans
become partially or fully recourse against us, our business, financial condition, results of operations and common stock price could be materially
adversely affected.
In addition, other items that are customarily recourse to a non-recourse
carve out guarantor include, but are not limited to, the payment of real property taxes, liens which are senior to the mortgage loan and outstanding
security deposits.

IMPACT OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES

These borrowings do not give rise to a significant interest rate risk because

Inflation has not had a significant impact on the results of operations of our

they have short maturities. However, the amount of income or loss we recog-

company in recent years. Our exposure to market risk from changing prices

nize for unconsolidated joint ventures may be impacted by changes in inter-

consists primarily of fluctuations in rental rates of commercial and residen-

est rates. Historically, the impact from the changes in rates has not been

tial properties, market interest rates on residential mortgages and debt

significant. Our exposure to market risk also consists of foreign currency

obligations and real estate property values. The revenues associated with

exchange rate fluctuations related to our international operations.

the commercial services businesses are impacted by fluctuations in interest

Interest Rate Risk

rates, lease rates, real property values and the availability of space and

We have established an interest rate management policy, which attempts to

competition in the market place. Commercial service revenues are derived
from a broad range of services that are primarily transaction driven and are
therefore volatile in nature and highly competitive. The revenues of the

minimize our overall cost of debt while taking into consideration the earnings
implications associated with the volatility of short-term interest rates. As part
of this policy, we have elected to maintain a combination of variable and fixed

property management operations with respect to rental properties are

rate debt. As of December 31, 2013, 86% of our property level debt is fixed

highly dependent upon the aggregate rents of the properties managed,

rate, 7% is floating rate with interest caps and 7% is floating rate without

which are affected by rental rates and building occupancy rates. Rental rate

interest caps.

increases are dependent upon market conditions and the competitive

The table below represents contractual balances of our financial instru-

environments in the respective locations of the properties. Employee

ments at the expected maturity dates as well as the fair value as of December

compensation is the principal cost element of property management.

31, 2013. The expected maturity categories take into consideration actual
amortization of principal and do not take into consideration reinvestment of

QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT

cash. The weighted average interest rate for the various assets and liabilities

MARKET RISK

presented are actual as of December 31, 2013. We closely monitor the fluc-

The primary market risk exposure of our Company relates to changes in
interest rates in connection with our short-term borrowings, some of which
bear interest at variable rates based on the lender’s base rate, prime rate,
EURIBOR, GBP LIBOR, or LIBOR plus an applicable borrowing margin.

tuation in interest rates, and if rates were to increase significantly, we believe
that we would be able to either hedge the change in the interest rate or refinance the loans with fixed interest rate debt. All instruments included in this
analysis are non-trading.
Principal Maturing in:

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Interest rate sensitive assets
Cash equivalents
Average interest rate
Fixed rate receivables
Average interest rate
Variable rate receivables
Average interest rate

$178.2
0.23%
8.7
9.89%
30.4
4.17%

$—
—
8.3
10.71%
—
—

$—
—
3.6
10.28%
—
—

$—
—
5.8
2.16%
—
—

$—
—
—
—
—
—

$

—
—
—
—
—
—

$178.2
0.23%
26.4
8.49%
30.4
—

$178.2
—
26.4
—
30.4
—

  Total

$217.3

$8.3

$3.6

$5.8

$—

$

—

$235.0

$235.0

(dollars in millions)

Thereafter

Weighted average interest rate

1.67%

10.71%

10.28%

2.16%

—

Interest rate sensitive liabilities
Variable rate borrowings
Average interest rate
Fixed rate borrowings

$35.0
4.75%
—

$4.8
3.75%
8.8

$23.0
2.57%
14.4

$29.0
2.17%
—

$—
—%
18.3

$ 23.5
4.35%
690.6

$115.3
3.54%
732.1

$116.4
—
767.8

11.66%

5.91%

—

4.32%

7.09%

7.06%

—

Average interest rate
  Total
Weighted average interest rate

—
$35.0
4.75%

$13.6
8.88%

$37.4
3.85%

K E N N E D Y - W I L S O N

$29.0
2.17%

$18.3

—

Total

Fair Value
December 31,
2013

$ 714.1

4.32%
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7.00%
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1.67%

$847.4

$884.2

6.58%
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Critical Accounting Policies

fair value of the underlying investments were realized as of such date,

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements include the

irrespective of whether such amounts have been realized. As the fair value

accounts of ourselves and voting interest entities which it controls.

of underlying investments varies between reporting periods, it is necessary

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated

to make adjustments to amounts recorded as performance fees to reflect

in consolidation. In addition, we evaluate our relationships with other entities

either (a) positive performance resulting in an increase in the performance

to identify whether they are variable interest entities (“VIE”) as defined by

fee allocated to the general partner or asset manager or (b) negative perfor-

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards

mance that would cause the amount due to Kennedy Wilson to be less than

Codification (“ASC”) Subtopic 810—Consolidation and to assess whether

the amount previously recognized as revenue, resulting in a negative adjust-

we are the primary beneficiary of such entities. In determining whether we

ment to performance fees allocated to the general partner or asset man-

are the primary beneficiary of a VIE, qualitative and quantitative factors are

ager. Substantially all of the performance fees are recognized in

considered, including, but not limited to: the amount and characteristics of

management and leasing fees and substantially all of the carried interest is

our investments; the obligation or likelihood for us to provide financial sup-

recognized in equity in joint venture income in our consolidated statements

port; and our ability to control or significantly influence key decisions for the

of operations. Total performances fees recognized to date through

VIE. Significant judgments related to these determinations include estimates

December 31, 2013 that may be reversed in future periods if there is nega-

about the current future fair values and performance of real estate held by

tive fund performance totaled $6.1 million. Performance fees recognized

these VIEs and general market conditions. As of December 31, 2013,

during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $17.5

Kennedy Wilson has five VIEs that are treated as joint venture investments as

million, $8.6 million and $4.2 million, respectively, and are included in

discussed in the policy below.

accounts receivable—related parties in the accompanying consolidated

Our investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries in which we have the abil-

balance sheet.

ity to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies, but

Commissions primarily consist of acquisition fees, auction and real estate

do not control, or entities which are VIEs in which we are not the primary

sales commissions and leasing commissions. Acquisition fees are earned for

beneficiary are accounted for under the equity method. Accordingly, our

identifying and closing investments on behalf of investors and are based on

share of the earnings from these equity-method basis companies are

a fixed percentage of the acquisition price. Acquisition fees are recognized

included in our consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31,

upon the successful completion of an acquisition after all required services

2013, we had investments in five unconsolidated subsidiaries which are VIEs

have been performed. In the case of auction and real estate sales commis-

in which we are not the primary beneficiary and therefore account for them

sions, the revenue is generally recognized when escrow closes. In accor-

under the equity method.

dance with the guidelines established for reporting revenue gross as a
principal versus net as an agent in the ASC Subtopic 605-45, Kennedy

Revenue Recognition—Revenue primarily consists of management fees,

Wilson records commission revenues and expenses on a gross basis. Of the

performance fees, commission revenue, rental income and sales of

criteria listed in the Subtopic 605-45, Kennedy Wilson is the primary obligor

real estate.

in the transaction, does not have inventory risk, performs all or part of the

Management fees are primarily comprised of property management fees

service, has credit risk, and has wide latitude in establishing the price of

and base asset management fees. Property management fees are earned for

services rendered and discretion in selection of agents and determination of

managing the operations of real estate assets and are generally based on a

service specifications. Leasing fees that are payable upon tenant occupancy,

fixed percentage of the revenues generated from the respective real estate

payment of rent or other events beyond Kennedy Wilson’s control are

assets. Base asset management fees are earned from limited partners of

recognized upon the occurrence of such events.

funds Kennedy Wilson sponsors and are generally based on a fixed percentage of committed capital or net asset value. These fees are recognized as
revenue ratably over the period that the respective services are performed.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognized on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the leases.
Sales of real estate are recognized when title to the real property passes

Performance fees or carried interest are allocated to the general partner,

to the buyer and there is no continuing involvement in the real property.

special limited partner or asset manager of Kennedy Wilson’s real estate

Kennedy Wilson follows the requirements for profit recognition as set forth by

funds and loan pool participations based on the cumulative performance of

the Sale of Real Estate ASC Subtopic 360-20.

the fund and loan pools and are subject to preferred return thresholds of the
limited partners and participants. At the end of each reporting period,
Kennedy Wilson calculates the performance fee that would be due as if the
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Real Estate Acquisitions—When acquiring a property, the purchase price of

Derivative Instruments and Hedging—We have joint ventures that hold deriv-

acquired properties is recorded to land, buildings and building improvements

atives to reduce our exposure to foreign currencies. We recognize all deriva-

and intangible lease value (value of above-market and below-market leases,

tives on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives that are not hedges

acquired in-place lease values, and tenant relationships, if any) based on

must be adjusted to fair value and the changes in fair value must be

their respective estimated fair values in accordance with Business

reflected as income or expense. If the derivative qualifies for hedge account-

Combinations ASC Subtopics 805-10. Acquisition-related costs are

ing, depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of

expensed as incurred.

derivatives are either offset against the change in fair value of the hedged

The valuations of real estate are based on management estimates of the

assets, liabilities, or firm commitments through earnings or recognized in

real estate assets using income and market approaches. The indebtedness

other comprehensive income, which is a component of the stockholders’

securing the real estate are valued, in part, based on third party valuations

equity accounts. The ineffective portion of a derivative’s change in fair value

and management estimates also using an income approach.

is immediately recognized in earnings.

Investments in Joint Ventures—The Company has a number of joint venture

Share-Based Payment Arrangements—Kennedy Wilson accounts for its

interests, that were formed to acquire, manage, and/or sell real estate and

share-based payment arrangements under the provisions of Share-Based

invest in loan pools and discounted loan portfolios. Investments in joint ven-

Payments ASC Subtopic 718-10. Compensation cost for employee service

tures which the Company does not control are accounted for under the

received in exchange for an award of equity instruments is based on the

equity method of accounting as the Company can exercise significant influ-

grant-date fair value of the share-based award that is ultimately settled in

ence, but does not have the ability to control the joint venture. An investment

equity of Kennedy Wilson. The cost of employee services is recognized over

in a joint venture is recorded at its initial investment and is increased or

the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the

decreased by the Company’s share of income or loss, plus additional contri-

share-based payment award. Share-based payment arrangements with only

butions and less distributions. A decline in the value of an investment in a

services conditions that vest ratably over the requisite service period are

joint venture that is other than temporary is recognized when evidence indi-

recognized on the straight-line basis and performance awards that vest rat-

cates that such a decline has occurred in accordance with ASC Subtopic

ably are recognized on a tranche-by-tranche basis over the performance

323-10 Equity Method Investments. As of December 31, 2013, the Company

period. Unrecognized compensation costs for share-based payment arrange-

also had investments in five joint venture investments which are VIEs in

ments that have been modified are recognized over the original service or

which the Company is not the primary beneficiary and therefore accounts for

performance period.

them under the equity method as well.
Investments in Loan Pool Participations and Notes Receivable—Interest
income from investments in loan pool participations and notes receivable are
recognized on a level yield basis under the provisions of Loans and Debt
Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality ASC Subtopic 310-30,
where a level yield model is utilized to determine a yield rate which, based
upon projected future cash flows, accretes interest income over the estimated holding period. In the event that the present value of those future cash
flows is less than net book value, a loss would be immediately recorded.
When the future cash flows of a note cannot be reasonably estimated, cash
payments are applied to the cost basis of the note until it is fully recovered
before any interest income is recognized. Interest income from investments
in notes receivable acquired at a discount are recognized using the effective

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In February 2013, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2013-02 “Comprehensive
Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income.” Update No. 2013-02 is effective prospectively for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. ASC 201302 requires an entity to present separately information about the effects on
net income of significant amounts reclassified out of each component of
accumulated other comprehensive income. An entity can present the information on the face of the comprehensive income statement or as a separate
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. This update does not have
any effect on Kennedy Wilson’s financial statements as Kennedy Wilson has
already followed this presentation.

interest method. Interest income from investments in notes receivable which
the Company originates are recognized at the stated interest rate.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS
William J. McMorrow—Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. McMorrow
joined the Company in 1988 and has been Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 1988. Mr. McMorrow is the architect of the
Company’s expansion into real estate brokerage, property management and
investment services. In addition to his real estate experience, Mr. McMorrow
has more than 17 years of banking experience. Prior to joining the Company,
he was the Executive Vice President and Chairman of the Credit Policy
Committee at Imperial Bancorp and also has held senior positions with a
variety of financial services companies, including eight years as a Senior Vice
President of Fidelity Bank. He received a B.S. in Business and an M.B.A.
from the University of Southern California. Mr. McMorrow is on the Executive
Board of the USC Lusk Center for Real Estate and is involved in numerous
charities in Southern California, including Chrysalis, the Rape Treatment
Center, the Village School and Loyola High School. Mr. McMorrow was
selected to serve as a member of our Board of Directors because of his significant achievements with, and intimate knowledge of, the Company and his
extensive experience in banking and real estate.
Justin Enbody—Chief Financial Officer. Justin Enbody is Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. He was named Chief Financial Officer of the
Company effective as of April 9, 2012. He is responsible for all aspects of
finance and accounting for the Company, including treasury, SEC and NYSE
compliance, strategic planning, financial reporting, risk management and
taxes. He also serves on the Investment Committee, which evaluates and
approves all of the Company’s investments. Mr. Enbody joined the Company
in September 2009 and was the Company’s Controller before becoming
Chief Financial Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Enbody was a Vice
President with RAFS Inc., an independent financial consulting company
which he joined in 2004. Prior to RAFS Inc., Mr. Enbody was a senior associate with KPMG LLP. Mr. Enbody received his Bachelor of Arts from the
University of California at Santa Barbara.
Mary Ricks—President and CEO, Kennedy Wilson Europe. Mary Ricks is
President and CEO of Kennedy Wilson Europe. She joined Kennedy Wilson in
1990 and before assuming her current role in 2011, headed Kennedy
Wilson’s commercial investment group since 2002.
Kennedy Wilson Europe was established in 2011 and since its inception, Ms.
Ricks has led Kennedy Wilson Europe in acquiring, with its equity partners,
real estate related assets in Europe with a value of approximately £2.5 billion
as at December 31, 2013.
In 2013, Ms. Ricks was nominated by PERE as Industry Figure of the Year,
Europe. She was also previously named by the L.A. Business Journal as one
of the top women in commercial real estate and was featured on the covers
of Forum Magazine and Real Estate California, recognizing women at the top
of the field. Ms. Ricks received a B.A. in Sociology from UCLA, where she
was an All-American athlete and is a founding board member of the Richard
S. Ziman Center for Real Estate at UCLA.
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Matt Windisch—Executive Vice President. Mr. Windisch is Executive Vice
President of the Company. He joined the Company in 2006 and heads the
Company’s U.S. note business, its research subsidiary and its real estate
activities in Japan. In addition, Mr. Windisch leads the Company’s corporate
and transaction capital raising, strategic planning and acquisitions analysis
activities. He is also responsible for maintaining the Company’s key investor
and banking relationships. Mr. Windisch serves on the boards of the
Company’s subsidiaries in Ireland and Japan. He serves as co-chairman of
the Company’s Investment Committee, which evaluates and approves all of
the Company’s investments. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Windisch was
an associate at JP Morgan Chase, where he held positions in investment
banking, strategy and risk management. Mr. Windisch received a B.B.A. in
Finance and Accounting from Emory University and an M.B.A. from UCLA’s
Anderson School of Management.
Kent Mouton—Director and General Counsel. Mr. Mouton joined the
Company in 2011 as the Company’s General Counsel and Chief Compliance
Officer for the Company’s registered investment adviser—KW Investment
Adviser, LLC. As General Counsel, Mr. Mouton oversees all legal affairs of
the Company and participates in corporate compliance and risk management
oversight. Mr. Mouton has served as a director of the Company since 1995.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Mouton was a co-owner and managing
partner of Kulik, Gottesman, Mouton & Siegel LLP, a real estate, business
and entertainment law firm in Los Angeles. His practice included negotiating,
structuring and documenting transactions in commercial real estate acquisitions and dispositions, financing, joint ventures and syndications, leasing and
development and general corporate matters. Mr. Mouton graduated from the
University of California, Los Angeles with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics (Summa Cum Laude, Phi Beta Kappa and Dean’s List) and
received his law degree from the University of California, Los Angeles in
1978. Mr. Mouton is a member of the bar associations of the State of
California and Los Angeles County and was an adjunct professor of real
estate law at UCLA Extension for 27 years. In 2012, the Los Angeles Daily
Journal named Mr. Mouton as one of the top 30 real estate lawyers
in the State of California. Mr. Mouton was selected to serve as a member
of our Board of Directors because of his experience and knowledge
relating to the legal and financial aspects of real estate investment and his
significant experience in public and private company advisory and
governance activities.

David A. Minella—Director. Mr. Minella is currently the CEO of Aligned Asset
Managers LLC (“Aligned”), a financial services holding company investing in
the asset management industry sponsored by GTCR. Aligned’s first acquisition was a majority interest in The Townsend Group based in Cleveland,
Ohio. Mr. Minella served as Prospect Acquisition Corp’s. Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer from its inception in July 2007 through November 2009
and has served as a director of the Company since November 2007. Between
1997 and March 2007, Mr. Minella served as the Chief Executive Officer and
a director of Value Asset Management LLC (“VAM”), a strategic investment
management holding company. At VAM, Mr. Minella was responsible for its
overall business strategy, acquisitions and financial results. Under Mr.
Minella’s leadership, VAM acquired a controlling interest in five separate
investment management firms: Dalton Hartman Greiner and Maher, New
York, NY; Harris Bretall Sullivan and Smith, San Francisco, CA; Hillview
Capital Advisors, LLC, New York, NY; Grosvenor Capital Management LP,
Chicago, IL; and MDT Advisers LLC, Cambridge, MA. All of the original
acquisitions have been sold. From 1995 to 1997, Mr. Minella was the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the asset management division of
Liechtenstein Global Trust, or LGT, a wealth and asset management firm,
where he was responsible for the overall business strategy and financial
results. During Mr. Minella’s tenure as LGT’s Chief Executive Officer, he also
led LGT’s acquisition of Chancellor Capital Management, a large United
States equity investment firm. Mr. Minella originally joined the LGT group in
1987 as the head of its United States subsidiaries, GT Capital Management
and GT Global. Mr. Minella established its United States mutual fund business through the broker-dealer community, reestablished LGT’s institutional
separate account capabilities, and developed the firm’s global equity sector
expertise. Mr. Minella is a member of the Executive Council at Bunker Hill
Capital Management, a private equity firm in Boston, Massachusetts, the
former Chairman of the board of directors of MDT Advisers LLC and a former
board member of the Investment Company Institute. Mr. Minella holds a
B.S. in accounting from Bentley College. Mr. Minella was selected to serve
as a member of our Board of Directors because of his significant financial
industry experience, particularly relating to investment strategies and
asset management.
Jerry R. Solomon—Director. Mr. Solomon has served as a director of the
Company since 2001. Mr. Solomon received both his B.S. Degree in
accounting (1973) and an M.B.A. (1974) from UC Berkeley. Throughout college and following graduation, he worked in the tax department of JK Lasser
& Company that later became Touche Ross & Company. After leaving JK
Lasser, Mr. Solomon joined a large local CPA firm where he became the
partner in charge of the comprehensive business services department as
well as the administrative partner in charge of 7 partners and 80 staff. In
1988 he formed Solomon & Company CPA’s Inc. that later merged with
Harold G. Winnett and the firm was renamed Solomon, Winnett & Rosenfield
Certified Public Accountants, Inc. Mr. Solomon’s practice areas of expertise
include both real estate industry and service industries. He consults frequently with high net worth individuals and families in tax and transactional
planning. Mr. Solomon was selected to serve as a member of our Board of
Directors because of his significant experience in the public accounting profession, particularly in the real estate and services industries, and with public
and private company advisory and governance activities.

Norman Creighton—Director. Mr. Creighton has served as a director of the
Company since 2004. From 1975 to 2001, Mr. Creighton was employed with
Imperial Bank, serving as President and Chief Executive Officer from 1983 to
2001. During Mr. Creighton’s tenure with Imperial Bank, its assets increased
from approximately $200 million in 1975 to approximately $7 billion in 2001.
Prior to Imperial Bank, Mr. Creighton served as Regional Vice President for
Southern Arizona of Great Western Bank from 1971 to 1974. From 1958 to
1971, Mr. Creighton was employed with Arizona Bank, including as Manager
of the Tucson Headquarters. Mr. Creighton holds a B.S. in banking and
finance from the University of Montana. Mr. Creighton was selected to serve
as a member of our Board of Directors because of his extensive experience
and knowledge of business, accounting and the banking industry.
Cathy Hendrickson—Director. Ms. Hendrickson has served as a director of
the Company since 2004. Ms. Hendrickson has forty-three years of experience in commercial banking. From May of 1993 until September of 2010,
Ms. Hendrickson served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Bay
Cities National Bank. Ms. Hendrickson concurrently served as President and
Chief Executive Officer of Peninsula Banking Group, Inc. and sat on the
boards of Bay Cities National Bank, Peninsula Banking Group, and
Community First Financial Group, Inc. Ms. Hendrickson was selected to
serve as a member of our Board of Directors because of her extensive
experience as a high level executive in the banking and financial industries.
Stanley R. Zax—Director. Mr. Zax has served as a director of the Company
since 2010. Mr. Zax was the Chairman and CEO of Zenith National Insurance
Corp. (“Zenith”), a company engaged in insurance and reinsurance, from
1977 to 2012. Zenith, a NYSE listed company, was acquired by Fairfax
Financial Holdings Limited in 2010. Currently, Mr. Zax serves as director of
The Center for The Study of the Presidency and Congress in Washington,
D.C., Prostate Cancer Foundation, and First Century Bank, Los Angeles. Mr.
Zax started his career in 1961 as an associate and later a partner with the
Chicago law firm Friedman, Mulligan, Dillon & Uris and subsequently joined
Hilton Hotels, where he served as Vice President, General Counsel, Director
and Secretary. His association with the insurance industry started in 1973,
when he served as President and Chief Executive of Great American
Insurance Company. He served as a Director of Wynn Resorts Ltd., a holding
company of Wynn Las Vegas, and Wynn Macao from October 2002 to May 8,
2007, and Chairman of its Audit Committee. He served as a Non-Executive
Director of Advent Capital (Holdings) Plc, London, England from 1999 to
November 10, 2005. Mr. Zax earned a JD in 1961 and a BBA in 1958 from
the University of Michigan at Ann Arbor. Mr. Zax was selected to serve as a
member of our Board of Directors because of his extensive experience
relating to the management and operations of public companies.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kennedy-

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above

Wilson Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31,

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kennedy-

2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations,

Wilson Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,

comprehensive income, equity and cash flows for each of the years in the

and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years

three-year period ended December 31, 2013. In connection with our audits

in the three-year period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with U.S.

of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited financial

generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related

statement schedules III and IV. These consolidated financial statements and

financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic con-

financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s man-

solidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material

agement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

respects, the information set forth therein.

financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Kennedy-Wilson

Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards

Holdings, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An

Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts

the Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 3, 2014 expressed

and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing

an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by manage-

over financial reporting.

ment, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Los Angeles, California
March 3, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.:
We have audited Kennedy-Wilson Holdings Inc.’s (the Company) internal

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accor-

control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on criteria

dance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that

(COSO). Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.’s management is responsible for

could have a material effect on the financial statements.

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control

of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may

over financial reporting based on our audit.

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards

In our opinion, Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. maintained, in all material

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was main-

31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated

tained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding

Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material

the Treadway Commission.

weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effec-

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the

tiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consoli-

included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in

dated balance sheets of Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as

the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements

our opinion.

of operations, comprehensive income, equity and cash flows for each of

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed

the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2013, and our

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial report-

report dated March 3, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on those

ing and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

consolidated financial statements.

accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions

Los Angeles, California

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

March 3, 2014

accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,

2013

2012

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable—related parties
Notes receivable
Notes receivable—related parties
Real estate, net of accumulated depreciation of $15.8 and $7.4 at December 31, 2013 and 2012
Investments in joint ventures ($81.1 and $68.4 carried at fair value as of December 31, 2013 and 2012)
Investments in loan pool participations
Other assets
Goodwill

$178.2
—
5.2
11.4
52.7
4.1
668.8
751.4
34.7
68.4
23.9

$120.9
10.0
3.6
22.4
136.6
—
289.4
543.2
95.6
38.1
24.0

   Total assets

$1,798.8

$1,283.8

$2.6
64.3
32.2
24.1
407.7
409.0
40.0

$1.8
29.4
25.0
22.7
236.5
409.6
40.0

979.9

765.0

—

—

(dollars in millions, except share and per share amounts)

Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Accrued salaries and benefits
Deferred tax liability
Mortgage loans and notes payable
Senior notes payable
Junior subordinated debentures
   Total liabilities

Equity
Cumulative Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, $1,000 per share liquidation preference:
 6.00% Series A, 100,000 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
mandatorily convertible on May 19, 2015
 6.45% Series B, 32,550 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, mandatorily convertible on November 3, 2018
Common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, 125,000,000 shares authorized, 82,592,607 and 64,789,646 shares issued
and 82,592,607 and 63,772,598 shares outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Shares held in treasury at cost, $0.0001 par value per share, 1,017,048 held as of December 31, 2012

—

—

—
801.3
(42.2)
9.2
—

—
512.8
(5.9)
12.6
(9.8)

    Total Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests

768.3
50.6

509.7
9.1

    Total equity

818.9

518.8

$1,798.8

$1,283.8

    Total liabilities and equity
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

$ 18.1
36.0
4.0
10.0
43.0
10.1

$ 15.8
24.5
5.0
8.0
8.5
2.3

$ 12.6
14.5
5.8
24.2
5.1
0.4

121.2

64.1

62.6

3.6
18.9
7.9
76.7
24.6
17.4

4.6
4.5
2.2
55.8
19.5
4.9

4.0
3.3
0.4
41.1
14.5
2.8

149.1
29.8
13.5

91.5
21.5
9.2

66.1
12.5
8.0

15.4

3.3

17.0

Interest income
Interest income—related party
Acquisition-related gains
Gain on sale of marketable securities
Acquisition-related expenses
Interest expense—corporate debt
Interest expense—property level debt
Realized foreign currency exchange loss

0.3
0.3
56.6
—
(1.6)
(39.9)
(11.8)
(2.8)

0.1
2.8
25.5
4.3
(0.7)
(26.1)
(2.5)
—

0.4
2.0
6.3
—
—
(19.0)
(1.6)
—

   Income from continuing operations before benefit from (provision for) income taxes
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes

16.5
(2.9)

6.7
0.2

5.1
2.0

   Income from continuing operations

13.6

6.9

7.1

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Gain (loss) from sale of real estate, net of income taxes

(0.3)
0.6

—
(0.2)

—
0.4

  Net income
Net (income) attributable to the noncontrolling interests

13.9
(20.3)

6.7
(2.5)

7.5
(1.2)

(6.4)
(8.1)

4.2
(8.1)

6.3
(8.7)

Net loss attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders

$ (14.5)

$ (3.9)

$ (2.4)

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
common shareholders
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes

$ (0.21)
—

$(0.07)
—

$(0.06)
0.01

Earnings per share—basic and diluted (a)

$ (0.21)

$(0.07)

$(0.05)

71.159919

55.285833

42.41577

$ 0.28

$ 0.20

$ 0.11

(dollars in millions, except share amounts and per data)

Revenue
Management and leasing fees
Management and leasing fees—related party
Commissions
Commissions—related party
Rental and other income
Sale of real estate
  Total revenue

Operating Expenses
Commission and marketing expenses
Rental operating expense
Cost of real estate sold
Compensation and related expenses
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
   Total operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Interest income from loan pool participations and notes receivable
  Operating income

Non-Operating Income (Expense)

Discontinued Operations

   Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Preferred stock dividends and accretion of issuance costs

Weighted average shares outstanding for basic and diluted (loss) income per share
Dividends declared per common share
(a) EPS amounts may not add due to rounding.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

$13.9

$6.7

$7.5

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities
Unrealized foreign currency translation (loss) gain
Amounts reclassified from accumulated comprehensive income
Unrealized forward contract foreign currency gain (loss)

—
(9.3)
2.8
3.1

3.3
(1.5)
—
5.7

(3.2)
1.5
—
(2.3)

Total other comprehensive (loss) income for the period

(3.4)

7.5

(4.0)

10.5
(20.3)

14.2
(2.6)

3.5
(1.1)

$(9.8)

$11.6

$2.4

(dollars in millions)

Net Income

Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

Preferred Stock
(dollars in millions, except share amounts)

Shares Amount

Balance, January 1, 2011
Issuance of 11,700,000 shares of common stock
Repurchase of 51,958 common shares
Repurchase of 3,371,804 warrants
Stock compensation expense
Shares forfeited, net of 3,000 shares of common stock issued under
the 2009 Equity Participation Plan
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation gain, net of tax of $0.9
Forward foreign currency loss, net of tax of $1.5
 Unrealized holding losses on available-for-sale securities,
net of tax of $2.1
Preferred stock dividends
Common stock dividends
Accretion of preferred stock issuance costs
Net income
Contributions from noncontrolling interests
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Distribution of marketable securities to noncontrolling interests
Effective restructuring on noncontrolling interests

132,550
—
—
—
—

Balance, December 31, 2011
Repurchase of 3,400 common shares
Repurchase of 612,900 warrants
Issuance of 8,625,000 shares of common stock
Common stock issued under Amended and Restated 2009
Equity Participation Plan
Stock compensation expense
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net of tax of $2.3
Unrealized foreign currency translation loss, net of tax of $1.3
 Unrealized forward contract foreign currency gain, net of tax of $3.7
Preferred stock dividends
Common stock dividends
Accretion of preferred stock issuance costs
Net income
Acquisition of noncontrolling interests
Consolidation of Fund II
Contributions from noncontrolling interests
Distributions to noncontrolling interests

132,550
—
—
—

Balance, December 31, 2012
Exercise of warrants into common shares
Repurchase of 427,332 warrants
Issuance of 17,250,000 shares of common stock
Retirement of common shares held in treasury
Issuance of 136,600 shares of common stock under amended and
restated equity participation plan net of 146,638 shares forfeited
Shares retired due to RSG Vesting
Stock compensation expense
RSG plan modification
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized foreign currency translation loss, net of tax of $4.4
Unrealized forward contract foreign currency gain, net of tax of $2.1
Preferred stock dividends
Common stock dividends
Accretion of preferred stock issuance costs
Net income
Consolidation of noncontrolling interests (Note 4)
Contributions from noncontrolling interests
Distributions to noncontrolling interests

132,550
—
—
—
—

Balance, December 31, 2013

132,550

Common Stock

Additional
Shares Amount Paid-in Capital

$— 40,179,906
— 11,700,000
—
(51,958)
—
—
—
—

Accumulated
Other
Retained Comprehensive Treasury Noncontrolling
Earnings
Income
Stock
Interests

$—
—
—
—
—

$284.7
123.7
—
(6.1)
5.0

$ 17.8
—
—
—
—

$ 9.0 $(11.3)
—
—
—
(0.5)
—
—
—
—

Total

$12.7 $312.9
— 123.7
—
(0.5)
—
(6.1)
—
5.0

—

—

(1,950)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

1.5
(2.3)

—

—

1.5
(2.3)

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
(8.7)
(5.7)
—
6.3
—
—
—
—

(3.2)
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
1.2
4.4
(5.1)
(2.8)
(7.0)

(3.2)
(8.7)
(5.7)
—
7.5
4.4
(5.1)
(2.8)
(7.0)

— 51,825,998
—
(3,400)
—
—
— 8,625,000

—
—
—
—

407.3
—
(1.6)
106.3

9.7
—
—
—

5.0
—
—
—

(11.8)
—
—
—

3.4
—
—
—

413.6
—
(1.6)
106.3

—
—

—
—

3,175,000
—

—
—

—
3.5

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
3.5

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
150,000
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(2.7)
—
—
—

—
—
—
(8.1)
(11.7)
—
4.2
—
—
—
—

3.3
(1.4)
5.7
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
2.0
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
2.5
0.1
7.6
0.4
(4.9)

3.3
(1.4)
5.7
(8.1)
(11.7)
—
6.7
(0.6)
7.6
0.4
(4.9)

— 63,772,598
— 1,771,862
—
—
— 17,250,000
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

512.8
15.4
(1.4)
275.9
(9.8)

(5.9)
—
—
—
—

12.6
—
—
—
—

(9.8)
—
—
—
9.8

9.1
—
—
—
—

518.8
15.4
(1.4)
275.9
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

(10,038)
(191,815)
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
(3.8)
7.5
4.7

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
(3.8)
7.5
4.7

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
(8.1)
(21.8)
—
(6.4)
—
—
—

(6.5)
3.1
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
20.3
20.3
1.4
(0.5)

(6.5)
3.1
(8.1)
(21.8)
—
13.9
20.3
1.4
(0.5)

$— 82,592,607

$—

$801.3

$(42.2)

$ 9.2 $ —

$50.6 $818.9

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

$13.9

$6.7

$7.5

(2.7)
(56.6)
—
17.4
2.7
2.2
(1.2)
(29.8)
(12.4)
7.5

0.2
(25.5)
(4.3)
4.9
(0.5)
1.2
0.1
(21.5)
(8.1)
8.1

(0.4)
(6.3)
—
2.8
(4.7)
0.8
—
(12.5)
(6.7)
5.1

(0.2)
10.9
56.1
11.6
(1.4)
0.2
1.2
11.9

(0.9)
(6.8)
40.4
18.6
(3.1)
—
1.4
5.8

(1.0)
(9.0)
13.0
2.4
(3.8)
0.2
12.1
3.9

   Net cash provided by operating activities

31.3

16.7

3.4

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to notes receivable
Settlements of notes receivable
Additions to notes receivable—related party
Settlements of notes receivable—related party
Sale of participation interests
Sale of participation interests—related party
Capitalized development costs
Non-refundable escrow deposits
Net proceeds from sale of real estate
Purchases of and additions to real estate
Investment in marketable securities
Short-term investments
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities
Investing distributions from joint ventures
Contributions to joint ventures
Investing distributions from loan pool participation
Contributions to loan pool participation

(51.0)
39.4
(10.7)
6.6
3.8
2.8
(1.4)
(4.0)
10.1
(168.5)
(3.7)
10.0
—
81.5
(322.7)
93.9
(34.9)

(167.9)
7.1
(17.1)
9.1
—
—
—
—
18.7
(119.0)
—
(10.0)
34.1
38.7
(178.6)
58.1
(72.9)

(6.1)
3.6
(35.3)
4.9
—
—
—
—
7.1
(2.7)
(32.8)
—
—
23.3
(105.4)
66.4
(130.5)

   Net cash used in investing activities

(348.8)

(399.7)

(207.5)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Borrowings under senior notes payable
Repayment of notes payable
Borrowings under lines of credit
Repayment of lines of credit
Borrowings under mortgage loans payable
Repayment of mortgage loans payable
Debt issue costs
Issuance of common stock
Repurchase of common stock
Repurchase of warrants

—
—
125.0
(125.0)
112.5
(1.7)
(2.2)
275.9
(3.8)
(1.4)

160.3
—
85.8
(85.8)
157.7
—
(7.3)
106.2
—
(1.6)

249.3
(24.8)
74.0
(101.8)
17.1
(37.6)
(7.7)
123.1
(0.5)
(6.1)

(dollars in millions)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Net (gain) loss from sale of real estate
Acquisition-related gain
Gain on sale of marketable securities
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for (benefit from) deferred income taxes
Amortization of deferred loan costs
Amortization of discount and accretion of premium on issuance of the senior notes payable
Equity in joint venture income
Accretion of interest income on loan pool participations and notes receivable
Stock compensation expense
Change in assets and liabilities:
  Accounts receivable
   Accounts receivable—related party
   Operating distributions from joint ventures
   Operating distributions from loan pool participation
  Other assets
  Accounts payable
   Accrued expenses and other liabilities
   Accrued salaries and benefits

(continued)
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Year Ended December 31,
(dollars in millions)

2013

2012

2011

Exercise of warrants
Dividends paid
Acquisition of noncontrolling interests
Contributions from noncontrolling interests
Distributions to noncontrolling interests

15.4
(24.1)
—
1.4
(0.6)

—
(21.9)
(0.5)
0.4
(4.9)

—
(11.7)
—
4.4
(5.1)

    Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

371.4
3.4

388.4
(0.4)

272.6
0.5

    Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

57.3
120.9

5.0
115.9

69.0
46.9

    Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$178.2

$120.9

$115.9

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities, net of tax
Acquisitions of property by assumption of mortgage loan and note payable
Sale of condo unit with seller back financing
Acquisition of properties in lieu of settlement of notes receivable and interest receivable

$—
—
—
—

$3.3
33.8
1.2
36.9

$(3.2)
—
—
—

During the first quarter of 2013, the Company acquired the interest of some of its existing partners in a 615-unit apartment building in Northern California,
increasing its ownership from 15% to 94% and obtaining control of the property. In addition, the Company consolidated three retail centers in the Western U.S.
(third quarter of 2013) and the Ritz-Carlton, Lake Tahoe (fourth quarter of 2013) which the Company had previously accounted for using the equity method. The
Company and its equity partners amended the existing operating agreements governing these investments which allowed the Company to gain control of these
operating properties. As a result of obtaining control, the Company was required to consolidate the assets and liabilities of these properties at fair value in
accordance with Business Combinations guidance as described in note 4.
During 2013, the Company sold a 50% interest in an entity that held a note receivable secured by a shopping center and 107 residential units in the United
Kingdom to an institutional investor. As a result of the sale and loss of control, $96.0 million in notes receivable and $78.7 million in mortgage loans were
deconsolidated as described in note 3.
In November 2012, due to a change of control, Kennedy Wilson began to consolidate KW Property Fund II, LP, a limited partnership that had been previously
accounted for using the equity method. As a result of obtaining control of this entity, Kennedy Wilson applied Business Combinations guidance and assumed
assets and liabilities as described in note 4.
During 2011, as a result of the acquisition of a 100% interest in an approximate 200,000 square foot office portfolio, real estate increased by $17.7 million
and mortgage loans payable increased by $16.0 million.
During 2011, as a result of the sale of a controlling interest in a piece of land in Kent, Washington, real estate decreased $0.7 million.
During 2011, as a result of the Company’s foreclosure of five assets in its consolidated loan portfolio, notes receivable decreased by $15.9 million and real
estate increased by $15.9 million.
During 2011, Kennedy Wilson issued 4,400,000 shares of its common stock to an institutional investor for $10.70 per share when the market value was
$12.20. In addition, as a result of its contractual rights, the preferred shareholder also acquired 400,000 shares for $10.70 per share, representing a $0.6
million discount. Because the discount was the result of the preferred shareholder’s contractual rights, it is reflected as a non-cash preferred dividend.
In December 2011, Kennedy Wilson declared dividends on its common stock totaling $2.1 million. The dividends were paid subsequent to December 31,
2011.
During 2011, Kennedy Wilson deconsolidated a balance of $7.0 million of noncontrolling interest.
During 2011, Kennedy Wilson distributed $2.8 million of the Bank of Ireland stock to a noncontrolling entity comprised of Kennedy Wilson executives.
During 2011, the Company foreclosed on two condominiums reducing notes receivable by $1.4 million and increasing real estate by $1.4 million.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Year Ended December 31,
(dollars in millions)

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest (1)
Income taxes

2013

2012

2011

$49.7
2.3

$28.7
0.1

$17.0
—

(1) Cash paid for interest includes capitalized interest of $0.8 million, $2.3 million, and $2.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION

facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot

Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. (“Kennedy Wilson” or “KWH”), a Delaware

be determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from

corporation, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Company”), acquires, ren-

these estimates. Changes in those estimates will be reflected in the financial

ovates and resells commercial and residential real estate, and invests in loan

statements in future periods.

pools and discounted loan portfolios.
The Company also provides various commercial and residential real estate
services including property management, asset management, brokerage,
research and marketing in the United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland,
Spain and Japan primarily to financial institutions, institutional investors,
insurance companies, developers, builders and government agencies.

Revenue Recognition—Revenue consists of management and leasing fees
(including performance fees), commissions, rental income and sales of
real estate.
Management fees are primarily comprised of property management fees
and base asset management fees. Property management fees are earned for
managing the operations of real estate assets and are generally based on a
fixed percentage of the revenues generated from the respective real estate

NOTE 2—BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF

assets. Base asset management fees are earned from limited partners of

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

funds, co-investments, or separate accounts and are generally based on a

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements include the

fixed percentage of committed capital or net asset value. These fees are

accounts of Kennedy Wilson and voting interest entities which it controls.

recognized as revenue ratably over the period that the respective services

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated

are performed.

in consolidation. In addition, Kennedy Wilson evaluates its relationships with

Performance fees or carried interest are allocated to the general partner,

other entities to identify whether they are variable interest entities (“VIE”) as

special limited partner or asset manager of Kennedy Wilson’s real estate

defined by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting

funds and loan pool participations based on the cumulative performance of

Standards Codification (“ASC”) Subtopic 810—Consolidation and to assess

the fund and loan pools and are subject to preferred return thresholds of the

whether it is the primary beneficiary of such entities. In determining whether

limited partners and participants. At the end of each reporting period,

Kennedy Wilson is the primary beneficiary of a VIE, qualitative and quantita-

Kennedy Wilson calculates the performance fee that would be due as if the

tive factors are considered, including, but not limited to: the amount and

fair value of the underlying investments were realized as of such date, irre-

characteristics of Kennedy Wilson’s investment; the obligation or likelihood

spective of whether such amounts have been realized. As the fair value of

for Kennedy Wilson to provide financial support; Kennedy Wilson’s ability to

underlying investments varies between reporting periods, it is necessary to

control or significantly influence key decisions for the VIE; and the similarity

make adjustments to amounts recorded as performance fees to reflect either

with and significance to the business activities of Kennedy Wilson. Significant

(a) positive performance resulting in an increase in the performance fee allo-

judgments related to these determinations include estimates about the future

cated to the general partner or asset manager or (b) negative performance

fair values and performance of real estate held by these VIEs and general

that would cause the amount due to Kennedy Wilson to be less than the

market conditions. As of December 31, 2013, Kennedy Wilson has

amount previously recognized as revenue, resulting in a negative adjustment

five VIEs that are treated as joint venture investments as discussed in the

to performance fees allocated to the general partner or asset manager.

policy below.

Substantially all of the performance fees are recognized in management and

Use of Estimates—The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions
about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect
the amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosure about contingent
assets and liabilities, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses.
Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis
using historical experience and other factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Management adjusts such estimates and assumptions when
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leasing fees and substantially all of the carried interest is recognized in
equity in joint venture income in our consolidated statements of operations.
Total performances fees recognized to date through December 31, 2013 that
may be reversed in future periods if there is negative fund performance
totaled $6.1 million. Performance fees recognized during the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $17.5 million, $8.6 million and
$4.2 million and are included in accounts receivable—related parties in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The Company collected
$23.2 million of carried interest during 2013 from its investment in the
U.K. loan pool.

S U B S I D I A R I E S

Commissions primarily consist of acquisition fees, auction and real estate

recognized when evidence indicates that such a decline has occurred in

sales commissions, leasing commissions, and consulting fees. Acquisition

accordance with Equity Method Investments ASC Subtopic 323-10.

fees are earned for identifying and closing investments on behalf of investors

As of December 31, 2013, the Company also had investments in five joint

and are based on a fixed percentage of the acquisition price. Acquisition fees

venture investments which are VIEs in which the Company is not the primary

are recognized upon the successful completion of an acquisition after all

beneficiary and therefore accounts for them under the equity method as well.

required services have been performed. In the case of auction and real

Profits on the sale of real estate held by joint ventures in which the

estate sales commissions, the revenue is generally recognized when escrow

Company has continuing involvement are deferred until such time that the

closes. In accordance with the guidelines established for Reporting Revenue

continuing involvement has been concluded and all the risks and rewards of

Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent in the ASC Subtopic 605-45,

ownership have passed to the buyer. Profit on sales to joint ventures in which

Kennedy Wilson records commission revenues and expenses on a gross

the Company retains an equity ownership interest results in partial sales

basis. Of the criteria listed in the Subtopic 605-45, Kennedy Wilson is the

treatment in accordance with Sale of Real Estate ASC Subtopic 360-20, thus

primary obligor in the transaction, does not have inventory risk, performs all

deferring a portion of the gain as a result of the Company’s continuing

or part of the service, has credit risk, and has wide latitude in establishing

ownership percentage in the joint ventures.

the price of services rendered and discretion in selection of agents and

The Company has three investments in joint ventures, KW Property Fund

determination of service specifications. Leasing fees that are payable upon

III, L.P. (“KW Fund III”), Kennedy Wilson Real Estate Fund IV, L.P. (“Fund IV”)

tenant occupancy, payment of rent or other events beyond Kennedy Wilson’s

and SG KW Venture I, LLC (collectively the “Funds”) that are investment

control are recognized upon the occurrence of such events.

companies under the Investment Companies ASC Subtopic 946-10.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognized on a straightline basis over the terms of the leases.

Thus, the Funds reflect their investments at fair value, with unrealized gains
and losses resulting from changes in fair value reflected in their earnings.

Sales of real estate are recognized when title to the real property passes

Kennedy Wilson has retained the specialized accounting for the Funds

to the buyer and there is no continuing involvement in the real property.

pursuant to Retention of Specialized Accounting for Investments in

Kennedy Wilson follows the requirements for profit recognition as set forth by

Consolidation ASC Subtopic 810-10 in recording its equity in joint venture

the Sale of Real Estate ASC Subtopic 360-20.

income from the Funds.

Real Estate Acquisitions —The purchase price of acquired properties is
recorded to land, buildings and building improvements and intangible lease
value (value of above-market and below-market leases, acquired in-place
lease values, and tenant relationships, if any) based on their respective estimated fair values in accordance with Business Combinations ASC Subtopics
805-10. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Additionally, Kennedy Wilson elected the fair value option for two investments in joint venture entities that were acquired during 2008. Kennedy
Wilson elected to record these investments at fair value to more accurately
reflect the timing of the value created in the underlying investments and
report those results in current operations.
Distributions from Investments in Joint Ventures—During the quarter ended

The valuations of real estate are based on management estimates of the

March 31, 2013, the Company changed its method of accounting for deter-

real estate assets using income and market approaches. The indebtedness

mining the allocation of cash flows received from unconsolidated real estate

securing the real estate are valued, in part, based on third party valuations

joint ventures on its consolidated statement of cash flows from the “cumula-

and management estimates also using an income approach.

tive earnings” method to the “look-through” method, both of which are

Investments in Joint Ventures—The Company has a number of joint venture
interests that were formed to acquire, manage, and/or sell real estate and
invest in loan pools and discounted loan portfolios. Investments in joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method of accounting as the
Company can exercise significant influence, but does not have the ability to
control the joint venture. An investment in a joint venture is recorded at its
initial investment and is increased or decreased by the Company’s share of
income or loss, plus additional contributions and less distributions. A decline
in the value of an investment in a joint venture that is other than temporary is

acceptable methods under GAAP. Under the “look-through” approach, distributions are reported under operating cash flow unless the facts and circumstances of a specific distribution clearly indicate that it is a return of capital
(e.g., a liquidating dividend or distribution of the proceeds from the joint
venture’s sale of assets), in which case it is reported as an investing activity.
The newly adopted method is preferable because it enables the Company to
look to the nature and source of the distribution received and classify it
appropriately between operating and investing activities on the statement of
cash flows based upon the source, which allows the Company to present
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(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
financial statements more consistent with accounting principles of consolida-

on management estimates of the real estate assets using income and market

tion. The effects of the change upon the years ended December 31, 2012

approaches. The indebtedness securing the real estate and the investments

and 2011 are shown in the table below.

in debt securities are valued, in part, based on third party valuations and
Years Ended December 31,

2012

(dollars in millions)

Cumulative
Earnings
Method
Operating Cash Flows:
 Operating distributions
from joint ventures
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities
Investing Cash Flows:
 Investing distributions
from joint ventures
 Net cash used in investing
activities

LookThrough
Method

Cumulative
Earnings
Method

management estimates also using an income approach.

2011

Goodwill—Goodwill results from the difference between the purchase price

LookThrough
Method

and the fair value of net assets acquired based upon the purchase method of
accounting for business combinations. In accordance with Accounting for
Goodwill ASC Subtopic 350-20, goodwill is reviewed for impairment on an
annual basis. In testing for impairment, goodwill is assigned to the reporting

$ 30.4

$40.4

$   3.6

$13.0

6.8

16.7

(6.0)

3.4

unit based upon the amount of goodwill generated at the time of acquisition
of the businesses by the reporting unit. The Company first performs a qualitative assessment annually at each reporting unit that has goodwill to determine if facts and circumstances indicate that goodwill is more likely than not
impaired. If the qualitative assessment indicates that goodwill of a reporting

48.7

38.7

32.7

23.3

(389.7)

(399.7)

(198.1)

(207.5)

unit is not more likely than not impaired, we do not perform a quantitative
impairment test for the reporting unit. If the qualitative assessment indicates
that goodwill of a reporting unit is more likely than not impaired, we perform

Investments in Loan Pool Participations and Notes Receivable —Interest

the first step, or step 1, of the quantitative goodwill impairment test. The

income from investments in loan pool participations and notes receivable are

Company performs its annual review of impairment at year-end and when a

recognized on a level yield basis under the provisions of Loans and Debt

triggering event occurs between annual year end reviews. As a result of the

Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality ASC Subtopic 310-30,

evaluation performed as described above, Kennedy Wilson has determined

where a level yield model is utilized to determine a yield rate which, based

that there was no impairment of goodwill as of December 31, 2013, 2012

upon projected future cash flows, accretes interest income over the esti-

and 2011.

mated holding period. In the event that the present value of those future cash
flows is less than net book value, a loss would be immediately recorded.
When the future cash flows of a note cannot be reasonably estimated, cash
payments are applied to the cost basis of the note until it is fully recovered
before any interest income is recognized. Interest income from investments
in notes receivable acquired at a discount are recognized using the effective
interest method. Interest income from investments in notes receivable which
the Company originates are recognized at the stated interest rate. When a

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
all highly liquid investments purchased with maturities of three months or
less. Cash and cash equivalents are invested in institutions insured by government agencies. Certain accounts contain balances in excess of the
insured limits. Kennedy Wilson’s operations and financial position are
affected by fluctuations in currency exchange rates between the Japanese
yen, euro, and British pound sterling against the U.S. dollar.

loan or loans are acquired with deteriorated credit quality primarily for the

Short-Term Investments—Short-term investments, which have an original

rewards of collateral ownership, such loans are accounted for as loans until

maturity of one year or less, are carried at amortized cost, which approximates

the Company is in possession of the collateral. However, accrual of income is

fair value.

not recorded during the conversion period under ASC Subtopic 310-30-25.

Long-Lived Assets—Kennedy Wilson reviews its long-lived assets (excluding

Fair Value Measurements—Kennedy Wilson accounts for fair value mea-

goodwill) whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

surements of financial assets and financial liabilities and for fair value

carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with

measurements of nonfinancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets ASC Subtopic 360-10. Recoverability of

value in the financial statements on a recurring basis under the provisions of

assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying

Fair Value Measurements ASC Subtopic 820-10. Subtopic 820-10 defines

amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to

fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to trans-

be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

fer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is recog-

measurement date. When estimating fair value in the absence of an orderly

nized in the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the

transaction between market participants, valuations of real estate are based

fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of are presented separately in
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the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair

The guarantees expire through 2017 and the Company’s performance under

value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. The assets and liabili-

the guarantees would be required to the extent there is a shortfall in liquida-

ties of the assets to be disposed of are classified as held for sale and would

tion between the principal amount of the loan and the net sales proceeds of

be presented separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the

the asset. Based upon Kennedy Wilson’s evaluation of guarantees under

balance sheet.

Estimated Fair Value of Guarantees ASC Subtopic 460-10, the estimated fair

Accounts Receivable—Accounts receivable are recorded at the contractual
amount as determined by the underlying agreements and do not bear inter-

value of guarantees made as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 is
immaterial.

est. An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided when the Company

Concentration of Credit Risk—Financial instruments that subject Kennedy

determines there are probable credit losses in the Company’s existing

Wilson to credit risk consist primarily of accounts and notes receivable and

accounts receivable and is determined based on historical experience. The

cash equivalents. Credit risk is generally diversified due to the large number

Company reviews its accounts receivable for probable credit losses on a

of entities composing Kennedy Wilson’s customer base and their geographic

quarterly basis. As of December 31, 2013, the Company had an immaterial

dispersion throughout the United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain

allowance for doubtful accounts and during the years ended December 31,

and Japan. Kennedy Wilson performs ongoing credit evaluations of its

2013, 2012 and 2011 had recorded no provision for doubtful accounts.

customers and debtors.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The estimated fair value of financial

Earnings Per Share—Basic earnings per share is computed based upon the

instruments is determined using available market information and appropri-

weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during

ate valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment, however, is necessary

the periods presented. Diluted earnings per share is computed based upon

to interpret market data and develop the related estimates of fair value.

the weighted average number of shares of common stock and potentially

Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of

dilutive securities outstanding during the periods presented. The dilutive

the amounts that could be realized upon disposition of the financial instru-

impact of potentially dilutive securities including warrants, convertible securi-

ments. The use of different market assumptions or estimation methodologies

ties, and unvested stock which were outstanding during the period is

may have a material impact on the estimated fair value amounts.

calculated by the “treasury stock” method.

Noncontrolling Interests—Noncontrolling interests are reported within equity

Foreign Currencies—The financial statements of subsidiaries located outside

as a separate component of Kennedy Wilson’s equity in accordance with

the United States are measured using the local currency as the functional

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements ASC Subtopic

currency. The assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated at the

810-10. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, net income or loss, and other

rates of exchange at the balance sheet date, and income and expenses are

comprehensive income are reported in the consolidated statements of oper-

translated at the average monthly rate. The foreign currencies include the

ations at the consolidated amounts and net income and comprehensive

euro, the British pound sterling, and the Japanese yen. Cumulative transla-

income attributable to noncontrolling interests are separately stated.
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities —The Company has joint
ventures that hold derivatives to reduce their exposure to foreign currencies.

tion adjustments, to the extent not included in cumulative net income, are
included in the consolidated statements of equity and comprehensive income
as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income.

All derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the

Comprehensive (Loss) Income—Comprehensive (loss) income consists of

balance sheet at their respective fair values. For derivatives designated in

net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss). In the accompa-

hedging relationships, changes in fair value of cash flow hedges or net

nying consolidated balance sheets, accumulated other comprehensive

investment hedges are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive

income consists of foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized

income, to the extent the derivative is effective at offsetting the changes in

gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities and derivative instruments.

the item being hedged until the hedged item affects earnings. Changes
in fair value for fair value hedges are recognized in earnings.
Guarantees—The Company has certain guarantees associated with loans

Repurchase of Equity Instruments—Upon the decision to retire repurchased
equity instruments, Kennedy Wilson records the retirement as a reduction to
additional paid-in capital.

secured by consolidated assets and assets held in various joint venture investments. The maximum potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) the
Company could be required to make under the guarantees was $51.1 million
and $55.5 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Share-Based Payment Arrangements—Kennedy Wilson accounts for its

Reclassifications —Certain balances included in prior years’ financial

share-based payment arrangements under the provisions of Share-Based

statements have been reclassified to conform with the current

Payments ASC Subtopic 718-10. Compensation cost for employee service

year’s presentation.

received in exchange for an award of equity instruments is based on the
grant-date fair value of the share-based award that is ultimately settled in

NOTE 3—NOTES RECEIVABLE

equity of Kennedy Wilson. The cost of employee services is recognized over

The following table summarizes the Company’s investment in notes

the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the

receivable at December 31, 2013 and 2012:
December 31,

share-based payment award. Share-based payment arrangements with only

2013

2012

Notes receivable
Notes receivable—related parties

$52.7
4.1

$136.6
—

Notes receivable and notes receivable—related parties (1)

$56.8

$136.6

services conditions that vest ratably over the requisite service period are

(dollars in millions)

recognized on the straight-line basis and performance awards that vest ratably are recognized on a tranche-by-tranche basis over the performance
period. Unrecognized compensation costs for share-based payment arrangements that have been modified are recognized over the original service or
performance period.
Income Taxes—Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability
method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax

(1) The notes receivable have a weighted average stated interest rate of 6.18% and 5.65%
at December 31, 2013 and 2012 and maturity dates ranging from June 2014 to
February 2017. Effective interest rates are higher as certain notes receivable were
acquired at a discount.

consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company sold a 50%

carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax

interest in an entity that held a note receivable of $122.8 million secured by

bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets

a shopping center and 107 residential units in the United Kingdom to an

and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to tax-

institutional investor. As a result of the sale and loss of control, Kennedy

able income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected

Wilson deconsolidated the investment and is accounting for it as an equity

to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of

method investment.

a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. In accordance with Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes ASC Subtopic 740-10, Kennedy Wilson recognizes the effect of
income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being
sustained. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest
amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in
judgment occurs.

Interest Income from Notes Receivable—The Company recognized interest
income on notes receivable of $1.6 million, $2.8 million, and $2.3 million
during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011.
NOTE 4—REAL ESTATE
The following table summarizes the Company’s investment in consolidated
real estate properties at December 31, 2013 and 2012:
December 31,

Kennedy Wilson records interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties in general and administrative expenses.

(dollars in millions)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements—In February 2013, the FASB issued
ASC Update No. 2013-02 “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of

Land
Buildings
Building improvements

Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.”
Update No. 2013-02 is effective prospectively for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. ASC 2013-02 requires an entity to present
separately information about the effects on net income of significant amounts
reclassified out of each component of accumulated other comprehensive
income. An entity can present the information on the face of the comprehensive income statement or as a separate disclosure in the notes to the
financial statements. This update does not have any effect on Kennedy
Wilson’s financial statements as Kennedy Wilson has already followed

Less accumulated depreciation
Real estate, net
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2012

$187.8
484.1
12.7

$99.5
193.3
4.0

684.6
(15.8)

296.8
(7.4)

$668.8

$289.4

Real property, including land, buildings, and building improvements, are
included in real estate and are generally stated at cost. Buildings and building improvements are depreciated on the straight-line method over their
estimated lives not to exceed 40 years.

this presentation.
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Depreciation expense on buildings and building improvements for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $8.4 million, $2.0 million
and $1.4 million.
Consolidated Acquisitions—The purchase price of acquired properties is recorded to land, buildings and building improvements and intangible lease value (value
of above-market and below-market leases, acquired in-place lease values, and tenant relationships, if any) based on their respective estimated fair values. The
purchase price approximates the fair value of the properties as these acquisitions are via a listed transaction with other competitive bidders participating.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the company acquired the following properties:
Location

Purchase
Price

Land

Building

Intangible
Assets

Mortgage
Loans

Cash
Paid

Western U.S.
Western U.S.
Western U.S.
Western U.S.
Western U.S.
Ireland
Western U.S.

$ 61.8
29.7
5.8
10.9
11.5
1.2
29.8

$18.4
11.2
1.3
2.7
3.5
0.7
3.8

$ 43.0
18.5
4.2
6.7
7.4
0.5
25.8

$0.3
—
0.3
1.5
0.7
—
0.2

$ 49.7
18.7
4.0
7.3
8.0
—
22.4

$12.1
11.0
1.8
3.6
3.5
1.2
7.4

$150.7

$41.6

$106.1

$3.0

$110.1

$40.6

(dollars in millions)

Date Acquired

Type

04/29/2013
06/27/2013
09/16/2013
10/01/2013
10/01/2013
12/04/2013
12/16/2013

Multifamily
Commercial
Retail
Retail
Retail
Commercial
Multifamily

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the company acquired the following properties:
Location

Purchase
Price

Land

Building

Intangible
Assets

Mortgage
Loans

Cash
Paid

Western U.S.
Western U.S.
Western U.S.
Western U.S.

$ 31.0
47.4
44.4
43.5

$12.4
8.8
2.6
8.6

$ 18.4
31.4
41.4
34.5

$0.2
7.2
0.4
0.3

$ 23.5
29.0
26.0
31.6

$ 7.5
18.4
18.4
11.9

$166.3

$32.4

$125.7

$8.1

$110.1

$56.2

(dollars in millions)

Date Acquired

Type

10/30/2012
11/15/2012
11/20/2012
11/27/2012

Multifamily
Commercial
Multifamily (1)
Multifamily

(1) The fair value of this multifamily property was in excess of the purchase price because this acquisition was an off-market transaction, and therefore we recognized a gain of approximately
$2.6 million in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Joint Venture Consolidations—During the year ended December 31, 2013

During the first quarter of 2013, the Company acquired the interest of

and December 31, 2012, the Company amended the existing operating

some of its existing partners in a 615-unit apartment building in Northern

agreements governing certain of its investments with its equity partners

California, increasing its ownership from 15% to 94%. The original 15%

thereby allowing the Company to gain control of these operating properties.

interest had a book value of $0 due to prior distributions. Cash consideration

As a result of obtaining control, the Company was required to consolidate the

of $15.7 million was paid by the Company to increase its ownership in the

assets and liabilities of these properties at fair value in accordance with

property to 94% and resulted in the Company obtaining control.

Business Combinations guidance. As the fair value of the property was in

The Company recorded an acquisition-related gain as the fair value was in

excess of the carrying value of its ownership interest, an acquisition-related

excess of the carrying value of its ownership interest. As this transaction

gain was recorded in the accompanying consolidated statement of opera-

was between willing third party participants, the purchase price was an

tions for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

approximation of fair value.

See Note 7—Fair Value Measurements for further detail of the methodology
used to determine the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired in
these transactions.
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December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
In addition, by amending the existing operating agreements governing three retail centers in the Western U.S. (third quarter of 2013) and the Ritz-Carlton,
Lake Tahoe (fourth quarter of 2013) which the Company had previously accounted for using the equity method, the Company gained control of these properties
and consolidated the properties at fair value. The following table summarizes the assets and liabilities assumed as a result gaining control of these properties
and the acquisition-related gains recognized.
Accounts
Receivable and
Other Assets

Accounts Payable
and Accrued
Expenses

Mortgage
Loans

Noncontrolling
Interests

AcquisitionRelated Gain

Property

Type

Cash

Real
Estate, Net

615-unit apartment building
Three retail centers
Ritz-Carlton

Multifamily
Retail
Residential

$1.3
1.4
4.4

$120.1
20.4
105.1

$ 2.3
9.2
7.4

$ 3.2
0.7
8.0

$ 93.5
20.1
28.0

$ 1.8
0.5
18.0

$ 9.5
2.0
45.1

$7.1

$245.6

$18.9

$11.9

$141.6

$20.3

$56.6

(dollars in millions)

During 2012, due to a change of control, Kennedy Wilson began to consolidate KW Property Fund II, LP, (“Fund II”) a limited partnership that had been previously accounted for using the equity method and to whom the Company had advanced $39.6 million in notes receivable as of November 30, 2012. This entity
directly owns two office buildings which are encumbered by mortgage loans and has investments in real estate joint ventures which in aggregate own seven
office properties. As a result of obtaining control of this entity, the following assets and liabilities were assumed and an acquisition-related gain recognized.

Property

Type

Cash

Real
Estate, Net

Fund II

Commercial

$0.6

$11.1

(dollars in millions)

Investment in
Joint Ventures

Other
Assets

Accounts Payable
and Accrued
Expenses

Notes
Payable

Mortgage
Loans

Noncontrolling
Interests

AcquisitionRelated Gain

$75.4

$2.7

$1.6

$5.8

$8.9

$7.6

$22.8

Pro Forma Results of Operations—The results of operations of the assets

NOTE 5—INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

acquired have been included in our consolidated financial statements since

The Company has a number of joint venture interests, generally ranging from

the date of the acquisitions. The Company’s unaudited pro forma results

5% to approximately 50% ownership, that were formed to acquire, manage,

have been prepared for comparative purposes only and do not purport to be

develop, and/or sell real estate and invest in discounted loan purchases and

indicative of the results of operations that would have occurred had the

loan originations. The Company has significant influence over these entities,

acquisition been consummated at the beginning of the periods presented.

but not control, and accordingly, these investments are accounted for under

The unaudited pro forma data presented below assumes that the
acquisitions during the year ended December 31, 2013 occurred as of
January 1, 2012.
Unaudited
Year Ended December 31,
(dollars in millions, except for per share data)

Pro forma revenues
Pro forma equity in joint venture income
Pro forma net loss attributable to
 Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
common shareholders
Pro forma net loss per share:
Basic

P A G E

4 2

2013

2012

$178.1
$1.0

$111.7
$1.4

the equity method.
Joint Venture Holdings —As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the
Company’s equity investment in joint ventures totaled $751.4 million and
$543.2 million, respectively.
The following table details our investments in joint ventures by investment
type and geographic location as of December 31, 2013:
(dollars in millions)

$(13.3)

$(10.0)

$(0.19)

$(0.18)

Commercial Multifamily

Loan

Residential
and Hotel

Other

Total

Western U.S.
Japan
United Kingdom
Ireland
Spain
Other U.S.

$156.7
—
104.5
96.1
—
3.6

$133.1
68.8
—
48.2
—
0.2

$50.3
—
6.3
—
—
—

$48.4
—
—
—
—
0.3

$ 0.4 $388.9
—
68.8
— 110.8
— 144.3
26.9
26.9
7.6
11.7

Total

$360.9

$250.3

$56.6

$48.7

$34.9 $751.4

The following table details our investments in joint ventures by investment
type and geographic location as of December 31, 2012:

$2.5 million, respectively, from foreign currency translation adjustments, net

Commercial

Multifamily

Loan

Residential
and Hotel

Western U.S.
Japan
Ireland
Other U.S.

$141.6
—
9.5
3.5

$126.9
102.7
22.4
0.4

$41.8
—
36.7
—

$51.8
—
—
0.2

$0.4
—
—
5.3

$362.5
102.7
68.6
9.4

Total

$154.6

$252.4

$78.5

$52.0

$5.7

$543.2

(dollars in millions)

During the year ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, the
Company recognized a loss of $6.9 million, and gains of $1.2 million and

Other

Total

Equity in Joint Venture Income—For the year ended December 31, 2013,
2012, and 2011 equity in joint venture income was $29.8 million, $21.5
million, and $12.5 million.
The increase in equity in joint venture income during 2013 compared to
2012 is primarily due to acquisition-related gains of $36.2 million on note
conversions in European joint venture investments. See Note Conversion into
Real Estate section below for a more detailed discussion. These gains were
offset by acquisition-related expenses of $13.5 million relating to new joint

of hedges from its investment in KWR.
During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, the
Company received the following cash distributions from its investment in
KWR for the settlement of hedges, refinancing of property level debt, and
operating distributions:
Years Ended December 31,
(dollars in millions)

2013

2012

2011

Settlement of hedges
Refinancing of property level debt
Operating distributions

$10.8
5.8
9.4

$ —
1.8
9.6

$ 2.1
5.8
3.3

Total

$26.0

$11.4

$11.2

The cash received as a result of unwinding KWR’s hedges will not be
realized in our statement of operations until the underlying investment is
substantially liquidated.

ventures in the United Kingdom, Ireland and Spain which resulted in

Note Conversion into Real Estate—During the year, the Company and its

significant stamp duty taxes. The increase in equity in joint venture income

equity partners converted three mortgage notes into real estate owned. As a

during 2012 compared to 2011 relate to property sales and fair value gains.

result of the conversion, the joint ventures were required to consolidate the

KW Residential LLC—The Company’s largest joint venture investment, KW
Residential, LLC (“KWR”), had a balance of $68.8 million and $102.7 million
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. KWR is a joint venture investment in a
portfolio of 50 apartment buildings comprised of approximately 2,400 units,

assets and liabilities at fair value under ASC 805 “Business Combinations.”
As the fair value of each of the assets was in excess of the basis of the
previously held mortgage note, the Company recorded the following
acquisition-related gains:

located primarily in Tokyo and surrounding areas. The Company owns
approximately 41% of KWR.

Location

Total Joint Venture
AcquisitionRelated Gain

The Company’s
Portion of
Total Gain

Dublin, Ireland
Manchester, UK
Glasgow, Scotland

$30.1
32.3
10.1

$15.0
16.2
5.0

$72.5

$36.2

(amounts shown in millions)

Date

Description

Q2 2013
Q3 2013
Q4 2013

Class A Office Building and adjacent 3.5 acre site
The Rock—a retail, residential, and entertainment center
Class A Office Building

Total
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(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Changes in Control—On December 12, 2013, the Company and one of its

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company acquired 49.5%

equity partners amended the existing operating agreement governing its

of the non-managing membership interests in Bay Area Smart Growth Fund

investments in the Ritz-Carlton Hotel, Lake Tahoe which was accounted for

II, LLC (“BASGF II”). Prior to the acquisition, the Company had a 5% manag-

on the equity method. As a result of obtaining control, the joint venture

ing member interest and served as the noncontrolling managing member.

investment is now consolidated as of December 31, 2013 and not treated

The terms of the partnership agreement require a vote of the majority inter-

as an investment in joint venture. The investment is presented as an

est of the non-managing members, whose commitments are greater than

equity method investment for prior periods. See Note 4 for impact

50% of the aggregate capital commitments, in order to direct and control

of consolidation.

key decision making over the partnership. Since the Company acquired only

On September 30, 2013, the Company and one of its equity partners

49.5% of the non-managing member interests, the Company has concluded

amended existing operating agreements governing investments in three retail

that it does not control BASGF II and will continue to account for its interest

centers in the Western United States which were accounted for on the equity

in the entity as an equity method investment. As of December 31, 2013 and

method. As a result of obtaining control, the joint venture investments were

2012, the Company’s investment in this joint venture was $13.3 million and

consolidated as of September 30, 2013 and not treated as investments in

$12.9 million.

joint ventures. The investments are presented as an equity method
investment for prior periods. See Note 4.
On November 30, 2012, due to a change of control, Kennedy Wilson
began to consolidate Fund II, a limited partnership that had been previously
accounted for using the equity method. See Note 4 for further discussion.

Contributions to Joint Ventures—During the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012, and 2011, Kennedy Wilson made $322.7 million, $178.6 million, and
$105.4 million in contributions to new and existing joint venture investments.
See the table below for a breakdown of contributions to new joint venture
investments for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011:
Years Ended December 31,

2013

(dollars in millions)

2011

Region

No. of
Properties

Initial
Contribution

No. of
Properties

Initial
Contribution

No. of
Properties

Initial
Contribution

Western U.S.
United Kingdom
Ireland
Western U.S.
Ireland
Western U.S.
Spain

4
42
14
2
1
3
1

$ 30.3
92.2
38.7
9.1
58.0
10.0
27.2

9
—
2
5
2
2
—

$ 26.9
—
45.8
22.9
34.3
19.6
—

5
—
—
8
—
2
—

$25.8
—
—
19.9
—
17.9
—

67

$265.5

20

$149.5

15

$63.6

Investment Type
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Multifamily
Multifamily
Residential
Other

2012

Total

In addition to the capital contributions above to new joint venture investments, the Company contributed $57.2 million, $29.1 million, and $41.8 million to
existing joint ventures to pay off external debt, fund our share of a development project and for working capital needs, during the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively.
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Distributions from Joint Ventures —The following table details cash distributions by investment type and geographic location for the year ended
December 31, 2013:
Multifamily

Commercial

Loan

Residential

Total

Operating

Investing

Operating

Investing

Operating

Investing

Operating

Investing

Operating

Investing

Western U.S.
Japan
United Kingdom
Ireland
Other

$10.0
9.4
—
2.9
0.4

$ 7.1
16.6
—
28.9
0.2

$12.8
—
9.2
3.5
—

$20.9
—
4.4
—
—

$—
—
4.0
—
—

$—
—
0.3
—
—

$3.9
—
—
—
—

$3.0
—
—
—
0.1

$26.7
9.4
13.2
6.4
0.4

$31.0
16.6
4.7
28.9
0.3

Total

$22.7

$52.8

$25.5

$25.3

$4.0

$0.3

$3.9

$3.1

$56.1

$81.5

(dollars in millions)

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company received $137.6

Cost Method— Investments in which Kennedy Wilson does not have signifi-

million in operating and investing distributions from its joint ventures.

cant influence are accounted for under the cost method of accounting. As of

Investing distributions resulted from KWR’s favorable settlement of Japanese

December 31, 2013 and 2012, Kennedy Wilson had three investments

yen-related hedges and refinancing a portion of its multifamily portfolio, the

accounted for under the cost method with a carrying value totaling $7.6

refinancing of property level debt, asset sales, and loan resolutions.

million and $5.7 million.

Operating distributions resulted from operating cash flow generated by the
joint venture investments.

Capital Commitments— As of December 31, 2013, the Company has unfulfilled capital commitments totaling $8.0 million to four of its joint ventures.

Variable Interest Entities —Kennedy Wilson has determined that it has

The Company may be called upon to contribute additional capital to joint

investments in five variable interest entities (“VIEs”) as of December 31,

ventures in satisfaction of the Company’s capital commitment obligations.

2013 and has concluded that Kennedy Wilson is not the primary beneficiary
of any of the investments. As of December 31, 2013, the five VIEs had
assets totaling $189.6 million with Kennedy Wilson’s exposure to loss as
a result of its interests in these VIEs totaling $72.6 million related to its
equity contributions.
The Company determines the appropriate accounting method with respect
to all investments that are not VIEs based on the control-based framework
(controlled entities are consolidated) provided by the consolidations guidance
in ASC Topic 810. The Company’s determination considers specific factors
cited under ASC 810-20 “Control of Partnerships and Similar Entities” which
presumes that control is held by the general partner (and managing member
equivalents in limited liability companies). Limited partners’ substantive participation rights may overcome this presumption of control. The Company

Guarantees—The Company has certain guarantees associated with loans
secured by consolidated assets or assets held directly or in various joint
ventures. As of December 31, 2013 the maximum potential amount of future
payments (undiscounted) the Company could be required to make under the
guarantees was approximately $51.1 million which is approximately 2% of
the property level debt of the Company. The guarantees expire through 2017,
and the Company’s performance under the guarantees would be required to
the extent there is a shortfall upon liquidation between the principal amount
of the loan and the net sale proceeds from the property. Based upon the
Company’s evaluation of guarantees under ASC Subtopic 460-10 “Estimated
Fair Value of Guarantees,” the estimated fair value of guarantees made as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 is immaterial.

accounts for joint ventures it is deemed not to control using the equity
method of accounting while controlled entities are consolidated.
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December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Summarized financial data of the joint ventures is as follows:
December 31, 2013

Greater
Than 20%(1)

December 31, 2012

Greater
Than 20%(1)

Other

Total

74.0
1,996.8
4.0
466.8

$40.9
2,438.8
—
150.7

$114.9
4,435.6
4.0
617.5

$

Total assets (3)

$2,541.6

$2,630.4

Liabilities
Debt
Other

$1,263.6
75.5

(dollars in millions)

Balance sheets for equity method investments:
Assets
   Cash and restricted cash
   Real estate
   Loan pool participation (2)
  Other

Total

7.7
311.1
137.1
11.6

$75.7
3,065.2
—
210.7

$83.4
3,376.3
137.1
222.3

$5,172.0

$ 467.5

$3,351.6

$3,819.1

$1,714.1
64.7

$2,977.7
140.2

$ 139.8
4.2

$1,977.5
61.6

$2,117.3
65.8

1,339.1

1,778.8

3,117.9

144.0

2,039.1

2,183.1

379.5
818.6

344.7
506.9

724.2
1,325.5

35.2
176.6

483.7
828.8

518.9
1,005.4

1,198.1

851.6

2,049.7

211.8

1,312.5

1,524.3

2.2
2.2

—
—

2.2
2.2

60.3
51.4

—
—

60.3
51.4

4.4

—

4.4

111.7

—

111.7

$2,541.6

$2,630.4

$5,172.0

$ 467.5

$3,351.6

$3,819.1

$

Total liabilities
Partners’ capital
 Kennedy Wilson—investments in joint ventures
Other partners
Total partners’ capital—investments in joint ventures
 Kennedy Wilson—investments in loan pool participation
Other partners

Other

(2)

Total partners’ capital—investments in loan pool participation
Total liabilities and partners’ capital

Total investments are comprised of the following:
December 31, 2013

(dollars in millions)

Equity method
Unrealized gain on fair value option

Total

Other

Total

$344.7
19.6

$724.2
19.6

$35.2
18.6

$483.7
—

$518.9
18.6

379.5
—

364.3
7.6

743.8
7.6

53.8
—

483.7
5.7

537.5
5.7

$379.5

$371.9

$751.4

$53.8

$489.4

$543.2

$

$   —

$60.4

$   —

Other

$379.5
—

Cost method
Total investments in joint ventures
Loan pool participation (2)

December 31, 2012

Greater
Than 20% (1)

Greater
Than 20% (1)

—

(1) Equity in income from the joint venture or income from loan pool participation for the year ended December 31, 2013, 2012 or 2011 exceeds 20% of Kennedy Wilson’s income from continuing
operations before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2013, 2012 or 2011. No individual investments in joint ventures or loan pool participation exceeds 20% of the total assets of
Kennedy Wilson as of December 31, 2013 or 2012.
(2) This loan pool has been included in the investment in joint ventures footnote greater than 20% column as this entity was determined to be a significant investment for purposes of S-X §210.3-09.
See further discussion on this loan pool participation in note 6. The other investments in loan pool participation were excluded as they were determined to be not significant investments.
(3) The balance sheets and income statements include all investments in joint ventures as well as an investment in a loan pool participation, which was determined to be significant investments for
the purposes of S-X §210.3-09.
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Equity in joint venture income for the years ended December 31:
(dollars in millions)

2013

2012

2011

Net income allocation
Unrealized gain on fair value option

$28.8
1.0

$13.7
7.8

$ 9.1
3.4

$29.8

$21.5

$12.5

$ 8.7

$ 7.9

$ 1.4

Total equity in joint venture income
Participation income allocation

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Greater
Than 20% (1)

Other

Total

Greater
Than 20% (1)

Other

Total

$229.6

$427.5

$657.1

$38.2

$532.5

$570.7

Depreciation
Interest
Other expenses

58.1
42.3
83.6

57.9
86.8
271.7

116.0
129.1
355.3

(4.1)
22.0
(0.7)

72.6
87.9
337.6

68.5
109.9
336.9

  Total expenses

184.0

416.4

600.4

17.2

498.1

515.3

$ 45.6

$11.1

$56.7

$21.0

$34.4

$55.4

$ 28.6

$0.2

$28.8

$ (3.3)

$17.0

$13.7

8.7
(4.3)

—
10.9

8.7
6.6

7.9
16.2

—
17.4

7.9
33.6

(dollars in millions)

Statements of income:
Revenues

Net income

(3)

Net income allocation:
 Kennedy Wilson—investments in
joint ventures
 Kennedy Wilson—investments in
loan pool participation (2)
Other partners
 Other partners—investments in
loan pool participation (2)
Net income (3)

12.6

—

12.6

0.2

—

0.2

$ 45.6

$11.1

$56.7

$21.0

$34.4

$55.4

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Greater
Than 20% (1)

Other

Total

Statements of income:
Revenues

$45.8

$249.1

$294.9

Depreciation
Interest
Other expenses

10.2
14.0
16.5

48.3
69.3
127.8

58.5
83.3
144.3

40.7
—

245.4
9.3

286.1
9.3

Net income

$ 5.1

$13.0

$18.1

Net income allocation:
Kennedy Wilson—investments in joint ventures
 Kennedy Wilson—investments in loan pool participation (2)
Other partners— investments in joint ventures
Other partners— investments in loan pool participation

$ 1.3
1.4
3.3
(0.9)

$7.8
—
5.2
—

$9.1
1.4
8.5
(0.9)

$ 5.1

$13.0

$18.1

(dollars in millions)

  Total expenses
Gains on extinguishment of debt

Net income
(1), (2), (3) See discussion above.
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(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
NOTE 6—INVESTMENTS IN LOAN POOL PARTICIPATIONS
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company’s investment in loan pool participations totaled $34.7 million and $95.6 million.
The following table represents the demographics of the Company’s investment in the loan pools including the initial UPB and the UPB as of
December 31, 2013.
Unpaid Principal Balance
(dollars in millions)

Acquisition Date

Location

February 2010
December 2011
April 2012
August 2012
December 2012
April 2013
August 2013

Western U.S.
United Kingdom
Western U.S.
Ireland
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Kennedy Wilson
Ownership
15.0%
12.5%
75.0%
10.0%
5.0%
10.0%
20.0%

Initial (1)

December 31,
2013 (2)

Kennedy
Wilson Initial
Equity Invested

Investment
Balance at
12/31/13

Expected Accretion
Over Total Estimated
Collection Period

Accreted
to Date

$342.4
2,111.3
43.4
477.2
605.0
177.2
136.6

$  8.0
44.7
5.7
367.6
152.1
165.7
140.9

$ 11.1
61.2
30.9
7.0
19.3
13.0
7.5

$ 0.9
—
4.6
8.3
2.0
10.7
8.2

$ 4.6
19.3
4.1
1.7
1.9
3.2
4.5

$ 4.6
18.1
3.8
0.5
0.8
0.7
0.5

$3,893.1

$884.7

$150.0

$34.7

$39.3

$29.0

(1) Initial UPB presented at historical exchange rates.
(2) Estimated foreign exchange rate is £0.61 = $1 USD and €0.73 = $1 USD.

Investment Update—UK Loan Pool

The following table presents the interest income and foreign currency gain

In 2011, the Company, along with institutional partners, acquired a loan

and (loss) recognized by Kennedy Wilson during the years ended December

portfolio consisting of 58 performing loans (the “U.K. Loan Pool”). The

31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 in each of the loan pools that were outstanding:

Company, through a 50/50 joint venture with one of its partners, acquired a
25% participation interest in the pool for $440.9 million, of which $323.4
million was funded with debt that was fully repaid during 2013. As of
December 31, 2013, the unpaid principal balance of the loans were $44.7
million due to collections and resolutions of $2.1 billion through December

Year Ended December 31,
(dollars in millions)

Interest income recognized
Foreign currency translation (loss) gain

31, 2013, representing 98% of the pool. As a result of the positive performance of the loan pool, all of the Company’s initial equity contribution has
been returned as of December 31, 2013. During the year ended December
31, 2013, the Company received $66.2 million in distributions related to
resolutions in the UK Loan Pool and $23.2 million from its promoted interest.
To date, Kennedy Wilson has accreted $18.1 million of the expected $19.3
million in interest income on the UK Loan Pool over the total estimated collection period (excluding asset management fees). As a result of the substantial liquidation of the loan pool, Kennedy Wilson has recognized a
$2.8 million loss in foreign currency translations in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

K E N N E D Y - W I L S O N

H O L D I N G S ,

I N C .

A N D

S U B S I D I A R I E S

2013

2012

2011

$11.9
(2.2)

$6.4
3.0

$ 5.7
(2.6)

$9.7

$9.4

$ 3.1

NOTE 7—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND

Short-Term Investments —The carrying value of short-term investments

THE FAIR VALUE OPTION

approximates fair value due to the short maturities of these investments at

Fair Value Measurements—Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC
Subtopic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs

December 31, 2012. The short-term investments matured during the second
quarter of 2013.

to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the

Investments in Joint Ventures—Kennedy Wilson records its investments in

highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical

KW Property Fund III, L.P., Kennedy Wilson Real Estate Fund IV, and SG KW

assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to mea-

Venture I, LLC (the “Funds”) based upon the net assets that would be allo-

surements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measure-

cated to its interests in the Funds assuming the Funds were to liquidate their

ments). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

investments at fair value as of the reporting date. The Company’s investment

Level 1—Valuations based on unadjusted quoted market prices in active

balance in the Funds was $33.5 million and $25.8 million at December 31,

markets for identical securities.

2013 and 2012, respectively, which is included in investments in joint ven-

Level 2—Valuations based on observable inputs (other than Level 1

tures in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31,

prices), such as quoted prices for similar assets and quoted prices in

2013, the Company had unfunded capital commitments to the Funds in the

markets that are not active.

amount of $6.6 million.

Level 3—Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement, and involve management
judgment.
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement
in its entirety falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement in its entirety.
The following table presents fair value measurements (including items that
are required to be measured at fair value and items for which the fair value
option has been elected) as of December 31, 2013:

Kennedy Wilson elected to use the fair value option (“FV Option”) for two
investments in joint venture entities to more accurately reflect the timing of
the value created in the underlying investments and report those results in
current operations. The Company’s investment balance in the FV Option
investments was $47.6 million and $42.6 million at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively, which are included in investments in joint ventures in the
accompanying balance sheets.
The following table summarizes our investments in joint ventures held at
fair value by type:
December 31,

(dollars in millions)

Marketable securities (1)
Investments in joint ventures
Currency forward contract (2)

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$4.0
—
—

$ —
—
(9.6)

$ —
81.1
—

$4.0
81.1
(9.6)

$4.0

$(9.6)

$81.1

$75.5

2012

Funds
FV Option

$33.5
47.6

$25.8
42.6

Total

$81.1

$68.4

in investment companies and investments in joint ventures that elected the

(2) See further discussion of currency forward contracts.

The following table presents fair value measurements (including items that
are required to be measured at fair value and items for which the fair value
option has been elected) as of December 31, 2012:

Short-term investments
Investments in joint ventures
Currency forward contract

2013

The following table presents changes in Level 3 investments, investments

(1) Included in other assets.

(dollars in millions)

(dollars in millions)

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$—
—
—

$10.0
—
(1.2)

$ —
68.4
—

$10.0
68.4
(1.2)

$—

$ 8.8

$68.4

$77.2

fair value option, for the years ended December 31:
(dollars in millions)

2013

2012

2011

Beginning balance
 Unrealized and realized gains
 Unrealized and realized losses
Contributions
Distributions

$68.4
5.3
(0.3)
10.8
(3.1)

$51.4
10.0
(0.4)
11.6
(4.2)

$34.7
5.7
(1.4)
14.0
(1.6)

Ending Balance

$81.1

$68.4

$51.4

Marketable Securities—The carrying value of marketable securities is a
Level 1 valuation as the fair value is based off of unadjusted quoted market
prices in active markets for identical securities.
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(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
The change in unrealized and realized gains and losses are included in
equity in joint venture (loss) income in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.
The change in unrealized gains on Level 3 investments during 2013 and
2012 for investments still held as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 were
$4.0 million and $8.6 million, respectively.
In estimating fair value of real estate held by the Funds, two joint ventures
that elected the fair value option investments and the value of the real estate
consolidated (as further described in Note 4), the Company considers
significant inputs such as capitalization and discount rates. The table
below describes the range of inputs used as of December 31, 2013 for real
estate assets:
Estimated Rates Used For

Office
Retail
Hotel
Multifamily
Loan
Land and condominium units

Capitalization Rates

Discount Rates

6.00%–7.50%
6.00%–10.00%
6.50%
5.75%–7.00%
N/A
N/A

7.00%–9.75%
9.00%–12.00%
8.00%
7.50%–9.00%
1.75%–12.00%
8.00%–12.00%

In valuing real estate related assets and indebtedness, Kennedy Wilson
considers significant inputs such as the term of the debt, value of collateral,
market loan-to-value ratios, market interest rates and spreads, and credit
quality of investment entities. The credit spreads used by Kennedy Wilson for
these types of investments range from 1.75% to 12.00%.
The accuracy of estimating fair value for investments utilizing unobservable inputs cannot be determined with precision, cannot be substantiated by
comparison to quoted prices in active markets, and may not be realized in a
current sale or immediate settlement of the asset or liability. Additionally,
there are inherent uncertainties in any fair value measurement technique,
and changes in the underlying assumptions used, including cap rates,

discount rates, liquidity risks, and estimates of future cash flows, could significantly affect the fair value measurement amounts.
Currency Forward Contracts—Kennedy Wilson has currency forward contracts to manage its exposure to currency fluctuations between its functional
currency (U.S. dollars) and the functional currency (euros and GBP) of certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries. To accomplish this objective, Kennedy
Wilson hedged these exposures by entering into currency forward contracts
to partially hedge Kennedy Wilson’s exposure to its net investment in certain
foreign operations caused by currency fluctuations. The currency forward
contracts are valued based on the difference between the contract rate and
the forward rate at maturity of the foreign currency applied to the notional
value in that foreign currency discounted at a market rate for similar risks.
Although Kennedy Wilson has determined that the majority of the inputs
used to value its derivative fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the
counterparty risk adjustments associated with the derivative utilize Level 3
inputs. However, as of December 31, 2013, Kennedy Wilson assessed the
significance of the impact of the counterparty valuation adjustments on the
overall valuation of its derivative positions and determined that the counterparty valuation adjustments are not significant to the overall valuation of its
derivative. As a result, Kennedy Wilson has determined that its derivative
valuation in its entirety be classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
Changes in fair value are recorded in other comprehensive income in the
accompanying consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) as
the portion of the currency forward contract used to hedge currency exposure of its certain wholly-owned subsidiaries qualifies as a net investment
hedge under ASC Topic 815. The fair value of the derivative instruments held
as of December 31, 2013 are included in accrued expenses and other
liabilities on the balance sheet.
The table below details the currency forward contracts Kennedy Wilson
had as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:
Fair Value Liabilities

Change in Unrealized Losses

December 31,

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in millions)

Currency
Euro
GBP
Total
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Notional Amount

Trade Date

Settlement Date

€96.0
£25.5

5/31/2012–12/17/2013
8/9/2013–8/23/2013

6/4/2015–12/19/2016
2/13/2014–8/28/2014

Exchange Rate
1.2400–1.3816
1.5479–1.5522

2013

2012

2013

2012

$7.0
2.6

$1.2
—

$(5.3)
(2.6)

$(1.2)
—

$9.6

$1.2

$(7.9)

$(1.2)

In order to manage currency fluctuations between the Company’s functional currency (U.S. dollar) and the functional currency of KWR’s functional

NOTE 9—OTHER ASSETS
Other assets consist of the following:

currency (Japanese yen), the Company entered into forward foreign currency
contracts to hedge a portion of its net investment in KWR. During the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company recognized $12.9 million
and $10.5 million of gross unrealized gains related to these hedges.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable including related party, accounts payable,
accrued expenses and other liabilities, accrued salaries and benefits,
deferred and accrued income taxes, and income tax receivable approximate
fair value due to their short-term maturities. The carrying value of notes
receivable (excluding related party notes receivable as they are presumed
not to be an arm’s length transaction) approximates fair value as the terms
are similar to loans with similar characteristics available in the market. As of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, senior notes payable, borrow-

December 31,
(dollars in millions)

Loan fees, net of accumulated amortization of $4.5 and
$2.4 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively
Acquired in place leases, net of accumulated amortization
of $10.5 and $3.1 at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively
Office furniture and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation of $2.2 and $1.2
Prepaid expenses
Marketable securities
Deposits and other, net of accumulated amortization of
$1.2 and $0.2 at December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively

ings under lines of credit, mortgage loans payable and junior subordinated
debentures was estimated to be approximately $884.2 million and $708.2
million, respectively, based on a comparison of the yield that would be
required in a current transaction, taking into consideration the risk of the
underlying collateral and our credit risk to the current yield of a similar security, compared to their carrying value of $856.7 million and $686.2 million at
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. The inputs used
to value our senior notes payable, borrowings under lines of credit, mortgage
loans payable and junior subordinated debentures are based on observable
inputs for similar assets and quoted prices in markets that are not active and
are therefore determined to be Level 2 inputs.

prehensive income and into gain on sale of marketable securities included on
the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2012.

19.3

9.3

10.4
7.6
4.0

$2.8
5.3
$—

13.0

6.2

$68.4

$38.1

mates $8.5 million, $5.7 million, $3.3 million, $1.6 million and $0.2 million,
depreciable assets were $11.3 million, $3.9 million, and $1.9 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
NOTE 10—MORTGAGE LOANS AND NOTES PAYABLE
Mortgage loans at December 31, 2013 and 2012 consist of the following:

Property Pledged as Collateral

sale of the stock, $3.3 million was reclassed from accumulated other com-

$14.5

respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense related to the above

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company sold its investment

the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. As a result of the

$14.1

the years ending December 31, 2014 through December 31, 2018 approxi-

(dollars in millions)

of $4.3 million, including the impact of foreign currency, which is included in

2012

The estimated annual amortization expense of in place leases for each of

NOTE 8—MARKETABLE SECURITIES
in the ordinary stock of the Bank of Ireland and recognized a gain on the sale

2013

Carrying Amount of Mortgage Notes
as of December 31,(1)

Notes receivable
Commercial
Multifamily property (1)
Residential
Commercial
Total mortgage loans payable
Notes payable

Region

2013

2012

United Kingdom
Western U.S.
Western U.S.
Western U.S.
Japan

$—
110.4
261.0
28.0
2.4

$78.7
54.3
97.6
—
—

Western U.S.

401.8
5.9

230.6
5.9

5.9

5.9

$407.7

$236.5

Total notes payable
Total mortgage and notes payable

(1) The mortgage loan payable balances include unamortized debt premiums. Debt premiums represent the excess of the fair value of debt over the principal value of debt
assumed in various acquisitions and are amortized into interest expense over the remaining term of the related debt in a manner that approximates the effective interest method.
The unamortized loan premium as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $5.3 million and
$2.3 million.
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(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
In December 2012, the Company acquired a loan secured by a shopping

NOTE 11—BORROWINGS UNDER LINES OF CREDIT

center and 107 residential units in the United Kingdom. At the time of

In September 2013, Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. amended its existing unsecured

acquisition, the Company invested $43.6 million of equity and borrowed

revolving credit facility with U.S. Bank and East-West Bank which increased

$79.3 million in order to finance the transaction (see Note 3). As of

the total principal amount available to be borrowed by an additional $40.0

December 31, 2012, both the note receivable and mortgage payable were

million, for an aggregate availability of $140.0 million. The loan bears interest

consolidated on Kennedy Wilson’s consolidated balance sheet. During 2013,

at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.75% and the maturity date was extended to

the Company sold a 50% interest in an entity that held the note receivable to

October 1, 2016. The revolving loan agreement that governs the unsecured

an institutional investor. As a result of the sale and loss of control, Kennedy

credit facility requires Kennedy Wilson to maintain (i) a minimum rent

Wilson deconsolidated the investment and is accounting for it as an equity

adjusted fixed charge coverage ratio (as defined in the revolving loan agree-

method investment.

ment) of not less than 1.50 to 1.00, measured on a four-quarter rolling aver-

During the year ended December 31, 2013, a first trust deed and supple-

age basis; (ii) maximum balance sheet leverage (as defined in the revolving

mental mortgage loan were consolidated as part of the acquisition of an

loan agreement) of not greater than 1.50 to 1.00, measured at the end of

apartment building in northern California and four mortgage loans were con-

each calendar quarter; (iii) an effective tangible net worth (as defined in the

solidated as a result of Kennedy Wilson gaining control over existing invest-

revolving loan agreement) equal to or greater than $250.0 million, measured

ments in three retail centers and a hotel in the Western U.S. Additionally,

at the end of each calendar quarter; and (iv) unrestricted cash, cash equiva-

during the year ended December 31, 2013, the acquisition of an apartment

lents and publicly traded marketable securities in the aggregate amount of at

building in Salt Lake City, UT, an office building in Beverly Hills, CA, an apart-

least $40.0 million.

ment building in Liberty Lake, WA, three additional retail centers in the

As of December 31, 2013, Kennedy Wilson’s rent adjusted fixed charge

Western U.S. and a commercial property in Japan were partially financed

coverage ratio was 2.52 to 1.00, its balance sheet leverage ratio was 0.61 to

with mortgages. See Note 4 for more detail on the acquisitions.

1.00, and its effective tangible net worth and its unrestricted cash, cash

The aggregate maturities of mortgage loans and notes payable

equivalents and publicly traded marketable securities were $730.3 million
and $178.2 million, respectively, and Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. was in compliance

subsequent to December 31, 2013 are as follows:

with these covenants.

(dollars in millions)

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereafter

$ 38.7
19.2
43.8
32.0
22.3
246.4

The average outstanding borrowings under the facility were $14.9 million
and $11.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. As
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, there was no principal amount outstanding
under the unsecured facility.

402.4
5.3

Debt premium

$407.7
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NOTE 12—SENIOR NOTES
December 31, 2013

(dollars in millions)

2042 Notes
2019 Notes
Senior Notes

December 31, 2012

Interest Rate

Maturity Date

Face Value

Unamortized
Net Premium/
(Discount)

7.75%
8.75%

12/1/2042
4/1/2019

$ 55.0
350.0

$—
4.0

$ 55.0
354.0

$ 55.0
350.0

$—
4.6

$ 55.0
354.6

$405.0

$4.0

$409.0

$405.0

$4.6

$409.6

Carrying
Value

Face Value

Unamortized
Net Premium/
(Discount)

Carrying
Value

In December 2012, Kennedy Wilson completed a public offering of $55.0

The aggregate carrying value of the 8.75% Senior Notes included in the

million aggregate principal amount of 7.75% Senior Notes due 2042. The

accompanying consolidated balance sheets, net of unamortized premiums

Notes were issued and sold at a public offering price of 100% of their princi-

and discounts was $354.0 million and $354.6 million at December 31, 2013

pal amount by Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. (the “Issuer”), a wholly-owned subsid-

and 2012.

iary of Kennedy Wilson. The amount of the 7.75% Senior Notes included in

The indentures governing the 7.75% Senior Notes and the 8.75% Senior

the accompanying consolidated balance sheets was $55.0 million at

notes contain various restrictive covenants, including, among others, limita-

December 31, 2013.

tions on our ability and the ability of certain of our subsidiaries to incur or

In December 2012, the Issuer, in a private placement, issued $100.0 mil-

guarantee additional indebtedness, make restricted payments, pay dividends

lion aggregate principal amount of 8.750% Senior Notes due April 1, 2019

or make any other distributions from restricted subsidiaries, redeem or

(the “Notes”) for approximately $105.3 million, net of premium. The Notes

repurchase capital stock, sell assets or subsidiary stocks, engage in transac-

were issued as additional Notes under an indenture dated as of April 5,

tions with affiliates, create or permit liens on assets, enter into sale/lease-

2011, among the Issuer; Kennedy Wilson, as parent guarantor; certain sub-

back transactions, and enter into consolidations or mergers. The indentures

sidiaries of the Issuer, as subsidiary guarantors; and Wilmington Trust,

governing the 7.75% Senior Notes and the 8.750% Senior Notes limits the

National Association (as successor by merger to Wilmington Trust FSB), as

ability of Kennedy Wilson and certain of its subsidiaries to incur additional

trustee, as thereafter supplemented and amended. During 2011, the Issuer

indebtedness if, on the date of such incurrence and after giving effect to the

issued $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 8.750% Senior

new indebtedness, Kennedy Wilson’s maximum balance sheet leverage ratio

Notes due 2019 on April 5, 2011 for approximately $198.6 million, net of

(as defined in the indenture) is greater than 1.50 to 1.00. This ratio is mea-

discount, and an additional $50.0 million aggregate principal amount of

sured at the time of incurrence of additional indebtedness. As of December

such notes on April 12, 2011 for approximately $50.8 million, net of pre-

31, 2013, the balance sheet leverage ratio was 0.58 to 1.00. See Note 21

mium (together, the “Initial Notes”). The Notes have substantially identical

for the guarantor and non-guarantor financial statements.

terms as the Initial Notes and will be treated as a single series with the
Initial Notes under the Indenture. In December 2011, Kennedy Wilson com-

NOTE 13—JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

menced a registered exchange offer for the Initial Notes. The exchange was

In 2007, Kennedy Wilson issued junior subordinated debentures in the

completed on February 2012 and all outstanding Initial Notes issued in the

amount of $40 million. The debentures were issued to a trust established by

private placements were exchanged for registered notes. Kennedy Wilson

Kennedy Wilson, which contemporaneously issued $40 million of trust

has filed a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange

preferred securities to Merrill Lynch International. The interest rate on the

Commission to commence a registered exchange offer for the Notes issued

debentures is fixed for the first ten years at 9.06%, and variable thereafter at

in December 2012.

LIBOR plus 3.70%. Interest is payable quarterly with the principal due
in 2037.
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December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
The junior subordinated debentures require Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. to main-

NOTE 15—INCOME TAXES

tain (i) a fixed charge coverage ratio (as defined in the indenture governing

The table below represents the components of income (loss) from continuing

the junior subordinated debentures) of not less than 1.75 to 1.00, measured

operations before the provision for income taxes. The Company generally

on a four-quarter rolling basis; (ii) a ratio of total debt to net worth (as

invests in foreign real estate through domestic partnerships and, as such,

defined in the indenture) of not greater than 3.00 to 1.00 at any time; (iii) a

the (loss) income for foreign jurisdictions generally represents the results of

tangible net worth (as defined in the indenture) not less than the sum of (x)

its foreign corporations. Additionally, the table below is not reflective of the

$15.0 million, plus (y) 60% of any net income (but only if a positive number)

cash tax results of the Company.
Year Ended December 31,

for each completed fiscal quarter beginning with the fiscal quarter ended
March 31, 2007 until such time as our net worth equals or exceeds $75.0

(dollars in millions)

2013

2012

2011

million and then 50% of any net income for each completed fiscal quarter

Domestic
Foreign

$27.1
(10.6)

$(3.4)
10.2

$(14.9)
20.0

$16.5

$6.8

$5.1

thereafter, plus (z) 50% of all proceeds of equity interests issued by us or our
subsidiaries after the date the debentures were issued; and (iv) a net worth

Total

(as defined in the indenture) not less than the sum of (x) $40.0 million, plus
(y) 60% of any net income (but only if a positive number) for each completed

The (benefit from) provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

fiscal quarter beginning with the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2007 until
such time as our net worth equals or exceeds $75.0 million and then 50% of
any net income for each completed fiscal quarter thereafter, plus (z) 50% of
all proceeds of equity interests issued by us or our subsidiaries after the date
the debentures were issued. As of December 31, 2013, Kennedy Wilson’s

Year Ended December 31,
(dollars in millions)

2013

2012

2011

Federal
Current
Deferred

$(0.1)
5.2

$—
(2.7)

$—
(4.5)

5.1

(2.7)

(4.5)

—
(0.1)

—
1.4

—
(0.1)

(0.1)

1.4

(0.1)

0.3
(2.4)

0.5
0.6

2.6
—

(2.1)

1.1

2.6

$2.9

$(0.2)

$(2.0)

fixed charge coverage ratio was 3.19 to 1.00, its ratio of total debt to net
worth was 1.12 to 1.00 and its tangible net worth and net worth were
$744.4 million and $768.3 million, respectively, and Kennedy Wilson was in
compliance with these covenants.
NOTE 14—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The firm of Solomon, Winnett & Rosenfield was paid $0.2 million annually for
income tax services provided by the firm during the years ended December

State
Current
Deferred

Foreign
Current
Deferred

31, 2013, 2012, and 2011. Jerry Solomon is a partner in the firm and a
member of Kennedy Wilson’s Board of Directors. For the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, Mr. Solomon was paid an immaterial
amount of director’s fees.
The Company has a lease with an affiliate of a third-party shareholder for
its corporate offices in Beverly Hills, California. As of December 31, 2013,

Total

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate of 34% with
Kennedy Wilson’s effective income tax rate is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

the future minimum lease payments under this agreement is $1.4 million
for 2014.
Rental expense under this arrangement totaled $1.3 million and $1.3
million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The Company received fees and other income from affiliates and entities
in which the Company holds ownership interests in the following amounts:
Year Ended December 31,
(dollars in millions)

2013

2012

2011

Property management and leasing fees
Commissions

$36.0
10.0

$24.5
8.0

$14.5
24.2

 Total related party revenue

$46.0

$32.5

$38.7
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(dollars in millions)

2013

2012

2011

Tax computed at the statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Taxing authority settlement
Foreign rate differential
Noncontrolling interest and other
Other
Valuation allowance

$5.6
—
—
2.3
(6.9)
2.0
(0.1)

$2.3
0.2
—
(2.4)
(0.9)
0.2
0.4

$1.7
(0.1)
0.8
(4.2)
(0.4)
0.2
—

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes

$2.9

$(0.2)

$(2.0)

Cumulative tax effects of temporary differences are shown below at

our effective tax rate. Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries, which
have been, or are intended to be permanently invested, aggregated approxi-

December 31, 2013 and 2012:
Year Ended December 31,

mately $8.4 million as of December 31, 2013. If these subsidiaries’ earnings

2013

2012

$0.2
1.3
42.9

$0.2
3.1
26.3

and December 31, 2012. Management has considered the likelihood and

Total deferred tax assets

44.4

29.6

and intended filing positions and has determined, based on its assessment,

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization
Prepaid expenses and other
Investment basis and reserve differences
Foreign currency translation
Capitalized interest
Valuation allowance
Marketable securities
Hedging transactions

6.2
0.4
50.3
3.9
2.3
0.3
0.4
4.7

7.9
1.5
32.4
6.2
2.3
0.4
1.2
0.4

Total deferred tax liabilities

68.5

52.3

Future minimum lease payments under scheduled operating leases that

$24.1

$22.7

have initial or remaining noncancelable terms in excess of one year are

(dollars in millions)

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued reserves
Stock option expense
 Net operating loss carryforward and credits

Net deferred tax liability

were repatriated to the United States additional US domestic taxes of $2.5
million would be incurred.
There were no gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2013
significance of possible penalties associated with Kennedy Wilson’s current
that such penalties, if any, would not expected to be significant.
Kennedy Wilson’s federal income tax returns remain open to examination
for the years 2010 through 2012.
For income tax purposes, distributions paid to common stockholders
and preferred shareholder are return of capital for the year ended
December 31, 2013.
NOTE 16—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

as follows:
Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for
future taxable income over the periods which Kennedy Wilson’s gross

(dollars in millions)

deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely

Year Ending December 31,

than not Kennedy Wilson will realize the benefits of these deductible

year 2030. As of December 31, 2013 there were also California net operat-

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereafter

$ 3.3
1.3
1.1
0.8
0.7
2.9

ing loss carryforwards of approximately $73.2 million. The California net

Total minimum payments

$10.1

differences at December 31, 2013.
As of December 31, 2013 Kennedy Wilson had federal net operating
losses of $114.4 million. These net operating losses begin to expire in the

operating losses begin to expire after the year 2028. In addition, Kennedy
Wilson has $5.7 million of other state net operating losses. We believe that it

Rental expense was $3.6 million, $3.0 million, and $2.3 million for the

is more likely than not that certain state net operating losses will expire before

years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, and is

Kennedy Wilson can realize the benefit of the losses. We have provided a

included in general and administrative expense in the accompanying consoli-

valuation allowance of $0.1 million as of December 31, 2013 for certain state

dated statements of operations.

net operating losses. As of December 31, 2013, Kennedy Wilson had $6.7

Guarantees—The Company has provided guarantees associated with loans

million of foreign net operating losses carryforwards of which $1.1 million
begin to expire in 2030 and $5.6 that have no expiration date.
Presently a deferred tax liability for undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
located outside the United States has not been recorded. These earnings
may become taxable upon a payment of a dividend or as a result of a sale or
liquidation of the subsidiaries. At this time the Company does not have plans
to repatriate income from its foreign subsidiaries, however to the extent that
the Company is able to repatriate such earnings in a tax free manner, or in

secured by assets held in various joint venture partnerships. The maximum
potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) the Company could be
required to make under the guarantees were approximately $51.1 million at
December 31, 2013. The guarantees expire by the year end of 2017 and
Kennedy Wilson’s performance under the guarantees would be required to
the extent there is a shortfall in liquidation between the principal amount of
the loan and the net sales proceeds of the property.

the event of a change in the capital situation or investment strategy, it is

Capital Commitments—As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company

possible that the foreign subsidiaries may pay a dividend which would impact

has unfunded capital commitments to its joint ventures in the amounts of
$8.0 million and $8.3 million.
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December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Employment Agreements—Kennedy Wilson has entered into employment

the remaining 60% in the fifth year of the award period. Vesting of the

agreements with its Chief Executive Officer and its President and Chief

restricted share awards is contingent upon the expected achievement of a

Executive Officer of its European operations, which provide for annual base

performance target in each year of the award period with the initial vesting of

compensation in the aggregate amounts of $1.0 million and $0.8 million,

the first 10% in January 2013. The performance targets were achieved for

respectively, and expire in December 2019 and January 2014, respectively.

2012 and 2013. From inception of the plan through December 31, 2013,

The employment agreements also provide for the issuance of 556,875

302,500 shares have vested and 112,500 shares have been forfeited. As of

shares of restricted stock to each officer that vest in equal amounts over five

December 31, 2013, there was $37.3 million of unrecognized compensation

years provided certain performance targets are achieved (see Note 17).

cost for the Equity Plan related to unvested restricted shares which will vest

Additionally, the employment agreements provide for the payment of an

over the next three years.

annual discretionary bonus in an amount determined in the sole and absolute
discretion of the Compensation Committee of the board of directors.

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, Kennedy
Wilson recognized $7.5 million, $8.1 million and $5.1 million of compensa-

Kennedy Wilson also has an employment agreement with one other non-

tion expense related to the vesting of restricted common stock and is

officer employee which provides for aggregate minimum annual compensa-

included in compensation and related expense in the accompanying consoli-

tion of $0.6 million and will expire in 2014.

dated statements of operations. During 2013, the Company modified

Litigation—Kennedy Wilson is currently a defendant in certain routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. It is the opinion of management and legal counsel that the outcome of these actions will not have a
material effect on the financial statements taken as a whole.

the Amended and Restated Plan to remove an external performance component associated with the vesting of awards. This modification changed the
accounting treatment of the Amended and Restated Plan to be equity based
as opposed to liability based. Due to this change, $4.7 million was reclassified
from a liability to equity during the year ended December 31, 2013.
The following table sets forth activity under the Equity Plan and Amended

NOTE 17—STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS
In November 2009, Kennedy Wilson adopted the 2009 Equity Participation
Plan (“the Equity Plan”) that allows for the grant of up to approximately 2.5

and Rested Plan:
Shares
Nonvested at December 31, 2011
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

1,508,607
3,175,000
(493,643)
—

the plan through December 31, 2013, 1,974,691 shares have vested and

Nonvested at December 31, 2012
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

4,189,964
136,600
(822,724)
(146,638)

57,650 shares have been forfeited. The Company re-granted the forfeited

Nonvested at December 31, 2013

3,357,202

million shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2013 all the restricted
share awards were granted to employees, which vest ratably over a five year
period. Vesting of the restricted share awards is contingent upon the
expected achievement of a performance target as of the initial vesting date of
November 13, 2010 and each of the next four years thereafter. The performance targets were achieved for 2011, 2012 and 2013. From inception of

shares in 2013. The restricted share awards are recognized as expense on a
tranche-by-tranche basis over the five year performance period. As of

Employee Benefit Arrangements—Kennedy Wilson has a qualified plan

December 31, 2013, there was $2.7 million of unrecognized compensation

under the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under

cost for the Equity Plan related to unvested restricted shares.

this plan, participants are able to make salary deferral contributions of up to

In June 2012, Kennedy Wilson adopted and its shareholders approved the

75% of their total compensation, up to a specified maximum. The 401(k)

Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Participation Plan (the “Amended and

plan also includes provisions which authorize Kennedy Wilson to make dis-

Restated Plan”) under which an additional 3.2 million shares of common

cretionary contributions. During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012

stock have been reserved for restricted stock grants to officers, employees,

and 2011, Kennedy Wilson made matching contributions of $0.2 million,

non-employee directors and consultants. The terms of the awards granted

$0.2 million, and $0.1 million to this plan and they are included in compen-

under the 2009 Amended and Restated Equity Participation Plan are set by

sation and related expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements

the Company’s compensation committee at its discretion. During the year

of operations.

ended December 31, 2012, 3.2 million shares of restricted common stock
were granted under the Amended and Restated Plan along with 5,000
shares which remained under the original plan. The shares vest over five
years with 40% vesting ratably in the first four years of the award period and
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NOTE 18—CAPITAL STOCK TRANSACTIONS

aware of such acquisition and the date such person or group files a Schedule

Common Stock

13D. This change of control provision is within Kennedy Wilson’s control as

In September 2013, Kennedy Wilson completed an offering of 6.9 million

the Board of Directors, at its discretion, would be able to issue blank check

shares of its common stock, which raised $122.0 million of net proceeds.

Preferred Stock at any time for any reason which could dilute the person or

In March 2013, Kennedy Wilson completed an offering of 9.0 million

group to below the 35% of the voting control threshold. As such, Kennedy

shares of its common stock, which raised $133.8 million of net proceeds. In

Wilson has concluded that the change of control is within the control of

April 2013, Kennedy Wilson issued approximately 1.4 million shares of its

Kennedy Wilson and therefore has classified the Preferred Stock as perma-

common stock as a result of the underwriters fully exercising their option to

nent equity in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

purchase additional shares, which resulted in net proceeds of $20.1 million.

In connection with the issuance of the Preferred Stock, Kennedy Wilson

In July 2012, Kennedy Wilson completed a follow-on offering of 8.6 million

entered into registration rights agreements that allow for the holders of the

shares of its common stock, which raised $106.2 million of net proceeds.

Preferred Stock, with at least a 51% vote, to demand registration of the

During 2011, Kennedy Wilson issued 4.4 million shares of its common

Preferred Stock (or converted common stock) on or after November 13,

stock to an institutional investor for $10.70 per share when the market value

2010. If Kennedy Wilson does not satisfy the demand for registration, the

was $12.20 per share. In addition, as a result of its contractual rights, the

holders of the Preferred Stock (or converted common stock) would be enti-

preferred shareholder also acquired 400,000 shares for $10.70 per share,

tled to receive a payment in an amount equal to 1.50% per annum of the

representing a $0.6 million discount. Because the discount was the result of

liquidation preference of $1,000 per share. There are sufficient shares of

the preferred shareholder’s contractual rights, it is reflected as additional pre-

unregistered common stock authorized and unissued to accommodate the

ferred dividend in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

conversion feature.

During 2011, Kennedy Wilson completed a follow-on offering of 6.9 million
shares of its common stock, which raised $71.7 million of net proceeds.
Preferred Stock

Warrants
In April 2010, the Board of Directors authorized a warrant repurchase program enabling Kennedy Wilson to repurchase up to 12.5 million of its out-

During 2010, Kennedy Wilson issued two series of Convertible Cumulative

standing warrants. The warrants carry an exercise price of $12.50 with an

Preferred Stock (together “the Preferred Stock”) at $1,000 per share, series

expiration date of November 14, 2014. On December 20, 2013, Kennedy

A (100,000 shares) and series B (32,550 shares), for total proceeds less

Wilson redeemed 6,963 warrants at a price of $0.01 per warrant since the

issuance costs of $99.8 million and $32.5 million. The series A Preferred

share price of its common stock exceeded $19.50 per share for 20 trading

Stock is convertible into common stock at any time at the option of the holder

days within a 30 trading day period ending on the third business day prior to

prior to May 19, 2015 at a price of $12.41 per share and is mandatorily

the notice of redemption to warrant holders.

convertible into common stock on May 19, 2015. The series B Preferred

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, Kennedy Wilson

Stock is convertible into common stock at any time at the option of the holder

repurchased a total of 0.4 million and 0.6 million of its outstanding warrants

prior to November 3, 2018 at a price of $10.70 per share and is mandatorily

for total consideration of $1.4 million and $1.6 million. The Company

convertible into common stock on November 3, 2018. The series A

received $15.4 million from warrant holders due to the exercise of 2.7 mil-

and series B Preferred Stock have dividend rates of 6.0% and 6.452%

lion warrants during 2013. There are 2.7 million warrants outstanding as of

payable quarterly.

December 31, 2013.

The certificate of designations of the Preferred Stock contain provisions
that require Kennedy Wilson to commence an offer to purchase all shares of
the Preferred Stock at a purchase price in cash per share of Preferred Stock
equal to $1,150 plus all accumulated and accrued dividends upon the occurrence of a fundamental change, defined as a change of control. The parties
have agreed that a change of control is deemed to occur when any person or
group other than the purchaser of the Preferred Stock and its affiliates, or
any officer or director of Kennedy Wilson as of the issue date of the Preferred
Stock, acquires directly or indirectly voting control or direction over more
than 35% of the voting control of Kennedy Wilson for a period of seven
consecutive days following the earlier of the date the Company becomes
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(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Dividend Distributions

In order to manage currency fluctuations, KWR entered into forward for-

Kennedy Wilson declared and paid the following cash dividends on its

eign currency contracts to hedge a portion of its Japanese yen-based invest-

common and preferred stock:

ments. During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company recognized
Year Ended
December 31, 2013

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

an unrealized gain of $12.9 million related to these hedges from its portion of
the hedge. The Company also has currency forward contracts to manage its
exposure to currency fluctuations between its functional currency (U.S. dol-

(dollars in millions)

Declared

Paid

Declared

Paid

Preferred Stock
Series A
Series B

$ 6.0
2.1

$6.0
2.1

$ 6.0
2.1

$6.0
2.1

ments in Europe (see Note 7 for more detail). During the year ended

8.1
21.8

8.1
16.0

8.1
11.7

8.1
13.8

$5.3 million and $2.6 million related to its hedges on the euro and

$29.9

$24.1

$19.8

$21.9

Total Preferred Stock
Common Stock
Total

(1)

lars) and the functional currency (euros and GBP) of certain of its investDecember 31, 2013, the Company recognized a gross unrealized loss of
GBP currencies.
Additionally, during the year, KWR settled several Japanese yen-related
hedges resulting in cash proceeds of $23.1 million, of which the Company

(1) The difference between declared and paid is the amount accrued on the consolidated
balance sheets.

received $10.8 million. The cash received as a result of unwinding these

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income—The following table summa-

investment is substantially liquidated.

rizes the changes in each component of accumulated other comprehensive

Foreign
Currency
Translation

Forward
Contract
Foreign
Currency

Total Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

Balance at December 31, 2012
Unrealized (losses) gains,
   arising during the period
Amounts reclassified out of
   AOCI during the period
Taxes on unrealized (losses)
   gains, arising during
  the period

$10.8

$1.8

$12.6

(13.7)

5.2

(8.5)

2.8

—

2.8

4.4

(2.1)

2.3

Balance at December 31, 2013

$ 4.3

$ 4.9

$ 9.2

foreign currency translations in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations.
Noncontrolling Interests—Noncontrolling interests consist of the ownership
interests of noncontrolling shareholders in consolidated subsidiaries, and are
presented separately on the balance sheet. As of December 31, 2013 and
2012 the Company has noncontrolling interest of $50.6 million and
$9.1 million. The increase in noncontrolling interests during 2013 is primarily
due to the Company’s consolidation of the Ritz-Carlton, Lake Tahoe during
the fourth quarter. Kennedy Wilson recorded a $20.3 million increase to

The local currencies for our interests in foreign operations include the
euro, the British pound sterling, and the Japanese yen. The related amounts
on our balance sheets are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates
at the respective financial statement date, while amounts on our statements
of operations are translated at the average exchange rates during the respective period. The increase in the unrealized losses on foreign currency translation is a result of the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the Japanese
yen which was offset by the weakening of the U.S. dollar against the euro
and British pound sterling during the year ended December 31, 2013.

5 8

As a result of the substantial liquidation of U.K. Loan Pool, Kennedy
Wilson has reclassified $2.8 million out of AOCI and recognized a loss in

income (loss) (“AOCI”), net of 40% estimated tax:
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hedges will not be realized in our statement of operations until the underlying

noncontrolling interest relating to the equity of the noncontrolling shareholders. In addition, there was an increase to noncontrolling interest of $20.3
million relating to the net income associated with the noncontrolling shareholders primarily due to the acquisition-related gain from the consolidation of
the Ritz-Carlton, Lake Tahoe. See Note 4.

NOTE 19—EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

$(14.8)

$ (3.7)

$ (2.8)

(dollars in millions, except share amounts and per share data)

Basic and diluted (loss) income per share attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders:
Loss from continuing operations attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, attributable to
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings Inc. common shareholders

0.3

(0.2)

0.4

Net loss attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders

$(14.5)

$ (3.9)

$ (2.4)

Loss from continuing operations attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, attributable to
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings Inc. common shareholders

$(0.21)

$(0.07)

$(0.06)

—

—

0.01

Net loss attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders

$(0.21)

$(0.07)

$(0.05)

71,159,919

55,285,833

42,415,770

Weighted average shares outstanding for basic and diluted loss per share

The dilutive shares from warrants, convertible securities, and un-vested

in the investment segment. No single third party client accounted for 10% or

restricted stock have not been included in the diluted weighted average

more of Kennedy Wilson’s revenue during any period presented in these

shares as Kennedy Wilson has a net loss available to common shareholders

financial statements.

for all periods presented above. There was a total of 13,494,478, 19,339,021
and 20,609,591 potentially dilutive securities as of December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011.

KW Services—KW Services offers a comprehensive line of real estate
services for the full lifecycle of real estate ownership to clients that include
financial institutions, institutional investors, insurance companies, developers,
builders and government agencies. KW Services has four main lines of

NOTE 20—SEGMENT INFORMATION
Kennedy Wilson’s business is defined by two core segments: KW Investments
and KW Services. KW Investments invests in multifamily, residential and
commercial properties as well as loans secured by real estate. KW Services
provides a full array of real estate-related services to investors and lenders,
with a strong focus on financial institution-based clients. Kennedy Wilson’s
segment disclosure with respect to the determination of segment profit or
loss and segment assets is based on these services and investments.

business: investment management, property services, research and auction
and conventional sales. These four business lines generate revenue for
us through fees and commissions. See the “Business Segments” section
for a more detailed discussion of the different components of the
KW Services segment.
We manage over 68 million square feet of properties for institutional
clients and individual investors in the United States, Europe, and Japan,
which includes assets we have ownership in and third party assets. With 24

KW Investments—Kennedy Wilson invests its capital in real estate assets

offices throughout the United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, Spain and

and loans secured by real estate either on its own or with strategic partners

Japan, we have the capabilities and resources to provide property services to

through joint ventures, separate accounts, and commingled funds. We are

real estate owners as well as the experience, as a real estate investor, to

typically the general partner in these joint ventures with a promoted interest

understand client concerns. The managers of KW Services have an extensive

in the profits of our investments beyond our ownership percentage.

track record in their respective lines of business and the real estate com-

The Company has an average ownership interest across all investments

munity as a whole. Their knowledge and relationships is an excellent driver of

of approximately 40%. Our equity partners include financial institutions,

business through the services business as well as on the investment front.

foundations, endowments, high net worth individuals and other institutional

Additionally, KW Services plays a critical role in supporting the company’s

investors. See the “Business Segments” section for a more detailed

investment strategy by providing local market intelligence and real-time data

discussion of the different components of the KW Investments segment.

for evaluating investments, generating proprietary transaction flow and

Substantially all of the revenue—related party was generated
via inter-segment activity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and

creating value through efficient implementation of asset management or
repositioning strategies.

2011. Generally, this revenue consists of fees earned on investments in
which Kennedy Wilson also has an ownership interest. The amounts
representing investments with related parties and non-affiliates are included
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
The following tables summarize the income and expense activity by
segment for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and total
assets as of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
Year Ended December 31,

Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

$—

$—

$—

Total revenue
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

—
21.9
0.5

—
16.7
0.3

—
12.6
0.2

22.4
(22.4)
0.3
(39.9)

17.0
(17.0)
0.2
(26.1)

12.8
(12.8)
0.3
(19.0)

(62.0)
(2.9)

(42.9)
0.2

(31.5)
2.0

$(64.9)

$(42.7)

$(29.5)

(dollars in millions)

Corporate
Rental and other revenue

2013

2012

2011

$43.0
10.1

$8.5
2.3

$5.1
0.4

Total revenue
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

53.1
69.1
15.6

10.8
36.9
4.4

5.5
19.3
2.4

Total operating expenses
Total operating loss
Interest income
Interest expense—corporate debt

Total operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Income from loan pool participations
and notes receivable

84.7
29.8

41.3
21.5

21.7
12.5

Loss before provision for income taxes
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes

13.5

9.2

8.0

Total operating income
Other non-operating (expense) income
and discounted operations
Acquisition-related gains
Interest expense—property level debt

11.7

0.2

4.3

(3.8)
56.6
(11.8)

6.3
25.5
(2.5)

2.4
6.3
(1.6)

$52.7

$29.5

$11.4

(dollars in millions)

Investments
Rental and other revenue
Sale of real estate

Net loss

Income before (provision for) benefit
from income taxes

Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

$22.1

$20.8

$18.4

46.0

32.5

38.7

Total revenue
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

68.1
40.7
1.3

53.3
33.1
0.2

57.1
31.4
0.1

Total operating expenses
Total operating income

42.0
26.1

33.3
20.0

31.5
25.6

$26.1

$20.0

$25.6

(dollars in millions)

Services
Management fees and commissions
Management fees and commissions—
related party

Income before (provision for) benefit
from income taxes

Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

$22.1

$20.8

$18.4

46.0
43.0
10.1

32.5
8.5
2.3

38.7
5.1
0.4

Total revenue
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

121.2
131.7
17.4

64.1
86.6
4.9

62.6
63.3
2.8

Total operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Interest income from loan pool participations
and notes receivable

149.1
29.8

91.5
21.5

66.1
12.5

13.5

(dollars in millions)

Consolidated
Management fees and commissions
Management fees and commissions—
related party
Rental and other income
Sale of real estate

9.2

8.0

Operating income
Other non-operating (expense) income
and discontinued operations
Acquisition-related gains
Interest expense—corporate debt
Interest expense—property level debt

15.4

3.3

17.0

(3.5)
56.6
(39.9)
(11.8)

6.3
25.5
(26.1)
(2.5)

2.8
6.3
(19.0)
(1.6)

Income before benefit from income taxes
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes

16.8
(2.9)

6.5
0.2

5.5
2.0

$13.9

$6.7

$7.5

Net Income
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December 31,

2013

2012

Assets
Investments
Services
Corporate

$1,537.4
132.6
128.8

$1,070.6
105.4
107.8

Total assets

$1,798.8

$1,283.8

(dollars in millions)

NOTE 21—GUARANTOR AND NON-GUARANTOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following consolidating financial information and condensed
consolidating financial information includes:
(1) Condensed consolidating balance sheets as of December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively; consolidating statements of operations and comprehensive (loss) income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and
2011, respectively; and condensed consolidating statements of cash flows

December 31,
(dollars in millions)

Expenditures for long-lived assets
Investments

2013

2012

2011

$168.5

$119.0

$2.7

for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, of (a)
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. on an unconsolidated basis as the parent
(and guarantor), (b) Kennedy-Wilson, Inc., as the subsidiary issuer, (c) the
guarantor subsidiaries, (d) the non-guarantor subsidiaries and (e) KennedyWilson Holdings, Inc. on a consolidated basis; and
(2) Elimination entries necessary to consolidate Kennedy-Wilson Holdings,

Geographic Information
The revenue shown in the table below is allocated based upon the country in
which services are performed.

Inc., as the parent guarantor, with Kennedy-Wilson, Inc. and its guarantor
and non-guarantor subsidiaries.

Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

United States
United Kingdom
Ireland
Japan

$85.7
28.1
7.0
0.4

$44.4
19.2
—
0.5

$39.8
22.3
—
0.5

Total Revenue

$121.2

$64.1

$62.6

(dollars in millions)
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(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Included in the guarantor subsidiaries column below are data for certain guarantor subsidiaries that were less than 100% owned by Kennedy Wilson as of
December 31, 2010. Such guarantor subsidiaries were restructured prior to the exchange offer such that Kennedy Wilson owned 100% of all of the guarantor
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011. As a result, in accordance with Rule 3-10(d) of Regulation S-X promulgated by the SEC, no separate financial statements
are required for these subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 or 2011.
As of December 31, 2013

(dollars in millions)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Elimination

Consolidated
Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable—related parties
Intercompany receivables
Notes receivable
Notes receivable—related parties
Intercompany loans receivable
Real estate, net of accumulated depreciation
Investments in joint ventures
Investments in and advances to consolidated subsidiaries
Investment in loan pool participations
Other assets
Goodwill

$—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
775.1
—
—
—

$

  Total Assets

$775.1

$—
6.8
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

48.2
0.2
0.9
9.0
0.7
1.6
57.4
—
7.5
1,141.9
—
20.9
—

$

77.2
1.9
5.1
—
51.2
2.5
—
145.3
563.3
326.6
34.7
14.2
17.2

$ 52.8
3.1
5.4
—
0.8
—
—
523.5
180.6
—
—
33.3
6.7

$

—
—
—
(9.0)
—
—
(57.4)
—
—
(2,243.6)
—
—
—

$ 178.2
5.2
11.4
—
52.7
4.1
—
668.8
751.4
—
34.7
68.4
23.9

$1,288.3

$1,239.2

$ 806.2

$(2,310.0)

$1,798.8

$

$

$

$

—
—
(9.0)
—
—
—
(57.4)
—
—

$    2.6
64.3
—
32.2
24.1
409.0
—
407.7
40.0

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Intercompany payables
Accrued salaries and benefits
Deferred tax liability
Senior notes payable
Intercompany loans payable
Mortgage loans and notes payable
Junior subordinated debentures
  Total liabilities
Equity
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests
   Total equity
   Total liabilities and equity
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0.3
23.1
—
22.5
18.3
409.0
—
—
40.0

0.8
14.2
—
2.2
5.7
—
—
74.4
—

1.5
20.2
9.0
7.5
0.1
—
57.4
333.3
—

6.8

513.2

97.3

429.0

(66.4)

979.9

768.3
—

775.1
—

1,141.9
—

326.6
50.6

(2,243.6)
—

768.3
50.6

768.3

775.1

1,141.9

377.2

(2,243.6)

818.9

$775.1

$1,288.3

$1,239.2

$ 806.2

$(2,310.0)

$1,798.8

As of December 31, 2012

(dollars in millions)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Elimination

Consolidated
Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable—related parties
Intercompany receivables
Notes receivable
Intercompany loans receivable
Real estate, net of accumulated depreciation
Investments in joint ventures
Investments in and advances to consolidated subsidiaries
Investment in loan pool participations
Other assets
Goodwill

$—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
514.3
—
—
—

$

64.5
10.0
0.4
0.2
3.3
1.9
39.6
—
5.7
873.7
—
18.4
—

$ 38.5
—
2.1
4.8
—
133.8
—
93.9
450.2
142.4
95.6
11.6
17.2

$ 17.9
—
1.1
17.4
—
0.9
—
195.5
87.3
—
—
8.1
6.8

$

—
—
—
—
(3.3)
—
(39.6)
—
—
(1,530.4)
—
—
—

$ 120.9
10.0
3.6
22.4
—
136.6
—
289.4
543.2
—
95.6
38.1
24.0

  Total Assets

$514.3

$1,017.7

$ 990.1

$ 335.0

$(1,573.3)

$1,283.8

$

$

$

$

$

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Intercompany payables
Accrued salaries and benefits
Deferred tax liability
Senior notes payable
Intercompany loans payable
Mortgage loans payable
Junior subordinated debentures

$—
—
—
4.7
—
—
—
—
—

  Total liabilities

4.7

503.4

123.5

176.3

(42.9)

765.0

Equity
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests

509.6
—

514.3
—

873.8
(7.2)

142.4
16.3

(1,530.4)
—

509.7
9.1

   Total equity

509.6

514.3

866.6

158.7

(1,530.4)

518.8

$514.3

$1,017.7

$ 990.1

$ 335.0

$(1,573.3)

$1,283.8

   Total liabilities and equity
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(dollars in millions)

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Elimination

Consolidated
Total

$—
—
—
—
—
—

$   —
—
0.4
—
0.1
—

$  5.6
16.7
2.6
2.0
6.7
10.1

$ 12.5
19.3
1.0
8.0
36.2
—

$   —
—
—
—
—
—

$ 18.1
36.0
4.0
10.0
43.0
10.1

—

0.5

43.7

77.0

—

121.2

—
—
—
7.5
0.3
—

0.3
—
—
31.9
9.4
0.9

2.9
3.5
7.9
14.8
5.1
4.8

0.4
15.4
—
22.5
9.8
11.7

—
—
—
—
—
—

3.6
18.9
7.9
76.7
24.6
17.4

7.8
—
—
21.7

42.5
2.9
—
105.4

39.0
40.5
13.5
51.3

59.8
(13.6)
—
—

—
—
—
(178.4)

149.1
29.8
13.5
—

13.9

66.3

110.0

3.6

(178.4)

15.4

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

0.1
0.3
—
(0.2)
(39.9)
—
—

0.2
—
—
(0.4)
—
(1.8)
(2.8)

—
—
56.6
(1.0)
—
(10.0)
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

0.3
0.3
56.6
(1.6)
(39.9)
(11.8)
(2.8)

 Income (loss) from continuing operations
 before benefit (provision for) from income taxes
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes

13.9
—

26.6
(4.9)

105.2
—

49.2
2.0

(178.4)
—

16.5
(2.9)

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Loss from sale of real estate, net of income taxes

13.9
—
—

21.7
—
—

105.2
—
0.2

51.2
(0.3)
0.4

(178.4)
—
—

13.6
(0.3)
0.6

Net income (loss)
Net loss attributable to the noncontrolling interests

13.9
—

21.7
—

105.4
—

51.3
(20.3)

(178.4)
—

13.9
(20.3)

Net income (loss) attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Preferred stock dividends and accretion of issuance costs

13.9
(8.1)

21.7
—

105.4
—

31.0
—

(178.4)
—

(6.4)
(8.1)

 Net income (loss) attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
common shareholders

$5.8

$ 21.7

$105.4

$ 31.0

$(178.4)

$ (14.5)

Consolidating Statement of Operations
Revenue
Management and leasing fees
Management and leasing fees—related party
Commissions
Commissions—related party
Rental and other income
Sale of real estate
Total revenue

Operating Expenses
Commission and marketing expenses
Rental operating expense
Cost of real estate sold
Compensation and related expenses
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Interest income from loan pool participations and notes receivable
Income (loss) from consolidated subsidiaries
Operating income (loss)

Non-Operating Income (Expense)
Interest income
Interest income—related party
Acquisition-related gains
Acquisition-related expenses
Interest expense—corporate debt
Interest expense—property level debt
Realized foreign currency exchange gain (loss)
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

(dollars in millions)

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ —
—
—
—
—
—

$ 0.4
—
0.5
—
—
—

$ 9.3
10.2
2.0
3.0
1.3
2.3

$ 6.1
14.3
2.5
5.0
7.2
—

—

0.9

28.1

—
—
—
8.1
—
—

0.3
—
—
25.7
9.8
0.3

8.1
—
—
15.0

Elimination

Consolidated
Total

Revenue
Management and leasing fees
Management and leasing fees—related party
Commissions
Commissions—related party
Rental and other income
Sale of real estate

—
—
—
—
—
—

$ 15.8
24.5
5.0
8.0
8.5
2.3

35.1

—

64.1

3.6
1.3
2.2
11.6
3.9
0.9

0.7
3.2
—
10.4
5.8
3.7

—
—
—
—
—
—

4.6
4.5
2.2
55.8
19.5
4.9

36.1
1.5
—
66.3

23.5
15.0
9.2
38.3

23.8
5.0
—
0.1

—
—
—
(119.7)

91.5
21.5
9.2
—

6.9

32.6

67.1

16.4

(119.7)

3.3

Interest income
Interest income—related party
Acquisition-related gain
Gain on sale of marketable securities
Acquisition-related expenses
Interest expense—corporate debt
Interest expense—property level debt

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

0.1
2.8
—
4.3
—
(25.6)
—

—
—
—
—
(0.1)
(0.5)
—

—
—
25.5
—
(0.6)
—
(2.5)

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

0.1
2.8
25.5
4.3
(0.7)
(26.1)
(2.5)

Income (loss) before benefit from income taxes
Benefit from income taxes

6.9
—

14.2
0.7

66.5
—

38.8
(0.5)

(119.7)
—

6.7
0.2

Net income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
(Loss) gain from sale of real estate, net of income taxes

6.9
—
—

14.9
—
—

66.5
—
(0.2)

38.3
—
—

(119.7)
—
—

6.9
—
(0.2)

Net income (loss)
Net income attributable to the noncontrolling interests

6.9
—

14.9
—

66.3
(0.3)

38.3
(2.2)

(119.7)
—

6.7
(2.5)

 Net income (loss) attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Preferred dividends and accretion of preferred stock issuance costs

6.9
(8.1)

14.9
—

66.0
—

36.1
—

(119.7)
—

4.2
(8.1)

 Net income (loss) attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
common shareholders

$(1.2)

$ 14.9

$66.0

$36.1

$(119.7)

$ (3.9)

Total revenue

$

Operating Expenses
Commission and marketing expenses
Rental operating expenses
Cost of real estate sold
Compensation and related expenses
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Interest income from loan pool participations and notes receivable
Income from consolidated subsidiaries
Operating income (loss)

Non-Operating Income (Expense)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(dollars in millions)

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ —
—
—
—
—
—

$ 0.7
—
3.3
—
—
—

$ 3.4
13.3
0.9
5.3
1.1
0.4

$ 8.5
1.2
1.6
18.9
4.0
—

—

4.0

24.4

—
—
—
5.1
—
—

0.9
—
—
18.1
9.0
0.2

5.1
—
—
12.5

Elimination

Consolidated
Total

Revenue
Management and leasing fees
Management and leasing fees—related party
Commissions
Commissions—related party
Rental and other income
Sale of real estate

—
—
—
—
—
—

$ 12.6
14.5
5.8
24.2
5.1
0.4

34.2

—

62.6

2.7
1.5
0.4
11.8
3.2
0.5

0.4
1.8
—
6.1
2.3
2.1

—
—
—
—
—
—

4.0
3.3
0.4
41.1
14.5
2.8

28.2
0.4
—
51.1

20.1
9.9
7.9
28.8

12.7
2.2
0.1
—

—
—
—
(92.4)

66.1
12.5
8.0
—

7.4

27.3

50.9

23.8

(92.4)

17.0

Interest income
Interest income—related party
Acquisition-related gain
Interest expense—corporate debt
Interest expense—property level debt

—
—
—
—
—

0.2
2.0
—
(19.0)
—

0.2
—
—
—
(0.3)

—
—
6.3
—
(1.3)

—
—
—
—
—

0.4
2.0
6.3
(19.0)
(1.6)

Income before benefit from income taxes
Benefit from income taxes

7.4
—

10.5
2.0

50.8
—

28.8
—

(92.4)
—

5.1
2.0

Net income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
(Loss) gain from real estate, net of income taxes

7.4
—
—

12.5
—
—

50.8
—
0.4

28.8
—
—

(92.4)
—
—

7.1
—
0.4

Net income (loss)
Net income attributable to the noncontrolling interests

7.4
—

12.5
(0.1)

51.2
(0.4)

28.8
(0.7)

(92.4)
—

7.5
(1.2)

 Net income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Preferred dividends and accretion of preferred stock issuance costs

7.4
(8.7)

12.4
—

50.8
—

28.1
—

(92.4)
—

6.3
(8.7)

 Net income (loss) attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
common shareholders

$(1.3)

$ 12.4

$50.8

$28.1

$(92.4)

$ (2.4)

Total revenue

$

Operating Expenses
Commission and marketing expenses
Rental operating expenses
Cost of real estate sold
Compensation and related expenses
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Interest income from loan pool participations and notes receivable
Income (loss) from consolidated subsidiaries
Operating income

Non-Operating Income (Expense)
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(dollars in millions)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Elimination

Consolidated
Total

Net Income

$13.9

$21.7

$105.4

$ 51.3

$(178.4)

$ 13.9

(9.3)
2.8
3.1

(9.3)
2.8
3.1

(10.0)
2.8
5.0

0.8
—
—

18.5
(5.6)
(8.1)

(9.3)
2.8
3.1

$ (3.4)

$ (3.4)

$ (2.2)

$ 0.8

4.8

$ (3.4)

10.5
—

18.3
—

103.2
—

52.1
(20.3)

(173.6)
—

10.5
(20.3)

$10.5

$18.3

$103.2

$ 31.8

$(173.6)

$ (9.8)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
 Unrealized foreign currency translation gain (loss)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income
 Unrealized forward contract forward currency gain (loss)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) for the period
Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

$

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

(dollars in millions)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Elimination

Consolidated
Total

Net Income (loss)

$ 6.9

$14.9

$66.3

$38.3

$(119.7)

$ 6.7

3.3
(1.5)
5.7

3.3
(1.5)
5.7

—
(2.2)
6.4

—
(0.3)
—

(3.3)
4.0
(12.1)

3.3
(1.5)
5.7

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities
 Unrealized foreign currency translation gain (loss)
 Unrealized forward contract forward currency gain (loss)

7.5

7.5

4.2

(0.3)

(11.4)

7.5

Comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Total other comprehensive income (loss) for the period

$14.4
—

$22.4
—

$70.5
—

$38.0
(2.6)

$(131.1)
—

$14.2
(2.6)

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

$14.4

$22.4

$70.5

$35.4

$(131.1)

$11.6

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Elimination

Consolidated
Total

$ 7.4

$12.5

$51.2

$ 28.8

$(92.4)

$ 7.5

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities
 Unrealized foreign currency translation gain (loss)
Unrealized forward contract forward currency gain (loss)

(3.2)
1.5
(2.3)

(3.2)
1.5
(2.3)

—
2.0
(2.3)

—
—
—

3.2
(3.5)
4.6

(3.2)
1.5
(2.3)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) for the period

(4.0)

(4.0)

(0.3)

—

4.3

(4.0)

Comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests

$ 3.4
—

$ 8.5
(0.1)

$50.9
(0.4)

$ 28.8
(0.6)

$(88.1)
—

$ 3.5
(1.1)

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

$ 3.4

$ 8.4

$50.5

$ 28.2

$(88.1)

$ 2.4

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(dollars in millions)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Net Income (loss)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(dollars in millions)

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Consolidated
Total

$0.6

$ (67.0)

$ 47.6

$ 50.1

$ 31.3

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to notes receivable
Settlements of notes receivable
Additions to notes receivable—related party
Settlements of notes receivable—related party
Sale of participation interests
Sale of participation interests—related party
Capitalized development costs
Non-refundable escrow deposits
Net proceeds from sale of real estate
Purchases of and additions to real estate
Investment in marketable securities
Short-term investment
Investing distributions from joint ventures
Contributions to joint ventures
Investing distributions from loan pool participation
Contributions to loan pool participation
(Investments in) distributions from consolidated
subsidiaries, net

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

(31.4)
1.2
(8.2)
6.6
—
—
(1.4)
(4.0)
—
—
—
10.0
0.4
(2.3)
—
—

(19.6)
38.1
(2.5)
—
3.8
2.8
—
—
9.8
(62.4)
(3.7)
—
73.9
(195.3)
93.9
(34.9)

—
0.1
—
—
—
—
—
—
0.3
(106.1)
—
—
7.2
(125.1)
—
—

(51.0)
39.4
(10.7)
6.6
3.8
2.8
(1.4)
(4.0)
10.1
(168.5)
(3.7)
10.0
81.5
(322.7)
93.9
(34.9)

(262.6)

104.4

43.8

114.4

—

   Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

(262.6)

75.3

(52.3)

(109.2)

(348.8)

Borrowings under lines of credit
Repayment of lines of credit
Borrowings under mortgage loans payable
Repayment of mortgage loans payable
Debt issue costs
Issuance of common stock
Repurchase of common stock
Repurchase of warrants
Exercise of warrants
Dividends paid
Contributions from noncontrolling interests
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Intercompany receivables, net

—
—
—
—
—
275.9
(3.8)
(1.4)
15.4
(24.1)
—
—
—

125.0
(125.0)
—
—
(1.3)
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(23.5)

—
—
41.1
—
(0.3)
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
71.4
(1.7)
(0.6)
—
—
—
—
—
1.4
(0.6)
23.5

125.0
(125.0)
112.5
(1.7)
(2.2)
275.9
(3.8)
(1.4)
15.4
(24.1)
1.4
(0.6)
—

   Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents

262.0

(24.8)

40.8

93.4

371.4

—

0.2

2.6

0.6

3.4

—
—

(16.3)
64.5

38.7
38.5

34.9
17.9

57.3
120.9

$—

$ 48.2

$ 77.2

$ 52.8

$ 178.2

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

   Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
   Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

(dollars in millions)

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Consolidated
Total

$(0.6)

$ (59.1)

$ 82.2

$ (5.8)

$ 16.7

Additions to notes receivable
Settlements of notes receivable
Additions to notes receivable—related party
Settlements of notes receivable—related party
Net proceeds from sale of real estate
Purchases of and additions to real estate
Short-term investment
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities
Investing distributions from joint ventures
Contributions to joint ventures
Investing distributions from loan pool participation
Contributions to loan pool participations
(Investments in) distributions from consolidated subsidiaries, net

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(82.1)

—
0.2
(17.1)
9.1
18.7
—
(10.0)
34.1
—
(1.2)
—
—
(116.0)

(167.9)
6.8
—
—
—
(33.8)
—
—
38.0
(177.3)
58.1
(72.9)
194.6

—
0.1
—
—
—
(85.2)
—
—
0.7
(0.1)
—
—
3.5

(167.9)
7.1
(17.1)
9.1
18.7
(119.0)
(10.0)
34.1
38.7
(178.6)
58.1
(72.9)
—

   Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

(82.1)

(82.2)

(154.4)

(81.0)

(399.7)

—
—
—
—
—
106.2
(1.6)
(21.9)
—
—
—
—

160.3
85.8
(85.8)
—
(7.3)
—
—
—
—
—
—
(42.9)

—
—
—
108.2
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
49.5
—
—
—
—
(0.5)
0.4
(4.9)
42.9

160.3
85.8
(85.8)
157.7
(7.3)
106.2
(1.6)
(21.9)
(0.5)
0.4
(4.9)
—

82.7

110.1

108.2

87.4

388.4

—

(0.1)

—

(0.3)

(0.4)

—
—

(31.3)
95.8

36.0
2.5

0.3
17.6

5.0
115.9

$—

$ 64.5

$ 38.5

$ 17.9

$ 120.9

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
Cash flows (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Borrowings under senior notes payable
Borrowings under lines of credit
Repayment of lines of credit
Borrowings under mortgage loans payable
Debt issue costs
Issuance of common stock
Repurchase of warrants
Dividends paid
Acquisitions of noncontrolling interests
Contributions from noncontrolling interests
Distributions from noncontrolling interests
Intercompany receivables, net
   Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents
   Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
   Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
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(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(dollars in millions)

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
Cash flows (used in) provided by operating activities

Parent

KennedyWilson, Inc.

$—

$ (32.0)

Guarantor
Subsidiaries(1)

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Consolidated
Total

$ 11.1

$ 24.3

$   3.4

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to notes receivable
Settlements of notes receivable
Additions to notes receivable—related party
Settlements of notes receivable—related party
Net proceeds from sale of real estate
Purchases of and additions to real estate
Investment in marketable securities
Distributions from joint ventures
Contributions to joint ventures
Investing distributions from loan pool participations
Contributions to loan pool participations
(Investments in) distributions from consolidated
subsidiaries, net

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
(35.3)
4.9
—
—
(32.8)
—
(2.0)
—
—

(6.1)
3.6
—
—
7.1
(2.6)
—
17.9
(100.8)
66.4
(130.5)

—
—
—
—
—
(0.1)
—
5.4
(2.6)
—
—

(6.1)
3.6
(35.3)
4.9
7.1
(2.7)
(32.8)
23.3
(105.4)
66.4
(130.5)

(104.8)

(44.0)

146.8

2.0

—

   Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(104.8)

(109.2)

1.8

4.7

(207.5)

Borrowings under notes payable
Repayment of notes payable
Borrowings under lines of credit
Repayment of lines of credit
Borrowings under mortgage loans payable
Repayment of mortgage loans payable
Debt issue costs
Issuance of preferred stock
Repurchase of common stock
Repurchase of warrants
Dividends paid
Contributions from noncontrolling interests
Distributions from noncontrolling interests

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
123.1
(0.5)
(6.1)
(11.7)
—
—

249.3
(20.5)
74.0
(101.8)
—
—
(7.2)
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
5.0
(15.6)
—
—
—
—
—
1.6
(4.8)

—
(4.3)
—
—
12.1
(22.0)
(0.5)
—
—
—
—
2.8
(0.3)

249.3
(24.8)
74.0
(101.8)
17.1
(37.6)
(7.7)
123.1
(0.5)
(6.1)
(11.7)
4.4
(5.1)

   Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents

104.8

193.8

(13.8)

(12.2)

272.6

—

0.4

0.1

—

0.5

—
—

53.0
42.8

(0.8)
3.3

16.8
0.8

69.0
46.9

$—

$ 95.8

$   2.5

$ 17.6

$ 115.9

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

   Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
   Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

(1) Included in the guarantor subsidiaries column above are data for certain subsidiaries that were less than 100% owned for the year ended December 31, 2011 by Kennedy-Wilson at the time
the notes were originally issued. Such guarantor subsidiaries were restructured prior to registering the notes such that Kennedy-Wilson now owns 100% of all the guarantor subsidiaries.
As a result, in accordance with Rule 3-10(d) of Regulation S-X promulgated by the SEC, no separate financial statements are required for such guarantor subsidiaries.
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NOTE 22—UNAUDITED QUARTERLY INFORMATION
Year Ended December 31, 2013

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

$ 22.4
27.6
(0.3)
2.9

$ 36.0
40.1
11.9
3.3

$ 33.2
37.3
9.4
4.0

$ 29.6
44.0
8.8
3.3

Operating income (loss)
Non-operating (expenses) income

(2.6)
(1.9)

11.1
(12.9)

9.3
(11.3)

(2.3)
27.2

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes

(4.5)
1.7

(1.8)
0.5

(2.0)
(0.8)

24.9
(4.3)

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Gain from sale of real estate

(2.8)
—
0.2

(1.3)
—
—

(2.8)
(0.3)
0.4

20.6
—
—

Net income (loss)
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

(2.6)
1.0

(1.3)
0.9

(2.7)
0.7

20.6
(22.9)

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders
Preferred stock dividends and accretion of issuance costs

(1.6)
(2.0)

(0.4)
(2.1)

(2.0)
(2.1)

(2.3)
(2.0)

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders

$ (3.6)

$ (2.5)

$ (4.1)

$ (4.3)

Basic (loss) earnings per share
Diluted (loss) earnings per share

$(0.06)
(0.06)

$(0.03)
(0.03)

$(0.06)
(0.06)

$(0.05)
(0.05)

(dollars in millions, except earnings per share amounts)

Revenues
Operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Interest income from loan pool participations and notes receivable
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Year Ended December 31, 2012

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

$ 11.8
15.4
5.5
0.5

$ 14.1
18.4
5.1
2.9

$ 15.2
20.8
1.8
3.7

$23.0
36.9
9.1
2.1

Operating income (loss)
Non-operating (expenses) income

2.4
(2.2)

3.7
(5.8)

(0.1)
(6.5)

(2.7)
17.9

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes
Benefit from income taxes

0.2
1.5

(2.1)
1.1

(6.6)
2.5

15.2
(4.9)

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Loss from sale of real estate

1.7
—
(0.2)

(1.0)
—
—

(4.1)
—
—

10.3
—
—

Net income (loss)
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

1.5
(2.8)

(1.0)
(0.1)

(4.1)
(0.1)

10.3
0.5

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders
Preferred stock dividends and accretion of issuance costs

(1.3)
(2.0)

(1.1)
(2.1)

(4.2)
(2.0)

10.8
(2.0)

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. common shareholders

$ (3.3)

$ (3.2)

$ (6.2)

$ 8.8

Basic (loss) earnings per share
Diluted (loss) earnings per share

$(0.07)
(0.07)

$(0.06)
(0.06)

$(0.11)
(0.11)

$0.15
0.15

(dollars in millions, except earnings per share amounts)

Revenues
Operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Interest income from loan pool participations and notes receivable

NOTE 23—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

on February 28, 2014, raising approximately £1 billion (approximately $1.7

In January 2014, Kennedy Wilson completed an offering of 9.2 million shares

billion) in gross proceeds (including the exercise of the £91 million (approxi-

of its common stock, which raised $190.8 million of net proceeds.

mately $151 million) over-allotment option). Immediately following the clos-

The Company also announced that it will pay a dividend of $0.09 per

ing, the Company’s investment represented approximately 12.2% of KWE’s

share, a 29% increase from the previous quarter, to common shareholders

total share capital, making the Company the largest shareholder of KWE.

of record as of March 31, 2014 with a payment date of April 8, 2014.

One of its wholly-owned subsidiaries will act as KWE’s external manager, in

The quarterly payment equates to an annual dividend of $0.36 per

which capacity the Company will be entitled to receive certain management

common share.

and performance fees. In addition, KWE will be provided priority access to all

On February 28, 2014, the Company subscribed for a total of £122.0 million (approximately $203.0 million) of ordinary shares in the initial public
offering of Kennedy Wilson Europe Real Estate Plc (“KWE,” LSE:KWE).

investment opportunities sourced by us in Europe.
In February 2014, Kennedy Wilson drew $65 million on its unsecured
credit facility. There is $75 million available on the credit facility.

The Company’s investment will consist of £87.0 million (approximately
$145.0 million) of cash subscription and the contribution of £35.0 million
(approximately $58.0 million) of assets acquired by Kennedy Wilson in the
first quarter of 2014. KWE announced the closing of its initial public offering
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH
The graph below compares the cumulative total return of our common stock from December 31, 2008 through December 31, 2013, with the comparable
cumulative return of companies comprising the S&P 500 Index and a peer issuer selected by us. The peer issuer is a company in the real estate services and
investment industry. Because this peer issuer became a comparable on November 13, 2009, the performance of our common stock relative to the performance
of the common stock of the peer issuer prior to November 13, 2009 may not be representative of future results. The graph plots the growth in value of an
initial investment of $100 in each of our common stock, the S&P 500 Index and the peer issuer selected by us over the indicated time periods, and assumes
reinvestment of all dividends, if any, paid on the securities. The stock price performance shown on the graph is not necessarily indicative of future
price performance.
KW
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Note: The peer, CB Richard Ellis, is a comparable beginning November 13, 2009.
The information under this caption, “Performance Graph,” is deemed not to be incorporated by reference into any filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that such filing specifically states otherwise.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Company and Affiliated Purchasers in the Fourth Quarter of 2013

Period
Warrants
October 1 to October 31
November 1 to November 30
December 1 to December 31

Total Number of
Warrants Purchased
—
—
—(1)

Average Price
Paid per Warrant

Total Number of
Warrants Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans
or Programs

Maximum Number of
Warrants That May Be
Purchased Under the
Plans or Programs (1)(2)

$ —
—
—

—
—
—

4,994,293
3,059,909
2,710,742

(1) Warrants repurchased under a plan announced April 30, 2010, approving the repurchase of up to 7.5 million outstanding warrants. On September 21, 2010, the Board of Directors
approved an increase to the number of warrants subject to the plan by 5 million. On May 7, 2013 the Board of Directors approved an increase to the number of warrants subject to the plan
by 5.3 million warrants, which covered all the warrants that were currently outstanding.
(2) During the fourth quarter, certain warrant holders exercised their warrants in exchange for shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company also redeemed all outstanding public
warrants. The remaining warrants outstanding after such redemption are sponsor warrants which have an expiration date of November 14, 2014. See Note 18 for more detail.
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Stock Price Information

Dividend Policy

Our common stock trades on the NYSE under the symbol “KW.” The follow-

We declared and paid quarterly dividends of $0.05 per share in 2012. In the

ing table sets forth, for the calendar quarter indicated, the high and low sales

first quarter of 2013, we raised the quarterly dividend to $0.07 per share

prices per share of common stock as reported on the NYSE. The quotations

and paid quarterly dividends of $0.07 per share for 2013. On February 26,

listed below reflect inter dealer prices, without retail markup, markdown or

2014, we raised the quarterly dividend to $0.09 per share.

commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Cumulative dividends on our Series A and Series B Preferred Stock

Common Stock

Fiscal Year 2013
Quarter ended March 31, 2013
Quarter ended June 30, 2013
Quarter ended September 30, 2013
Quarter ended December 31, 2013

High

Low

$17.24
$18.00
$19.72
$22.38

$13.87
$14.53
$16.73
$18.02

accrue at an annual rate of 6.00% and 6.452%, respectively, of the purchase price, subject to adjustment under certain circumstances. The Series
A and B Preferred Stock are mandatorily convertible on May 19, 2015 and
November 3, 2018, respectively. The dividends are payable quarterly in
arrears when, as and if declared by our board of directors.
The declaration and payment of any future dividends is at the sole discretion of our board of directors and will depend on, among other things, our
operating results, overall financial condition, capital requirements and

Fiscal Year 2012
Quarter ended March 31, 2012
Quarter ended June 30, 2012
Quarter ended September 30, 2012
Quarter ended December 31, 2012

general business conditions.
$14.42
$14.40
$14.60
$14.20

$10.68
$12.70
$13.16
$11.89

Holders
As of February 28, 2014, we had approximately 5,000 holders of record of
our common stock and one holder of record of our warrants.

(amounts shown in millions)

Dividends Declared Since Inception

Preferred

Common

Total

$ 3.2
4.5
8.7
8.1
8.1

$ —
—
5.7
11.7
21.8

$3.2
4.5
14.4
19.8
29.9

$32.6

$39.2

$71.8

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None
Equity Compensation Plan Information
See “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters.”
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND CERTAIN DEFINITIONS
Statements made by us in this report and in other reports and statements

• our ability to retain major clients and renew related contracts;

released by us that are not historical facts constitute “forward-looking state-

• trends in use of large, full-service commercial real estate providers;

ments” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as

• changes in tax laws in the United States, Ireland, United Kingdom,

amended (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21 of the Securities Exchange

Spain or Japan that reduce or eliminate deductions or other tax bene-

Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). These forward-looking
statements are necessarily estimates reflecting the judgment of our senior
management based on our current estimates, expectations, forecasts and
projections and include comments that express our current opinions about
trends and factors that may impact future operating results. Disclosures that

fits we receive;
• future acquisitions may not be available at favorable prices or upon
advantageous terms and conditions; and
• costs relating to the acquisition of assets we may acquire could be
higher than anticipated.

use words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “intend,” “could,”

Any such forward-looking statements, whether made in this report or

“plan,” “expect,” “project” or the negative of these, as well as similar

elsewhere, should be considered in the context of the various disclosures

expressions, are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

made by us about our businesses including, without limitation, the risk fac-

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance,

tors discussed in this Annual Report. Except as required under the federal

rely on a number of assumptions concerning future events, many of which

securities laws and the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and

are outside of our control, and involve known and unknown risks and uncer-

Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), we do not have any intention or obliga-

tainties that could cause our actual results, performance or achievement, or

tion to update publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result

industry results, to differ materially from any future results, performance or

of new information, future events, changes in assumptions, or otherwise.

achievements, expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.

In this report, Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. is referred to as “Kennedy

Although we believe that our plans, intentions, expectations, strategies and

Wilson” or “KWH,” and Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries

prospects as reflected in or suggested by those forward-looking statements

are collectively referred to as “The Company,” “we,” “us” or “our,” unless the

are reasonable, we do not guarantee that the transactions and events

context requires otherwise.

described will happen as described (or that they will happen at all). For a
further discussion of these and other factors that could impact our future
results, performance or transactions, please carefully read “Risk Factors”
below in addition to the following factors:
• disruptions in general economic and business conditions, particularly in
geographies where our business may be concentrated;
• volatility and disruption of the capital and credit markets, higher interest rates, higher loan costs, less desirable loan terms and a reduction
in the availability of mortgage loans, all of which could increase costs
and could limit our ability to acquire additional real estate assets;
• continued high levels of, or increases in, unemployment and general
slowdowns in commercial activity;
• our leverage and ability to refinance existing indebtedness or incur
additional indebtedness;

Assets Under Management or “AUM”
AUM generally refers to the properties and other assets with respect
to which we provide (or participate in) oversight, investment management
services and other advice, and which generally consist of real estate properties or loans, and investments in joint ventures. Our AUM is principally
intended to reflect the extent of our presence in the real estate market,
not the basis for determining our management fees. Our AUM consists of the
total estimated fair value of the real estate properties and other real estate
related assets either owned by third parties, wholly owned by us or held
by joint ventures and other entities in which our sponsored funds or investment vehicles and client accounts have invested. Committed (but unfunded)
capital from investors in our sponsored funds is not included in our AUM.
The estimated value of development properties is included at estimated
completion cost.

• an increase in our debt service obligations;
• our ability to generate a sufficient amount of cash to satisfy working

Operating Associates

capital requirements and to service our existing and future

Operating associates generally refer to individuals that are employed by or

indebtedness;

affiliated with third-party consultants, contractors, property managers or

• our ability to achieve improvements in operating efficiency;

other service providers that we manage and oversee on a day-to-day basis

• foreign currency fluctuations;

with respect to our investments and services businesses.

• adverse changes in the securities markets;
• our ability to retain our senior management and attract and retain
qualified and experienced employees;
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